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Harleysville
Good people to know’

Harleysville Insurance is a leading regional
provider of insurance products and service:
for small and mid-sized businesses, as well

as for individuals, and ranks among the 104
60 U.S. property/casualty insurance group:

based on ner written premiums,

Harleysville Group Ine. (NASDAQ: HGIC
a publicly traded holding company for

Harleysvilte’s nine regional property/casuall
insurance companics, is 53 percent owned

“~| Harleysville Mutual Insurance Company.

At a glance

Consolidated property and casualty operations
of Harleysville Group and Harleysville Mutual
produced $1.2 billion of ner written premiums
in 2007

Strong balance sheet

Rated A- (Excellent) by A.M. Best Company

® Mulii-line risk portfolio with 83 percent
in commercial lines, 17 percent in
personal lines

® Distribution through independent agents
in 32 Eastern and Midwestern states

® Commitment to superior scrvice

Diluted operating Statutory Operating return
earnings per share combined ratio on equity
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Message to our shareholders

What sets Harleysville apart?

Why do independent agents trust our company with
their best business? Why do the businessowners and
individuals we insure feel confident protecting their
financial securiry with us? What makes talented leaders
from throughout the insurance industry seck opportu-
nirties to join our “Good people to know?” And, what
drives our sharcholders to invest their hard-earned
dollars in our future?

The answers to these questions, and more, are
outlined in this letter and throughout this report. You
will see thar our accomplishments, and our financial
results, continued to move us forward, and we have
taken the steps necessary to continue to differentiate
Harleysville from our competitors.

Achieving our goals

In early 2004, after | was named chief executive
officer, we set some challenging goals for our-
selves. 'm pleased to say that over the last four
years, we have fundamentally reinvented our
company and re-established it as one of the
leading regional property/casualty insurance
companies in the marketplace, And 'm proud
to say that we accomplished what we said we
would accomplish—and then some.

That point was validated recently when A.M.
Best, in conjunction with its affirmation of our
“A-" rating, sent an important signal by changing
its outlook on all of our ratings to “positive.” Obvi-
ously, that is very good news, because it means A.M.
Best is publicly recognizing the significant progress
we've made over the last four years. It also represents a
key milestone we've now passed as we move closer to our
goal of regaining an “A” rating from A.M. Best.

As a result of our relentless focus on the fundamentals
of our business during the past few years, we now are in an
enviable position competitively. We have become a company
that is different today, in some important ways, from other
regional and national insurers.

First and foremost among those differentiators is our
management team-—an experienced, creative and aggressive
group of leaders who have demonstrated they can compete
effectively with anyone in the property/casualty industry, as
evidenced by the consistently steady improvement in our
operating results. In 2007, we reported record operating
earnings of $3.17 a share and, in fact, we now have reported
12 consecutive quarters of double-digit percencage growth
in operating income. We improved our statutory combined
ratio by 1.9 points to 96.7 percent, and we generated an op-
erating return on equity (ROE) of 13.8 percent, surpassing

Michael L. Browne
I'resident and

B Chief Executive Officer

“We have fundamentally

reinvented our company
and re-established it as one
of the leading regional

last year’s 13 percent ROE, and marking the second
consecutive year we've exceeded our ongeing goal of an
ROE of 12 percent or better.

What makes these results even more noteworthy is the
high quality of earnings we've been able to sustain at the
same time. As you review our 2007 results, you'll see that we
ended the year with a paid-to-incurred ratio of 90 percent, a
premium-to-surplus ratio of 1.2:1 and operating cash flow of
$171.5 million, while operating cash flow as a percentage of
net written premium was 20 percent. These numbers reflect
“the high quality of our reported earnings, in addition to our
reserve strength and balance sheet integrity. And, in fact,
our balance sheet is supported by a high-quality investrment
portfolio—as evidenced by the fact that 98 percent of our
fixed maturities are rated “A” or berter.



Our capital management activities this past year also
have served to differentiate us. At Harleysville, our capital
management strategy has two primary objectives. The first
is to maintain plenty of capital to support key business
initiatives such as organic growth, infrastructure investments
in areas like new technology and products, and merger and
acquisition opportunities. We also seek to return excess
capital to our sharcholders when available.

We've put our strong cash llow and excess capital to work
for our shareholders in the form of two stock repurchase
programs initiated during 2007, and a significant 32 percent
increase in our quarterly dividend. That marks che 21st
consecutive year our dividend has increased, which places
us among the 3 percent of all public companies recognized
with a 2007 Mergent Dividend Achiever Award for our
long-term history of dividend increases. We also amended
our intercompany pooling arrangement to increase the
aggregate share of the pool for the insurance subsidiaries
of Harleysville Group to 80 percent, effective Jan. 1, 2008,
which is expected to increase earnings in 2008 and provide
greater opportunity for continued earnings growth going
forward. Each of these actions reflects the strength of our
company's financial condition, the confidence we have in
our underwriting results and our prospects for continued
success, and our desire to have our shareholders—including
Harleysville Mutual—benefit from our improved operating
performance.

Maintaining a disciplined approach

to profitable growth

We are generating underwriting profitabilicy in both com-
mercial lines and personal lines, and we've achieved mean-
ingful improvement in our commercial lines combined
ratio in each of the past three years, which is a cumulative
result of our underwriting approach—an approach that
incorporates the use of predictive modeling and has resulted
in improving frequency. Predictive modeling is a very impor-
tant tool—particularly in a soft market—because it enables
us to effectively assess risk quality and compete aggressively
for our agency partners’ best business. As one of the first

regional companies to integrate its use in the underwriting
process, we now are modeling more than 80 percent of our
commercial lines business—both new and renewal—which
we believe gives us a competitive edge.

The ability to offer a comperitive personal lines market
to our agents further strengthens our relationships with
them, and sets us apart from many of our competitors.

In personal lines, we've now generated 11 straight quarters
of underwriting profit, a significant turnaround from our
previous performance. We are confident our profitability in
personal lines is sustainable over the long term, and we are
working closely with our agents to increase growth in our
targeted states.

Having excellent technology is something that is extreme-
ly important to independent agents because it enhances the
ease with which they can transact business. In that regard,
we launched our Web-based agency portal in 2006 and,
in the latter half of 2007, we introduced new commercial
and personal lines policy administration systems that were
developed with significant input from our agents. These
new systems are replacing a dozen legacy systems that have
been in existence for many years. After we complete the full
rollout of these systems, our agents will benefit from some
of the industry’s easiest systems to use for writing business.
In addition, this new platform will afford us enhanced flex-
ibility to expand into new products, geographies and services
quickly and effectively in the furure, as we will be one of the
few insurance companies free of legacy system constraints.

Serving our customers
To fully leverage the ease of doing business that technol-
ogy offers, you need to have the right people in the right
places—and we do. Our regional field structure swrengthens
our partnerships with our agents by placing resources and
decision-making closer to the point of sale. This structure
gives us greater access to our agency partners quality
business and—in conjunction with our new systems, and
tools like predictive modeling—enables us to efhciently
underwrite and aggressively compete for that business.
Our structure includes a growing presence in Atlanta,

... we see bright prospects for our long-term success.”




“The list of what sets Harleysville apart

[from our competitors is impressive ...

Charlotte and Chicago—key markets where we have
substantial growth opportunities. We also have established
small business teams within our regions that are closely
aligned with the internal structures of our agencies, facilirar-
ing our ability to effectively and efficiently write small busi-
ness accounts. In addition, we deploy 90 field underwriters
who are in our agents’ offices every day. All of these factors
serve to strengthen our agency relationships and provide
us with front-of-the-line access to our agency partners’ best
business, which has enabled us to earn a top-four position
in 80 percent of our 1,500 agents’ ofhces. And, despite the
softening market, our retention ratios not only have held
strong, they've actually improved during the past two years.
Our agents also have told us that the qualicy of our
claims service is a key differentiator, and an important factor
in choosing our company for their customers. Our focus
on quality service, and prompt and fair claims handling,
has produced a 12 percent decline in paid losses and loss
adjustment expenses over the past three years. All the while,
premiums have remained steady, our reserves have been
increasing and satisfaction ratings from our policyholders
have remained strong.

Effectively managing our expenses

Everyone knows it’s challenging to improve your expense
ratio in a softening market because of the difficulty to grow
premiums—at least if you want to grow responsibly. Even
s0, in 2007 our expense ratio improved by a half-point from
one year ago. And thar improvement is running counter to
industry and peer company trends as our internal expense-
containment initiatives are starting to take hold, even
during a period of flat premium growth.

How have we done this? First, by establishing a disci-
plined expense culture within our company. This has enabled
us to successfully control internal expenses, which on a
statutory basis have declined over the last four years. Second,
we have managed staffing levels through actrition, and by im-
proving productivity through leveraging new technology and
work flows. Third, we have continued to make significant
and necessary investments in new rechnology, new offices
and new talent that position us competitively for the future.
And, with our other expense initiatives, we have been able to
absorb the bulk of these costs in our expense run rate.

The list of what sets Harleysville apart from our competi-
tors is impressive, and offers great promise going forward.
As we continue to generate momentum, we will not com-
promise underwriting quality to chase a near-term growth
goal. Instead, we will remain disciplined as we focus on our
strategy of maintaining a long-term underwriting profit,
an operating ROE in excess of 12 percent and continued
improvement in our earnings performance throughout 2008
and beyond. With that as the strong platform on which we
can build, we see bright prospects for our long-term success.

For our employees, agency partners, policyholders and
investors, that certainly makes us “Good people to know”—
both now and in the future.

Sincerely,

WW

Michael L. Browne
President and Chief Executive Officer
March 7, 2008




Harleysville Group Inc.

Historical financial data

{Dollars in millions, except per share data) 2007 2006 2005 2004 2003 2002 2001 20040 1999 1998 1997
Results
Net written premiums $838.0 $838.8 $839.0 38397 §8435 §797.9 $747.6 37015 37243 36861 36169

Premiums earned 833.0 8388 8416 837.7 823.4 764.6 729.9 688.3 7072 6646 6249

Investment income 110.8 102.6 90.6 87.2 86.6 86.3 83.5 86.8 o 87_5_79_7#_ 86_.0 . 81.8

Toral revenues 952.0 9992 9483 9534 9250 8477 82738 802.6 824.8 779.3 7242
Net incqmc oss) 100.1 111.1 614 469  (47.6) 46.3 43.5 48.7 39.9 634 54.1
Per common share:

Opernating income (loss) fbusic) (1) ~~ $3.22 8270

$201 _ $1.29 §(157)  $1.96  $156  §147  §1.10  31.82  §1.74

Net income (loss) [basic] 329 ass 202 156 (1.59) 256_ 1.49 1.69 1.37 218 189
Cash dividends 0.88 073 069 . A7068 067  0.63 0.58 (.55 0.52 0.48 D44
Ratios:

Starutory combined ratio 96.7%  98.6% 1022% 1059% 1232% (019% 1042% 1061% 107.8% 1032% 103.5%
Premium-to-surplus ratio . 1211 L2zt 151 1.6:1 1.8:1 1.6:1 1.4:1 1.4:1 41 14l _ lf:i

Debt-to-capital radio (2) 14% 14% 17% 18%  19%  14%  15% 16% 17% 18%  20%

Return on average equity (2) ) 13.9% 17.3%  11.0% 9.0%  (8.8% 8.2% 82%  99%  B.6%  148%  14.4%

Financial position

Total assets -

$3,0724 $29910 529053 $2,718.1 $2,680.4 $2,311.5 $2045.3 $20219 $2020.1 $1,9345 $1,8012

Debr and lease obligations 1185 118

85 .

1185 1196 12001 956 961 965 968 971 974

Shareholders’ equity 7588 7122 6144 5879 5727 6321 5903 5666 __ 5269 3297 4465

Per common share:

§harch()|clgrs' c‘.l.‘}it,):,_____”_ $25.03 %2249 320._073_ _}19.4? $19.16  $21.13  §20.05 519.54_:__ @1}129 #31817m$1m5_14_9_

Market price: _ e ) e o R
High _ $37.89  $3872  S2800 §2496  §27.50 §3241 §3025  §30.63 $26.13 _§2850 _ $27.50
_low 27.57 2590 1844 1770 1841 1958 1901 1163 1263 1725 1438
Close o 3538 3482 2650 2387 1989 2643 2389 2025 1425 258t 2400

{1) Operating income {loss) is net of tax and excludes after-tax realized investment gains (losses) and the cumulative effect of accounting change, net of tax,

{2) Exctudes effect of SFAS No, 115,
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PART1

Item 1. Business.
General

Harleysville Group Inc. (the Company) is an insurance holding company headquartered in Pennsylvania
which, through its subsidiaries, engages in the property and casualty insurance business on a regional basis. As used
herein, “Harleysville Group” refers to Harleysville Group Inc. and its subsidiaries.

The Company is a Delaware corporation formed by Harleysville Mutual Insurance Company (the Mutual
Company) in 1979 as a wholly owned subsidiary. In May 1986, the Company completed an initial public offering of its
common stock, reducing the percentage of outstanding shares owned by the Mutual Company to approximately 70%.
In April 1992, the Mutual Company completed a secondary public offering of a portion of the Company’s common
stock then owned by it, further reducing the percentage of outstanding shares owned by the Mutual Company. At
December 31, 2007, the Mutual Company owned approximately 53% of the Company’s outstanding shares.

Harleysviile Group and the Mutual Company operate together to pursue a strategy of underwriting a broad
array of personal and commercial coverages. These insurance coverages are marketed primarily in the eastern and
midwestern United States through approximately 1,500 insurance agencies. Regional offices are maintained in Georgia,
llinois, Indiana, Maryland, Massachusetts, Michigan, Minnesota, New Jersey, New York, North Carolina,
Pennsylvania, Tennessee, and Virginia. The Company’s property and casualty insurance subsidiaries are: Harleysville-
Atlantic Insurance Company (Atlantic), Harleysville Insurance Company (HIC), Harleysville Insurance Company of
New Jersey (HNJ), Harleysville Insurance Company of New York (HIC New York), Harleysville Insurance Company
of Ohio (HIC Ohio), Harleysville Lake States Insurance Company (Lake States), Harleysville Preferred Insurance
Company (Preferred), and Harleysville Worcester Insurance Company (Worcester), Mid-America Insurance Company
(Mid-America), a former subsidiary, was merged into Worcester in 2007.

The Company operates regionally. Management believes that the Company’s regional organization permits
each regional operation to benefit from economies of scale provided by centralized support while encouraging local
marketing autonomy and managerial entrepreneurship. Services which directly involve the insured or the agent
(i.e., underwriting, claims and marketing) generally are performed regionally in accordance with Company-wide
standards to promote high quality service, while actuarial, investment, legal, data processing and similar services are
performed centrally. The Company’s network of regional insurance companies has expanded significantly in the last
twenty-four years. In 1983, the Company acquired Worcester, a property and casualty insurer which has conducted
business in New England since 1823, In 1984, HNJ was formed by the Company and began underwriting property and
casualty insurance in New Jersey. In 1987, the Company acquired Atlantic, a property and casualty insurer which has
conducted business in the southeastern United States since 1905. In 1991, the Company acquired Mid-America, which
conducted business in Connecticut, and HIC New York, which primarily conducts business in upstate New York. In
1993, the Company acquired Lake States, which primarily conducts business in Michigan. In 1994, the Company
formed HIC Ohio which began underwriting property and casualty insurance in Ohio. In 1997, the Company acquired
HIC, which primarily conducts business in Minnesota and neighboring states.

The Company’s property and casualty subsidiaries participate in an intercompany pooling arrangement
whereby these subsidiaries cede to the Mutual Company all of their net premiums written and assume from the Mutual
Company a portion of the pooled business, which includes substantially all of the Mutual Company’s property and
casualty insurance business. See “Business - Pooling Arrangement.”

Business Segments

Harleysville Group has three segments which consist of the personal lines of insurance, the commercial lines
of insurance and the investment function. Financial information about these segments is set forth in Note 12 of the
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements.




Narrative Description of Business
Property and Casualty Underwriting

Harleysville Group and the Mutual Company together underwrite a broad line of personal and commercial
property and casualty coverages, including automobile, homeowners, commercial multi-peril and workers
compensation. The Mutual Company and the Company’s insurance subsidiaries participate in an intercompany pooling
arrangement under which such subsidiaries and the Mutual Company combine their property and casualty business.

Harleysville Group and the Mutual Company have a pooled rating of “A-" (excellent) which was affirmed by
A.M. Best Company, Inc. (Best’s) in January 2008. Best’s ratings are based upon factors relevant to pelicyholders and
are not directed toward the protection of investors. Management believes that the Best’s rating is an important factor in
marketing Harleysville Group’s products to its agents and customers, and that the current rating is satisfactory in that
regard.

The following table sets forth ratios for the Company’s property and casualty subsidiaries, prepared in
accordance with U.S. generally accepted accounting principles (GAAP) and with statutory accounting practices (SAP)
prescribed or permitted by state insurance authorities. The statutory combined ratio is a standard measure of
underwriting profitability. This ratio is the sum of (i} the ratio of incurred losses and loss settlement expenses to net
earned premium (loss ratio); (i1) the ratio of expenses incurred for commissions, premium taxes, administrative and
other underwriting expenses to net written premium (expense ratio); and (iii) the ratio of dividends to policyholders to
net earned premium (dividend ratio). The GAAP combined ratio is calculated in the same manner except that it is based
on GAAP amounts and the denominator for each component is net earned premium. When the combined ratio is under
100%, underwriting results are generally considered profitable. Conversely, when the combined ratio is over 100%,
underwriting results are generally considered unprofitable. The combined ratio does not reflect investment incomne,
federal income taxes or other non-operating income or expense. Harleysville Group’s operating income is a function of
both underwriting results and investment income.

HARLEYSVILLE GROUP BUSINESS ONLY

Year Ended December 31,

2007 2006 2005
GAAP combined ratio 96.9% 99.1% 101.9%
Statutory operating ratios:
L.oss ratio 62.8% 64.3% 67.4%
Expense and dividend ratios 33.9% 34.3% 34.8%
Statutory combined ratio 96.7% 98.6% 102.2%




The following table sets forth the net written premiums and combined ratios by line of insurance, prepared in
accordance with statutory accounting practices prescribed or permitted by state insurance authorities, for Harleysville
Group for the periods indicated:

HARLEYSVILLE GROUP BUSINESS ONLY

Year Ended December 31,
2007 2006 2008
(dollars in thousands}

Net Premiums Written

Commercial:
Automobile § 193,228 $ 206,316 § 221,680
Workers compensation 97,017 97,113 95,877
Commercial multi-peril 325911 321,270 306,267
Other commercial 77,012 71,189 68,532
Total commercial 693,168 695,888 692,356
Personal:
Automobile 69,052 71,270 78,787
Homeowners 66,946 63,124 59,175
Other personal 8,827 8,535 8,726
Total personal 144,825 142,929 146,688
Total Harleysville Group Business $ 837,993 $ 838,817 $ 839,044
Combined Ratios
Commercial:
Automobile 94.7% 99.3% 101.1%
Workers compensation 112.2% 117.2% 124.0%
Commercial multi-peril 97.8% 98.9% 101.5%
Other commercial 83.8% 86.6% 98.7%
Total commercial 97.5% 100.3% 104.3%
Personal:
Automobile 99.7% 99.3% 99.2%
Homeowners 86.8% 82.6% 87.6%
Other persconal 79.8% 69.8% 72.3%
Total personal 92.7% 90.6% 93.1%
Total Harleysville Group Business 96.7% 98.6% 102.2%
Pooling Arrangement

The Company’s property and casualty subsidiaries participate in an intercompany pooling arrangement with
the Mutual Company. The underwriting pool is intended to produce a more uniform and stable underwriting result from
year to year for all companies in the pool than they would experience individually and to reduce the risk of loss of any
of the pool participants by spreading the risk among all the participants. Each company participating in the pool has at
its disposal the capacity of the entire pool, rather than being limited to policy exposures of a size commensurate with its
own capital and surplus. The additional capacity exists because such policy exposures are spread among all the pool
participants which each have their own capital and surplus. Regulation is applied to the individual companies rather
than to the pool.

Pursuant to the terms of the pooling agreement with the Mutual Company, each of the Company’s subsidiary
participants cedes premiums, losses and underwriting expenses on all of its business to the Mutual Company which, in
turn, retrocedes to such subsidiaries a specified portion of premiums, losses and underwriting expenses of the Mutual
Company and such subsidiaries. Under the terms of the intercompany pooling agreement which became effective
January 1, 1986, Preferred and HNJ ceded to the Mutual Company all of their insurance business written on or after
January 1, 1986. All of the Mutual Company’s property and casualty insurance business written or in force on or after
January 1, 1986, was also included in the pooled business. The pooling agreement provides, however, that Harleysville
Group is not liable for any losses incurred by the Mutual Company, Preferred and HNJ prior to January 1, 1986. The




pooling agreement does not legally discharge Harleysville Group from its primary liability for the full amount of the
policies ceded. However, it makes the Mutual Company liable to Harleysville Group to the extent of the business
ceded.

The following table sets forth a chronology of the changes that have occurred in the pooling agreement since it
became effective on January 1, 1986.

Chronelogy of Changes in Pooling Agreement

Harleysville Mutual
Group Company/Pennland

Date Percentage Percentage Event

January 1, 1986 30% 70% Current peoling agreement began with Preferred and HNJ as
participants with the Mutual Company.

July 1, 1987 35% 65% Atlantic acquired and included in the pool.

January 1, 1989 50% 50% Worcester included in the pool.

January 1, 1991 60% 40% HIC New York and Mid-America acquired and included in the
pool and the Mutual Company formed Pennland (not a pool
participant) to write Pennsylvania personal automobile business.

January 1, 1996 65% 35% Pennland included in the pool.

January 1, 1997 T0% 30% Lake States included in the pool.

Januvary 1, 1998 72% 28% HIC included in the pool.

January 1, 2008 80% 20% Amendment to the pooling agreement.

When poel participation percentages increased as described above, cash and investments equal to the net
increase in liabilities assumed less a ceding commission related to the net increase in the liability for unearned
premiums, was transferred from the Mutual Company to Harleysville Group.

All premiums, losses, loss settlement expenses and other underwriting expenses are prorated among the parties
to the pooling arrangement on the basis of their participation in the pool. The method of establishing reserves is set
forth under “Business - Reserves.” The pooling agreement may be amended or terminated by agreement of the parties.
Termination may occur only at the end of a calendar year. The Boards of Directors of the Company and the Mutual
Company maintain a coordinating committee which reviews and evaluates, and when changes are warranted, approves
the pooling arrangements between the Company and the Mutual Company. See “Business-Relationship with the
Mutual Company.” In evaluating pool participation changes, the coordinating committee considers current and
proposed acquisitions, the relative capital positions and revenue contributions of the pool participants, and growth
prospects and ability to access capital markets to support that growth. Harleysville Group does not intend to terminate
its participation in the pooling agreement.



The following table sets forth the net premiums written and combined ratios by line of insurance for the total
pooled business after elimination of management fees, prepared in accordance with statutory accounting practices
prescribed or permitted by state insurance authorities, for the periods indicated.

TOTAL POOLED BUSINESS
Year Ended December 31,
2007 2006 2005
(dollars in thousands)
Net Premiums Written
Commercial:
Automobile $ 268,372 $ 286,550 $ 308,576
Workers compensation 134,746 134,878 133,161
Commercial multi-peril 452,655 446,209 432,788
Other commercial 106,961 98,874 96,782
Total commercial 062,734 966,511 971,307
Personal:
Automobile 95,905 98,986 109,840
Homeowners 92,981 87,672 84,310
Other personal 12,260 11,854 12,119
Total personal 201,146 198,512 206,269
Total pooled business $ 1,163,880 $ 1,165,023 $ 1,177,576
Combined Ratios{1)
Commercial:
Automobile 94.9% 99.5% 101.0%
Workers compensation 112.2% 119.0% 124.4%
Commercial multi-peril 97.9% 99.8% 99.9%
Other commercial 84.8% 78.8% 97.5%
Total commercial 97.7% 100.2% 103.5%
Personal:
Automobile 102.0% 106.9% 100.9%
Homeowners 86.9% 82.8% 85.3%
Other personal 79.8% 69.8% 72.3%
Total personal 93.9% 94.5% 93.1%
Total pooled business 97.0% 99.3% 101.6%
¢S] See the definition of combined ratio in “Business-Property and Casualty Underwriting.”

The combined ratio for the total pooled business differs from Harleysville Group’s combined ratio primarily
because of the effect of the inclusion of incurred losses occurring prior to 1986 retained by the Mutual Company and,
for 2005, the effect of the aggregate catastrophe reinsurance agreement with the Mutual Company. See Note 2(a) of the
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements and Business-Reinsurance.

Reserves, Loss reserves are estimates at a given point in time of what the insurer expects to pay to claimants
for claims occurring on or before such point in time, including claims which have been incurred but not yet reported to
the insurer. These are estimates, and it can be expected that the ultimate liability will exceed or be less than such
estimates. During the loss settlement period, additional facts regarding individual claims may become known, and
consequently it often becomes necessary to refine and adjust the estimates of liability.

Harleysville Group maintains reserves for estimates of the ultimate unpaid cost of all losses incurred,
including losses for claims which have been incurred but have not yet been reported to Harleysville Group. Loss
settlement expense reserves are intended to cover the ultimate costs of settling ali claims, including investigation and
litigation costs relating to such claims. The amount of loss reserves for reported claims is based primarily upon a case-
by-case evaluation of the type of risk involved and knowledge of the circumstances surrounding each claim and the
insurance policy provisions relating to the type of loss. The amounts of loss reserves for incurred but unreported claims
and loss settlement expense reserves are determined utilizing historical information by line of insurance as adjusted to




current conditions. Inflation is implicitly provided for in the reserving function through analysis of costs, trends and
reviews of historical reserving results. Estimates of the liabilities are reviewed and updated on a regular basis using the
most recent information on reported claims and a variety of actuarial techniques. With the exception of reserves
relating to some workers compensation long-term disability cases, loss reserves are not discounted.

The following table sets forth a reconciliation of beginning and ending net reserves for unpaid losses and loss
settlement expenses for the years indicated for the total pooled business on a statutory basis.

TOTAL POOLED BUSINESS
Year Ended December 31,
2007 2006 2005
(in thousands)
Reserves for losses and
loss settlement expenses,
beginning of the year $ 1,893,753 § 1,761,198 § 1,613,374
Incurred losses and loss
settlement expenses:
Provision for insured events
of the current year 756,641 773,770 811,778
Decrease in provisions for insured
events of prior years (26,315) (17,424) (19,545)
Total incurred losses and
loss settlement expenses 730,326 756,346 792,233

Payments:
Losses and loss settlement expenses
attributable to insured events
of the current year 251,544 228,632 254,441
Losses and loss scttlement expenses
attributable to insured events
of prior years 405,441 395,159 389,968

Total payments 656,985 623,791 644,409

Reserves for losses and loss
settlement expenses, end of the year $ 1,967,094 % 1,893,753 § 1,761,198

The following table sets forth the development of net reserves for unpaid losses and loss settlement expenses
from 1997 through 2007 for the pooled business of the Mutual Company and Harleysville Group on a statutory basis.
“Reserve for losses and loss settlement expenses” sets forth the estimated liability for unpaid losses and loss settlement
expenses recorded at the balance sheet date for each of the indicated years. This liability represents the estimated
amount of losses and loss settlement expenses for claims arising in the current and all prior years that are unpaid at the
balance sheet date, including losses incurred but not reported.

The “Reserves reestimated” portion of the table shows the reestimated amount of the previously recorded
liability based on experience of each succeeding year. The estimate is increased or decreased as payments are made and
more information becomes known about the severity of remaining unpaid claims. For example, the 1997 liability has
developed a redundancy after ten years, in that reestimated losses and loss settlement expenses are expected to be lower
than the initial estimated liability established in 1997 of $1,125 million by 318.5 million, or 1.6%.

The “Cumulative amount of reserves paid” portion of the table shows the cumulative losses and loss
settlement expense payments made in succeeding years for losses incurred prior to the balance sheet date. For example,
the 1997 column indicates that as of December 31, 2007, payments of $940.4 million of the currently reestimated
ultimate liability for losses and loss settlement expenses had been made.




The “Redundancy (deficiency)” portion of the table shows the cumulative redundancy or deficiency at
December 31, 2007 of the reserve estimate shown on the top line of the corresponding column. A redundancy in
reserves means that reserves established in prior years exceeded actual losses and loss settlement expenses or were
reevaluated at less than the original reserved amount. A deficiency in reserves means that the reserves established in
prior years were less than actual losses and loss settlement expenses or were reevaluated at more than the originally
reserved amounts.

The following table includes all 2007 pool participants as if they had participated in the pooling arrangement
in all years indicated except for acquired pool participant companies, which are included from their date of acquisition.
Under the terms of the pooling arrangement, Harleysville Group is not responsible for losses on the pooled business of
the Mutual Company, Preferred and HNJ occurring prior to January 1, 1986.

TOTAL POOLED BUSINESS
Year ended December 31,
1997 1998 1999 2000 2001 2002 2003 2004 2005 2006 2007
(dollars in thousands)
Reserve for losses
and loss settlernent
expenses $1,124910 § 1,172,664 § 1,181,066 $1,136,848 § 1,147,517 $1,224.380 $1,514,548 $1,613,374 $1,761,198 §$1,893,753 § 1,967,094
Reserves reestimated:
One year later 1,068,687 1,090,640 1115747 1,114,404 1,143,701 1,397,821 1,538,929 1,593,829 1,743,774 1,867,438
Two years later 1,005,208 1,042,183 1,097,544 1,124,881 1,308,498 1,459,056 1,566,305 1,602,547 1,746,441
Three years later 972,318 1,027,968 1,106,107 1,245,333 1,369,239 1,501,724 1,605,840 1,622,733
Four years later 961,721 1,028,927 1,182,626 1,290,895 1,413,644 1,557,058 1,630,971
Five years later 962,861 1,073,694 1,214,740 1,325,808 1,478,729 1,585,986
Six years later 995,904 1,099,420 1,244,763 1,387,325 1,505,789
Seven years later 1,018,216 1,126,334 1,302,257 1,411,603
Eight years later 1,039,515 1,179,344 1,324,960
Nine years later 1,088,898 1,197,875
Ten years later 1,106,412
Curnulative armount
of reserves paid:
One year later 338,377 358,526 391,524 395,561 372,642 437,855 490,353 389,968 395,159 405,441
Two years later 540,522 562,908 609,016 609,777 654,045 759,313 742,476 642,066 673,385
Three years later 674,740 695,315 753,893 801,234 8R4,746 935,691 921,520 835,193
Four years later 756,502 777,204 864,840 945,886 1,005,199 1,051,788 1,042,755
Five years later 801,602 §38,597 951,286 1,019,943 1,676,672 1,127,999
Six years later 817,855 892,222 1,001,074 1,066,271 1,130,754
Seven years later §77,219 926,315 1,035686 1,102,146
Eight years later 902,405 952,929 1,662,051
Nine years later 924,160 972,123
Ten years later 940,392
Cumulative redundancy/
(deficiency) 18,498 (25,211) (143,894) (274,755) (358,272) (361,606) (116,423) {9,359) 14,757 26,315
Cumulative redundancy/
(deficiency) expressed
as a percent of
year-end reserves 1.6% (2.1%) (12.2%) (24.2%) (31.2%) (29.5%) (7.7%) (0.6%) 0.8% 1.4%
Cumulative redundancy/
(deficiency) excluding
pre-1986 reserve
development (1) 59,560 13,304 {106,911) {240,159} (324,503) (330,018) (92,505) 7439 26,502 30,621
(1) Excludes business not included in pooling arrangement with Harleysville Group.

Harleysville Group’s reserves primarily are derived from those established for the total pooled business. The
terms of the pooling agreement provide that Harleysville Group is not liable for any losses incurred by the Mutual
Company, Preferred and HNJ prior to January 1, 1986. The GAAP loss reserve experience of Harleysville Group, as
reflected in its financial statements, is shown in the following table which sets forth a reconciliation of beginning and
ending net reserves for unpaid losses and loss settlement expenses for the years indicated for the business of
Harleysville Group only.




HARLEYSVILLE GROUP BUSINESS ONLY

Year Ended December 31,
2007 2006 2005
(in thousands}
Reserves for losses and
loss settlement expenses,
beginning of the year $ 1329849 $ 1237000 § 1,131,609
Incurred losses and loss
settlement expenses:
Provision for insured
events of the current year 545,077 557,908 584,929
Decrease in provision for
insured events of prior years (22,047) (18,085) (17,533)
Total incurred losses and
loss settlement expenses 523,030 539,823 567,396
Payments:
Losses and loss settlement
expenses attributable to
insured events of the
current year 181,406 165,409 183,645
Losses and loss settlement
expenses attributable to
insured events of prior years 289661 281,655 278,270
Total payments 471,067 447,064 461,915
Reserves for losses and loss
settlement expenses, end of the year $ 1,381,812 § 1329849 § 1,237,090

See page 9 for reconciliation of net reserves to gross reserves.

Harleysville Group recognized net favorable development in the provision for insured events of prior years of
$22.0 millien in 2007, primarily due to lower-than-expected claims severity broadly experienced across all casualty
lines in accident years 2003 through 2006, partially offset by adverse development in the 2002 and prior accident years.
The favorable development consisted of $12.5 million in commercial lines and $9.5 million in personal lines.

Harleysville Group recognized net favorable development in the provision for insured events of prior years of
$18.1 million in 2006, primarily due to lower-than-expected claims severity in accident years 2002 through 2005 for
most commercial and personal lines of business, partially offset by greater-than-expected claims severity in the 2001
and prior accident years, The favorable development consisted of $8.1 million in commercial lines and $10.0 million in
personal lines.

Harleysville Group recognized net favorable development in the provision for insured events of prior years of
$17.5 million in 2003, primarily due to lower-than-expected claims severity in accident years 2004 and 2003, partially
offset by greater-than-expected claims severity in commercial lines in 2002 and prior accident years. The favorable
development consisted of $3.9 million in commercial lines and $13.6 million in personal lines.

The following table sets forth the development of net reserves for unpaid losses and loss settlement expenses
for Harleysvilte Group. The effect of changes to the pooling agreement participation is reflected in this table. For
example, the Januvary 1, 1998 increase in Harleysville Group’s pooling participation from 70% to 72% is reflected in
the first line of the 1998 column. Amounts of assets equal to increases in net liabilities were transferred to Harleysville
Group from the Mutual Company in conjunction with each respective pooling change. The amount of the assets
transferred has been netted against and has reduced the cumulative amounts paid for years prior to the pooling changes.




For example, the 1997 column of the “Cumulative amount of reserves paid” portion of the table reflects the assets
transferred in conjunction with the 1998 increase in the pooling percentage from 70% to 72% as a decrease netied in
the “one year later” line. The cumulative amounts paid are reflected in this manner to maintain comparability. This is
because when Harleysville Group pays claims subsequent to the date of a pool participation increase, the amounts paid
are greater however, the prior year’s reserve amounts are reflective of a lower pool participation percentage. By
reflecting pooling participation increases in this manner, loss development is not obscured. Loss development reflects
Harleysville Group’s share of the total pooled business loss development since January 1, 1986 when Harleysville
Group began participation, plus loss development of any subsidiary not participating in the pooling agreement,

Loss development information for the total pooled business is presented on pages 6 to 8 to provide greater

analysis of underlying claims development.

HARLEYSVILLE GROUP BUSINESS

Year Ended December 31,

1997 1998 1999 2000 2001 2002 2003 2004 2008 2006 2007
(dollars in thousands)
Reserve for losses
and loss settlement
expenses $ 793,563 § 813,519 $ 823914 § 792,584 § 800,861 § 857,182 $1,062,660 $1,131,609 $1,237,090 §1,329.849 §1,381,812
Reserves reestimated:
One year later 750,956 753,987 774,977 775,234 796,213 976,241 1,075,122 1,114,076 1,219,005 1,307,802
Two years later 704,157 717,324 761,234 781,117 909,048 1,015,209 1,091,322 1,114,813 1,217,825
Three years later 678,757 706,491 765,816 862,320 947,660 1,042,276 1,114,275 1,126,248
Four years later 670,534 705,615 815,380 889,996 975,978 1,076,597 1,129,270
Five years later 669,789 732,315 833,373 911,482 1,017,319 1,094,325
Six years later 688,055 745,714 851,335 950,295 1,033,702
Seven years later 698,996 761,438 887,252 964,675
Eight years later 710,694 794,126 900,498
Nine years later 740,893 804,369
Ten years later 750,403
Curnulative amount of
reserves paid:
One year later 228,622 252,972 279,153 282,110 265,422 312,224 350,082 278,270 281,653 289,661
Two years later 371,624 397,685 433,901 434,579 465,001 541,063 529,126 456,921 479,720
Three years later 465,897 491,274 536,547 569,696 628,494 665,513 655,219 593,715
Four vears later 523,050 548,696 613,701 671,230 12,677 746,455 740,251
Five years later 553,984 590,172 673,327 722,038 761,490 799,069
Six years later 577,360 626,171 706,659 752,787 798,172
Seven years later 603,092 648,203 728,973 776,360
Eight years later 618,715 664,758 745,698
Nine years later 631,916 676,320
Ten years later 641,345
Net cumulative
redundancy/
{deficiency) 43,160 9,150 (76,584)  (172,091) (232,841}  (237,143) (66,610) 5,361 19,265 22,047
Net cumulative
redundancy/
{deficiency)
expressed as a
percent of year
end reserves 5.4% 1.1% (9.3%) (21.7%) (29.1%) (27.7%) (6.3%) 0.5% 1.6% 1.7%
Gross reserve $ 868393 § 893420 § 901,352 $§ 864,843 § 879,056 § 928,335 $1,219977 $1,317,735 § 1,480,802 § 1,493,645 § 1,546,690
Ceded reserve 74,830 79,901 77,438 72,259 78,195 71,153 157,317 186,126 243,712 163,796 164,878
Net reserve $ 793,563 § 813,519 § 823,914 § 792,584 § 800,861 § 857,182 $1,062,660 $1,131,609 $ 1,237,090 § 1,329,849 § 1,381,812

Gross cumulative
redundancy/
(deficiency)

Gross re-estimated
Ceded re-estimated
Net re-estimated

$ (42495) §

(74,063) § (181,572) § (301,368) § (359,590} § (368,89%) $ (127.160) § (18,739) §

(6,189) $

8,956

$ 910,888 §
160,485

967,483 $ 1,082,924 $1,166.211 $ 1,238,646 § 1,297,234 § 1,347,137 $1,336,474 § 1,486,991

163,114

182,426

201,536

204,944

202,909

217,867

210,226

269,166

$ 1,484,689

176,887

$ 750,403 § 804,369 $ 900,498 § 964,675 $1,033,702 $ 1,094,325 $1,129,270 $1,126,248 $1.217,825 31,307,802

Note: The amount of cash and investments received equal to the increase in liabilities for unpaid losses and loss settlement expenses
was $28,318,000 and $12,392,000 for the changes in pool participation in 1997 and 1998, respectively.




Reinsurance. Harleysville Group follows the customary industry practice of reinsuring a portion of its
exposures and paying to the reinsurers a portion of the premiums received. Insurance is ceded principally to reduce the
net liability on individual risks and to protect against catastrophic losses. Reinsurance does not legally discharge an
insurer from its primary liability for the full amount of the policies, although it does make the assuming reinsurer liable
to the insurer to the extent of the reinsurance ceded. Therefore, a ceding company is subject to credit risk with respect
to its reinsurers. Harleysville Group has not entered into any finite reinsurance agreements.

The reinsurance described below is maintained for the Company’s subsidiaries and the Mutual Company and
its wholly owned subsidiaries. Reinsurance premiums and recoveries are allocated to participants in the pooling
agreement according to pooling percentages.

Reinsurance for property and auto physical damage losses is currently maintained under a per risk excess of
loss treaty affording recovery to $13.0 million above a retention of $2.0 million. Harleysville Group’s 2007 pooling
share of such recovery would be $9.4 million above a retention of $1.4 million. In addition, the Company’s subsidiaries
and the Mutual Company and its wholly owned subsidiaries are reinsured under a catastrophe reinsurance treaty
effective for one year from July 1, 2007 which provides coverage ranging from 75% to 85% of up to $250.0 millien in
excess of a retention of $50.0 million for any given catastrophe. Harleysville Group’s 2007 pooling share of this
coverage would range from 75% to 85% of up to $180.0 million in excess of a retention of $36.0 million for any given
catastrophe. Accordingly, pursuant to the terms of the treaty, the maximum recovery would be $195.0 million for any
catastrophe involving an insured loss equal to or greater than $300.0 million. Harleysville Group’s pooling share of this
maximum recovery would be $140.4 million for any catastrophe involving an insured loss of $216.0 million or greater.
The treaty includes reinstatement provisions providing for coverage for a second catastrophe and requiring payment of
an additional premium in the event of a first catastrophe occurring. Most terrorism losses would not be covered by the
treaty. Harleysville Group has not purchased funded catastrophe covers.

Casualty reinsurance (including liabitity and workers compensation subject to per-life maximums) is currently
maintained under an excess of loss treaty affording recovery to $37.0 million above a retention of $3.0 million for each
loss occurrence. Harleysville Group’s 2007 pooling share of a recovery would be up to $26.6 million above a retention
of $2.2 million. In addition, there is reinsurance to protect Harleysville Group from large workers compensation losses
on a per-life basis above a retention of $2.0 million. Harleysville Group’s pooling share of this retention would be
$1.4 million. For umbrella liability coverages, reinsurance protection up to 75% of the first $4.0 million over a
retention of $1.0 million and 100% of the next $5.0 million in excess of $5.0 million is provided. Harleysville Group’s
2007 pooling share would provide for a maximum recovery of $5.8 millien over a retention of $0.7 million. The
casualty reinsurance programs provide coverage for a terrorist event with no reinstatement provision,

The terms and charges for reinsurance coverage are typically negotiated annually. The reinsurance market is
subject to conditions which are similar to those in the direct property and casualty insurance market, and there can be
no assurance that reinsurance will remain available to Harleysville Group to the same extent and at the same cost
currently maintained.

Harleysville Group considers numerous factors in choosing reinsurers, the most important of which are the
financial stability and credit worthiness of the reinsurer. Harleysville Group has not experienced any material
uncollectible reinsurance recoverables.

The Company’s subsidiaries and the Mutual Company are servicing carriers in the “Write-Your-Own” (WYO)
program of the United States government’s National Flood Insurance Program (NFIP). The WYQ program is a
cooperative undertaking of the insurance industry and the Federal Emergency Management Agency. As servicing
carriers, Harleysville Group and the Mutual Company bear no risk of loss on floed insurance policies. All of the
premiums collected on flood insurance policies are ceded to the federal government and, in exchange a servicing fee is
received from which agency commission, claim handling fees and other related expenses are paid.

As a writer of personal and commercial automobite policies in the state of Michigan, in compliance with
applicable state regulations, Harleysville Group cedes premiums and claims for medical benefits and work loss, above a
specified retention amount, to the Michigan Catastrophic Claims Association. For policies effective July 1, 2007 to
June 30, 2008, the required retention is $420,000.
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Competition. The property and casualty insurance industry is highly competitive on the basis of both price
and service. There are numerous companies competing for the categories of business underwritten by Harleysville
Group in the geographic areas where Harleysville Group operates, many of which are substantially larger and have
considerably greater financial resources than Harleysville Group. In addition, because the insurance products of
Harleysville Group and the Mutual Company are marketed exclusively through independent insurance agencies, most
of which represent more than one company, Harleysville Group faces competition within each agency.

Marketing. Harleysville Group markets its insurance products through independent agencies and monitors the
performance of these agencies relative to many factors including profitability, growth and retention. At December 31,
2007, there were approximately 1,500 agencies.

Investments

An important element of the financial results of Harleysville Group is the refurn on invested assets. An
investment objective of Harleysville Group is to maintain a widely diversified fixed maturities portfolio structured to
maximize after-tax investment income while minimizing credit risk through investments in high quality instruments.
An objective also is to provide adequate funds to pay claims without forced sales of investments. At December 31,
2007, substantially all of Harleysville Group’s fixed maturity investment portfolio was rated investment grade and the
investment portfolio did not contain any real estate or mortgage loans. Harleysville Group also invests in equity
securities with the objective of capital appreciation.

Harleysville Group has adopted and follows an investment philosophy which precludes the purchase of non-
investment grade fixed income securities. However, due to uncertainties in the economic environment, it is possible
that the quality of investments held in Harleysville Group’s portfolio may change,

The following table shows the composition of Harleysville Group’s fixed maturity investment portfolio at
amortized cost, excluding short-term investments and securities lending collateral, by rating as of December 31, 2007:

December 31, 2007
Amount Percent
(dollars in thousands)

Rating(1)
U.S. Treasury and U.S. agency bonds (2) $ 623,523 29.0%
Aaa 666,038 31.0
Aa 467,125 21.8
A 344,756 16.1
Baa 26,309 1.2
Ba 15,567 0.7
B 3,991 0.2
Total $ 2147309 100.0%

(1) Ratings assigned by Moody’s Investors Services, Inc.
(2) Includes GNMA pass-through obligations and collateralized mortgage obligations.

Harleysville Group invests in both taxable and tax-exempt fixed income securities as part of its strategy to
maximize after-tax income. Such strategy considers, among other factors, the impact of the alternative minimum tax.
Tax-exempt bonds made up approximately 28%, 27% and 36% of the total investment portfolio at December 31, 2007,
2006 and 2005, respectively.
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The following table shows the composition of Harleysville Group’s investment portfolio at carrying value,
excluding short-term investments and securities lending collateral, by type of security as of December 31, 2007:

December 31, 2007
Amount Percent
(dollars in thousands)

Fixed maturities:

U.S. Treasury obligations $ 84 307 3.7%
U.S. agency obligations 177,149 7.9
Mortgage-backed securities 373,479 16.6 i
Obligations of states and political subdivisions 769,295 342 :
Corporate securities 770,005 34.2 !
Total fixed maturities 2,174,235 96.6 |
Equity securities 76,297 34 !
Total $ 2,250,532 100.0%
Investment results of Harleysville Group's fixed maturity investment portfolio are as shown in the following
table:
Year Ended December 31,
2007 2006 2005
{dollars in thousands)
Invested assets(1) $ 2123708 § 1,954,158 $ 1,733,086
Investment income(2) $ 105,861 $ 95,101 b 86,463
Average yield 5.0% 4.9% 5.0%

(1) Average of the aggregate invested amounts at amortized cost at the beginning and end of the period.
(2) Investment income does not include investment expenses, realized investment gains or losses or provision for
income taxes.

The following table indicates the composition of Harleysville Group’s fixed maturity investment portfolio at
carrying value, excluding short-term investments and securities lending collateral, by time to maturity as of
December 31, 2007:

December 31, 2007
Amount Percent
(dollars in thousands)

Due in{1)
1 year or less $ 266,152 12.2%
Over 1 year through 5 years 784,318 36.1 '
Over 5 years through 10 years 691,630 31.8
Qver 10 years 58,656 2.7
1,800,756 82.8
Mortgage-backed securities 373479 17.2
Total $ 2,174235 100.0%

(1) Based on stated maturity dates with no prepayment assumptions. Actual maturities may differ because borrowers
may have the right to call or prepay obligations with or without call or prepayment penalties.

The average expected life of Harleysville Group's investment portfolio as of December 31, 2007 was
approximately 4.7 years.

Regulation

Insurance companies are subject to supervision and regulation in the states in which they transact business.
Such supervision and regulation relate to numerous aspects of an insurance company’s business and financial
condition. The purpose of such supervision and regulation is the protection of policyholders. The extent of such
supervision and regulation varies, but generally derives from state statutes which delegate regulatory, supervisory and
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administrative authority to state insurance departments. Accordingly, the authority of the state insurance departments
typically includes the establishment of standards of solvency which must be met and maintained by insurers, the
licensing to do business of insurers and agents, the nature of and limitations on investments, the approval process for
premium rates for property and casualty insurance, the provisions which insurers must make for current losses and
future liabilities, the deposit of securities for the benefit of policyholders and the approvai of policy forms. Such
insurance departments also conduct periodic examinations of the affairs of insurance companies and require the filing
of annual and other reports relating to the financial condition of insurance companies.

All of the states in which Harleysville Group and the Mutual Company do business have puaranty fund laws
under which insurers doing business in such states can be assessed up to 2% of annual premiums written by the insurer
in that state in order to fund policyholder liabilities of insolvent insurance companies. Under these laws in general, an
insurer is subject to assessment, depending upon its market share of a given line of business, to assist in the payment of
policyholder and third party claims against insolvent insurers.

State laws also require Harleysville Group to participate in involuntary insurance programs for automobile
insurance, as well as other property and casualty lines, in states in which Harleysville Group writes such lines. These
programs include joint underwriting associations, assigned risk plans, fair access to insurance requirements (FAIR)
plans, reinsurance facilities and wind storm plans. These state laws generally require all companies that write lines
covered by these programs to provide coverage (either directly or through reinsurance) for insureds who cannot obtain
insurance in the voluntary market. The legislation creating these programs usually allocates a pro rata portion of risks
attributable to such insureds to each company on the basis of direct written premiums or the number of automobiles
insured. Generally, state law requires participation in such programs as a condition to doing business. The loss ratio on
insurance written under involuntary programs generally has been greater than the loss ratio on insurance in the
voluntary market.

State insurance holding company acts regulate insurance holding company systems. Each insurance company
in the holding company system is required to register with the insurance supervisory agency of its state of domicile and
furnish certain information concerning transactions between companies within the holding company system that may
materially affect the operations, management or financial condition of the insurer within the system, including the
payment of dividends from the insurance subsidiaries to the Company.

Insurance holding company acts require that all transactions involving any insurer within the holding company
system, including those involving the Mutual Company and the Company’s insurance subsidiaries, must be fair and
equitable to that insurer. Further, approval of the applicable insurance commissioner is required prior to the
consummation of a transaction affecting the control of an insurer.

The Terrorism Risk Insurance Act of 2002 (the Act) established a program that provides a backstop for
insurance-related losses resulting from any act of terrorism as defined. The Act, originally set to expire in 2005, was
extended through December 31, 2007 in December 2005. The Act was extended again through December 31, 2014 in
December 2007 and retitled as the Terrorism Risk Insurance Program Reauthorization Act (TRIPRA) of 2007. Under
the program, the federal government will pay 85% of covered losses after an insurer’s losses exceed a deductible
determined by a statutorily prescribed formula, up to a combined annual aggregate limit for the federal government and
all insurers of $100 billion. If an act of terrorism or acts of terrorism result in covered losses exceeding the $100 billion
annual limit, insurers with losses exceeding their deductibles will not be responsible for additional losses. The
triggering threshold for certifying an act of terrorism is $100 million in 2007 through 20i4. TRIPRA adds coverage for
domestic acts of terror, in addition to foreign acts of terror covered under the previous act.

The statutory formula for determining a company’s deductible for each year is based on the company’s direct
commercial earned premiums for the prior calendar year multiplied by a specified percentage. These percentages are
20% for 2007 through 2014. The following lines of business are excluded from coverage and are not to be included in
the deductible calculation: commercial auto, burglary and thefi, surety, professional liability and farmowners’
multiperil insurance. Based on the Company’s insurance subsidiaries 2007 earned premiums for lines subject to the
Act, our 2008 deductible would be $102 million,

The Act and TRIPRA require all property and casualty insurers to make terrorism insurance coverage
available in all of their covered commercial property and casualty insurance policies (as defined in the Act).
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In the event the Act is not renewed beyond 2014, or is renewed in a materially different form, the Company
may have to attempt to obtain appropriate reinsurance for the related terrorism risk, seek exclusion from coverage
related to terrorism exposure from the appropriate regulatory authorities, limit certain of its writings, or pursue a
solution encompassing aspects of one or more of the foregoing.

The insurance industry has received adverse publicity about alleged anti-competitive activities by certain
insurance brokers and insurers. Harleysville Group primarily distributes its products through its agents and writes
approximately 2% of its premiums through brokers.

The property and casualty insurance industry has been subject to significant public scrutiny and comment
primarily due to concerns regarding solvency issues, rising insurance costs, and the industry’s methods of operations,
Accordingly, regulations and legislation may be adopted or enacted: to provide a greater role for the federal
government in regulation of insurance companies; to strengthen state oversight, particularly in the field of solvency and
investments; to further restrict an insurer’s flexibility in underwriting and pricing risks; and to impose new taxes and
assessments. It is not possible to predict whether, in what form or in what jurisdictions, any of these measures might be
adopted or the effect, if any, on Harleysville Group.

The Company’s insurance subsidiaries generally are restricted by the insurance laws of their respective states
of domicile as to the amount of dividends they may pay to the Company without the prior approval of the respective
state regulatory authorities. Generally, the maximum dividend that may be paid by an insurance subsidiary during any
year without prior regulatory approval is limited to a stated percentage of that subsidiary’s statutory surplus as of a
certain date, or adjusted net income of the subsidiary, for the preceding year. Applying the current regulatory
restrictions as of December 31, 2007, $112.2 million would be available for distribution to Harleysville Group Inc.
after June 5, 2008 without prior approval. The Company’s insurance subsidiaries paid dividends to the Company of
$63.0 million in 2007 and $15.0 million in 2005. No dividends were paid in 2006. An additional $54.6 million of
dividends were declared in 2007 and remain unpaid at December 31, 2007.

Various states have adopted the National Association of Insurance Commissioners (NAIC) risk-based capital
(RBC) standards that require insurance companies to calculate and report statutory capital and surplus needs based on a
formula measuring underwriting, investment and other business risks inherent in an individual company’s operations.
These RBC standards have not affected the operations of Harleysville Group since each of the Company’s insurance
subsidiaries has statutory capital and surplus in excess of RBC requirements.

Harleysville Group is required to file financial statements for its subsidiaries, prepared by using statutory
accounting practices, with state regulatory authorities. The adjustments necessary to reconcile net income and
shareholders’ equity determined by using SAP to net income and shareholders’ equity determined in accordance with
GAAP are as follows:

Net Income Shareholders’ Equity
Year Ended December 31, December 31,
2007 2006 2005 2007 2006
(in thousands)

SAP amounts $ 114343  § 131,263 $ 62,330 § 671,895 $§ 686,149
Adjustments:

Deferred policy acquisition costs (363) (1,856) 3,418 101,954 102,317

Deferred income taxes (10,728) (13,120) (513) (1,078) 10,361

Unrealized investment gains 27,325 5,262

Pension 1,573 118 (1,701) (7,445) (18,251)

Non-admitted assets 6,260 5,987

Other, net (2,853) (5,006) (1,276) 8,574 8,486
Holding company(1) (1,918) (330) (827) (48 644) (88,149)
GAAP amounts § 100,054 $ 111,069 § 61431 § 758841 § 712,162

(1) Represents the GAAP loss and equity amounts for Harleysville Group Inc., excluding the earnings of and
investment in subsidiaries.
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Business - Relationship with the Mutual Company

Harleysville Group's operations are interrelated with the operations of the Mutual Company due to the pooling
arrangement and other factors. The Mutual Company owned approximately 53% of the issued and outstanding common
stock of Harleysville Group Inc. at December 31, 2007. Harleysville Group employees provide a variety of services to
the Mutual Company and its wholly owned subsidiaries. The cost of facilities and employees required to conduct the
business of both companies is charged on a cost-allocated basis. Harleysville Group also manages the operations of the
Mutual Company and its wholly owned subsidiaries pursuant to a management agreement which commenced
January 1, 1993 under which Harleysville Group receives a management fee. Harleysville Group received
$6.3 million, $6.4 million, and $6.7 million for the years ended December 31, 2007, 2006 and 2005, respectively, for
all such management services.

All of the Company’s officers are officers of the Mutual Company, and six of the Company’s nine directors
are directors of the Mutual Company. A coordinating committee exists to review and evaluate the pooling agreement
and other material transactions between Harleysville Group and the Mutual Company and is responsible for matters
involving actual or potential conflicts of interest between the two companies. The coordinating committee currently
consists of seven non-employee directors, three from Harleysville Group Inc. and three from the Mutual Company all
of whom are not members of both Boards and one, a non-voting Chairman, who is a member of both Boards. The
decisions of the coordinating committee are binding on the two companies. No intercompany transaction can be
authorized by the coordinating committee unless the Company’s committee members conclude that such transaction is
fair and equitable to Harleysville Group.

The Mutual Company leases the home office from a company subsidiary and it shares most of the facility with
Harleysville Group. Rental income under the lease was $4.1 million for 2007 and 2006, and $4.0 million for 2005.
Harleysville Group believes that the lease terms are no less favorable to it than if the property were leased to a non-
affiliate,

In connection with the acquisition of Mid-America and HIC New York, the Company borrowed
approximately $18.5 million from the Mutual Company. See Note 7 of the Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements.
For additional information with respect to transactions with the Mutual Company, see Note 2 of the Notes to
Consolidated Financial Statements.

Employees

All employees are paid by Harleysville Group Inc. and, accordingly, are considered to be employees of
Harleysville Group Inc. As of December 31, 2007, there were 1,800 employees. They provide a variety of services to
the Mutual Company and its wholly owned subsidiaries. See “Business-Relationship with the Mutual Company” and
Note 2 of the Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements.

Available Information

The Company maintains a website at www.harleysvillegroup com. Qur annual report on Form 10-K, quarterly
reports on Form 10-Q and current reports on Form 8-K, and amendments to those reports, filed or furnished pursuant to
Section 13(a) or 15(d) of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, are available free of charge on our website as soon as
practicable after electronic filing of such material with, or furnishing it to, the Securities and Exchange Commission.

Item lA. Risk Factors.

For a discussion of risk factors, see “Management’s Discussion and Analysis - Risk Factors.”

Item IB. Unresolved Staff Comments.

None.
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Item 2.  Properties.

The buildings which house the headquarters of Harleysville Group and the Mutual Company are leased to the
Mutual Company by a subsidiary of Harleysville Group. See “Business-Relationship with the Mutual Company.” The
Mutual Company charges Harleysville Group for an appropriate portion of the rent under an intercompany allocation
agreement. The buildings containing the headquarters of Harleysville Group and the Mutual Company have
approximately 220,000 square feet of office space. Harleysville Group also rents office facilities in certain of the states
in which it does business.

Item 3.  Legal Proceedings.

Harleysville Group is a party to numerous lawsuits arising in the ordinary course of its insurance business.
Harleysville Group believes that the resolution of these lawsuits will not have a material adverse effect on its financial
condition and results of operations.

Item4. Submission of Matters to a Vote of Security Holders.

No matter was submitted to a vote of the security holders during the fourth quarter of 2007.
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PARTII

Item 5.  Market for Registrant’s Common Stock, Related Stockholder Matters and Issuer Purchases of Equity

Securities.

The stock of Harleysville Group Inc. is quoted on the Nasdaq National Market System, and assigned the
symbol HGIC. At the close of business on March 3, 2008, the approximate number of holders of record of Harleysville
Group Inc.’s commen stock was 2,927 (counting all shares held in single nominee registration as one shareholder).

The payment of dividends is subject to the discretion of Harleysville Group Inc.’s Board of Directors which
considers, among other factors, Harleysville Group’s operating results, overall financial condition, capital requirements
and general business conditions each quarter. The present quarterly dividend of $0.25 per share paid in each of the third
and fourth quarters of 2007 is expected to continue during 2008. As a holding company, one of Harleysville Group
Inc.’s sources of cash with which to pay dividends is dividends from its subsidiaries. Harleysville Group Inc.’s
insurance company subsidiaries are subject to state laws that restrict their ability to pay dividends. See Note 8 of the
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements.

The following table sets forth the amount of cash dividends declared per share, and the high and low bid
quotations as reported by Nasdaq for Harleysville Group Inc.’s common stock for each quarter during the past two
years.

Cash
Dividends
High Low Declared
2007
First Quarter $ 3558 % 3150 § .19
Second Quarter 34.12 29.99 .19
Third Quarter 34.66 27.96 25
Fourth Quarter 37.83 30.90 25
Cash
Dividends
High Low Declared
2006
First Quarter $ 3014 § 2619 § .175
Second Quarter 31.66 27.50 175
Third Quarter 36.21 31.36 19
Fourth Quarter 38.68 34.74 19

Securities Authorized for Issuance Under Equity Plans. See “Security Ownership of Certain Beneficial
Owners and Management and Related Stockholder Matters,” which is incorporated by reference to our definitive Proxy
Statement for our annual meeting of stockholders to be held on April 23, 2008, which shall be filed with the SEC
within 120 days after the end of our fiscal year.

Unregistered Sales of Equity Securities and Use of Proceceds.

None.
Issuer Purchases of Equity Securities

Total Number of

Shares Purchased
as Part of Publicly
Announced Plans

Total Number

of Shares Average Price

Maximum Number
of Shares that
May Yet Be Purchased

Period Purchased @ Paid Per Share or Programs Under the Program
October 1 - October 31, 2007 53,402 $31.01 53,402 1,318,990
November 1 - November 30, 2007 54,429 $31.01 54,429 1,264,561

(1) InJune 2007, the Board of Directors authorized the Company to repurchase up to 1.6 million shares of its outstanding
common stock for a two year period in the open market or in privately negotiated transactions. The Company was
authorized to repurchase shares from Harleysville Mutual Insurance Company (Mutual), which owns 53% of the
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Company’s stock, at fair market value terms on the date of purchase and from the public float in amounts that are
proportional to the respective ownership percentages of Mutual and the public float as of the authorization date. This
program was completed on July 18, 2007. On August 1, 2007, the Board of Directors authorized the Company to
repurchase an additional 1.6 million shares of its outstanding common stock for a two year period in the open market
or in privately negotiated transactions. The Company is authorized to repurchase shares from Mutual at fair market
value terms on the date of purchase and from the public float in amounts that are proportional to the respective
ownership percentages of Mutual and the public float as of the authorization date. All such repurchases were effected
under Rule 10b5-1 plans.

Represents the total number of shares repurchased during the period, of which 107,831 of these shares were settled
for cash on or before December 31, 2007,

Stock Performance Chart.

The following graph shows changes over the past five-year period (all full calendar-year periods) in the value

of 3100 invested in: 1) Harleysville Group common stock; 2) the NASDAQ Stock Market index; and 3) the Peer Group
index. All values are as of the last trading day of each year.

Comparison of 5-Year Cumulative Total Stockholder Return

$250.0
$200.0 —.
I i
- - .‘:.‘ w A
________ |-----_:_';"é*"":"- '
$150.0 e R — %
- - - - ‘r o
$50.0
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2002 2003 2004 2005 2006 2007
—e—— Harleysville Group Inc. ---w--- Nasdag — - & - - Peer Group
2002 2003 2004 2005 2006 2007
Harleysville Group Inc. 100.0 77.5 96.1 110.0 148.0 154.5
NASDAQ 100.0 149.5 162.7 166.2 1826 198.0
Peer Group 100.0 123.6 149.7 168.1 191.1 188.8
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The year-end values of each investment shown in the preceding graph are based on share price appreciation
plus dividends, with the dividends reinvested as of the day such dividends were ex-dividend. The calculations exclude
trading commissions and taxes. Total stockholder returns from each investment, whether measured in dollars
or percentages, can be calculated from the year-end investment values shown in the legend.

The graph was prepared by the Center for Research in Security Prices (CRSP). The NASDAQ National
Market System index includes all U.S. Companies in the NASDAQ National Market System and Peer Group index
includes 55 NASDAQ Company stocks in SIC Major Group 633 (SIC 6330-6339: U.S. and foreign, fire, marine and
casualty insurance). A complete list of these companies may be obtained from CRSP at the University of Chicago
Graduate School of Business, 1101 East 58th Street, Chicago, Illinois 60637; (773) 702-7467. CRSP reweights the
indices daily, using the market capitalization on the previous trading day.

Item 6. Selected Financial Data.

At December 31, 2007, Harleysville Group Inc. (Company) was approximately 53% owned by Harleysville
Mutual Insurance Company (the Mutual Company). Harleysville Group Inc. and its wholly owned subsidiaries
(collectively, Harleysville Group) are engaged in property and casualty insurance. These subsidiaries are: Harleysville-
Atlantic Insurance Company, Hatleysville Insurance Company, Harleysville Insurance Company of New Jersey,
Harleysville Insurance Company of New York, Harleysville Insurance Company of Chio, Harleysville Lake States
Insurance Company, Harleysville Preferred Insurance Company, Harleysville Worcester Insurance Company, Mid-
America Insurance Company (which was merged into Harleysville Worcester Insurance Company in 2007), and
Harleysville Ltd., a real estate partnership that owns the home office.

Year Ended December 31,
2007 2006 2005 2004 2003
{in thousands, except per share data)

Income Statement Data(l):

Premiums earned $ 833024 $ 838,821 $ 841,567 $ 837665 $ 823407
Investment income, net 110,827 102,609 90,572 87,171 86,597
Realized investment gains (losses) 875 40,605 233 12,667 (920)
Total revenues 962,012 999,171 948,340 953,392 024,965
Income (loss) before income taxes 142,995 156,368 78,921 55,637 (89,450)
Income taxes (benefit) 42,941 46,241 17,490 8,759 (41,821)
Net income (loss) 100,054 111,069 61,431 46,878 (47,629)
Basic earnings (loss) per share b 324 % 358§ 202 S 1.56 § (1.59)
Diluted earnings (loss) per share b 319 3 352 % 201 § 1.55 8§ (1.59)
Cash dividends per share 3 88 % 7308 69 3 68 3% 67
Balance Sheet Data at Year End:

Total investments $ 2358473 § 2,249,014 § 2,064,388 § 1,966,917 $ 1,854,633
Total assets 3,072,445 2,990,984 2,905,266 2,718,063 2,680,389
Debt 118,500 118,500 118,500 119,625 120,145
Shareholders’ equity 758,841 712,162 614,383 587,924 572,747
Shareholders’ equity per share $ 2503 % 2249 % 2007 % 1947 § 19.16

(1) The Company’s insurance subsidiaries participate in an underwriting pooling arrangement with the Mutual

Company. Harleysville Group’s participation was 72% for all years presented. See “Management’s Discussion
and Analysis of Results of Operations and Financial Condition” and Note 2(a) of the Notes to Consolidated
Financial Statements.
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Item?7. Management’s Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations.

Certain of the statements contained herein (other than statements of historical facts) are forward-looking
statements. Such forward-looking statements are made pursuant to the safe harbor provisions of the Private Securities
Litigation Reform Act of 1995 and include estimates and assumptions related to economic, competitive, legislative and
regulatory developments. These forward-looking statements are subject to change and uncertainty which are, in many
instances, beyond the Company’s control and have been made based upon management’s expectations and beliefs
concerning future developments and their potential effect on Harleysville Group. There can be no assurance that future
developments will be in accordance with management’s expectations or that the effect of future developments on
Harleysville Group will be those anticipated by management. Actual financial results, including premium levels and
underwriting results, could differ materially from those anticipated by Harleysville Group depending on the outcome of
certain factors, which may include changes in property and casualty loss trends and reserves; catastrophe losses;
competition in insurance product pricing; government regulation and changes therein which may impede the ability to
charge adequate rates; performance of the financial markets; fluctuations in interest rates; availability and price of
reinsurance; the A. M. Best rating of Harleysville Group; and the status of labor markets in which the Company
operates. In addition, see “Management’s Discussion and Analysis - Risk Factors.”

Overview

The Company’s net income is primarily determined by three elements:
e net premium income
+  investment income
« amounts paid or reserved to settle insured claims

Variations in premium income are subject to a number of factors, including
« limitations on premium rates arising from the competitive market place or regulation
e limitations on available business arising from a need to maintain the quality of underwritten risks
e the Company’s ability to maintain its A- (“excellent”) rating by A.M. Best

+ the ability of the Company to maintain a reputation for efficiency and fairness in claims
administration

Variations on investment income are subject to a number of factors, including

e general interest rate levels

s specific adverse events affecting the issuers of debt obligations held by the Company

e changes in the prices of equity securities generalty and those held by the Company specifically
Loss and loss settlement expenses are affected by a number of factors, inciuding

+ the quality of the risks underwritten by the Company

+ the nature and severity of catastrophic losses

= the availability, cost and terms of reinsurance

» underlying settlement costs, including medical and legal costs

The Company seeks to manage each of the foregoing to the extent within its control. Many of the foregoing
factors are partially, or entirely, outside of the control of the Company.
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Critical Accounting Peolicies and Estimates

The consolidated financial statements are prepared in conformity with U.S. generally accepted accounting
principles, which require Harleysville Group to make estimates and assumptions (see Note 1 of the Notes to
Consolidated Financial Statements). Harleysville Group believes that of its significant accounting policies, the
following may involve a higher degree of judgment and estimation. The judgments, or the methodology on which the
judgments are made, are reviewed quarterly with the Audit Committee.

Liabilities for Losses and Loss Settlement Expenses. The liability for losses and loss settlement expenses
represents estimates of the ultimate unpaid cost of all losses incurred, including losses for claims which have not yet
been reported to Harleysville Group. The amount of loss reserves for reported claims is based primarily upon a case-
by-case evaluation of the type of risk involved, knowledge of the circumstances surrounding each claim and the
insurance policy provisions relating to the type of loss, The amounts of loss reserves for unreported claims and loss
settlement expense reserves are determined utilizing historical information by line of insurance as adjusted to current
conditions. Inflation is implicitly provided for in the reserving function through analysis of costs, trends and reviews of
historical reserving results. Estimates of the liabilities are reviewed and updated on a regular basis using the most
recent information on reported claims and a variety of actuarial techniques. It is expected that such estimates will be
more or less than the amounts ultimately paid when the claims are settled. Changes in these estimates are reflected in
current operations.

Investments. Generally, unrealized investment gains or losses on investments carried at fair value, net of
applicable income taxes, are reflected directly in shareholders’ equity as a component of comprehensive income and,
accordingly, have no effect on net income. However, if the fair value of an investment declines below its cost and that
decline is deemed other than temporary, the amount of the decline below cost is charged to earnings. Harleysville
Group monitors its investment portfolio and at least quarterly reviews investments that have experienced a decline in
fair value below cost to evaluate whether the decline is other than temporary. Such evaluations consider, among other
things, the magnitude and reasons for a decline, the prospects for the fair value to recover in the near term and
Harleysville Group’s ability and intent to retain the investment for a period of time sufficient to allow for a recovery in
value. Future adverse investment market conditions, or poor operating results of underlying investments, could resuit in
an impairment charge in the future.

Harleysville Group has written down to fair value, without exception, any equity security that has declined
below cost by more than 20% and maintained such decline for six months, or by 50% or more, in the quarter in which
either such decline occurred. In some cases, securities that have declined by a lesser amount or for a shorter period of
time are written down if the evaluation indicates the decline is other than temporary. Fair value of equity securities is
based on the closing market value. The fair value of mutual fund holdings is based on the closing net asset value
reported by the fund. The fair value of fixed maturities is based upon data supplied by an independent pricing service. It
can be difficult to determine the fair value of non-traded securities but Harleysville Group does not own a material
amount of non-traded securities.

Policy Acquisition Costs. Policy acquisition costs, such as commissions, premium taxes and certain other
underwriting and agency expenses that vary with and are primarily related to the production of business, are deferred
and amortized over the effective period of the related insurance policies and in proportion to the premiums eamed, The
method followed in computing deferred policy acquisition costs limits the amount of such deferred costs to their
estimated realizable value. The estimation of net realizable value takes into account the premium to be earned, related
investment income over the claim paying period, expected losses and loss settlement expenses, and certain other costs
expected to be incurred as the premium is earned. Future changes in estimates, the most significant of which is
expected losses and loss settlement expenses, may require adjustments to deferred policy acquisition costs. If the
estimation of net realizable value indicates that the acquisition costs are unrecoverable, further analyses are completed
to determine if a reserve is required to provide for losses that may exceed the related unearned premiums.

Contingencies. Besides claims related to its insurance products, Harleysville Group is subject to proceedings,
lawsuits and claims in the normal course of business. Harleysville Group assesses the likelihood of any adverse
outcomes to these matters as well as potential ranges of probable losses. There can be no assurance that actual
outcomes will be consistent with those assessments.

The application of certain of these critical accounting policies to the years ended December 31, 2007 and 2006
is discussed in greater detail below.
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Results of Operations

Harleysville Group underwrites property and casualty insurance in both the personal and commercial lines of
insurance. The personal lines of insurance include both auto and homeowners, and the commercial lines include auto,
commercial multi-peril and workers compensation. The business is marketed primarily in the eastern and midwestern
United States through independent agents.

Historically, Harleysville Group’s results of operations have been influenced by factors affecting the property
and casualty insurance industry in general. The operating results of the United States property and casualty insurance
industry have been subject to significant variations due to competition, weather, catastrophic events, regulation, the
availability and cost of satisfactory reinsurance, general economic conditions, judicial trends, fluctuations in interest
rates and other changes in the investment environment.

Harleysvilte Group’s premium growth and underwriting results have been, and continue to be, influenced by
market conditions. Insurance industry price competition has often made it difficult both to obtain and to retain properly
priced personal and commercial lines business. It is management’s policy to continue to maintain its underwriting
standards.

The key elements of Harleysville Group’s business model are the sales of properly priced and underwritten
personal and commercial property and casualty insurance through independent agents and the investment of the
premiums in a manner designed to assure that claims and expenses can be paid while providing a return on the capital
employed. Loss trends and investment performance are critical factors in influencing the success of the business model.
These factors are affected by the factors impacting the insurance industry in general as described above and factors
unique to Harleysville Group as described in the following discussion.

Transactions with Affiliates

The Company’s property and casualty subsidiaries participate in a pooling agreement with the Mutual
Company. The pooling agreement provides for the allocation of premiums, losses, loss settlement expenses and
underwriting expenses between Harleysville Group and the Mutual Company. Harleysville Group is not liable for any
losses incurred by the Mutual Company, Preferred and HNJ prior to January 1, 1986, the date the pooling agreement
became effective. Harleysville Group’s participation in the pool has been 72% since January I, 1998.

Effective January 1, 2008, the Company’s property and casualty subsidiaries and the Mutual Company and its
property and casualty subsidiary, Harleysville Pennland Insurance Company (Pennland) amended their intercompany
pooling agreement to increase Harleysville Group’s share of the pool from 72% to 80%. Harleysville Group received
cash and investments of $192.1 mitlion on January 3, 2008 associated with the transfer of assets and liabilities from the
Mutual Company and Pennland to Harleysville Group in connection with the pool change.

When the Company’s subsidiaries” pooling participation increases, there is a larger retrocession of this pooled
business from the Mutual Company. Through this retrocession, Harleysville Group is assuming a larger share of
premiums, losses and underwriting expenses for current and future periods originating both from its subsidiaries and
the Mutual Company. An increase in Harleysville Group’s pooling participation results in a larger share of the pooled
liabilities being assumed by Harleysville Group. Cash and investments are received by Harleysville Group equal to this
greater share of loss reserves, unearned premiums and other insurance liabilities {(primarily commissions and premium
taxes) less a ceding commission based on acquisition costs related to unearned premiums. An increase in pool
participation also increases Harleysville Group’s leverage and exposure to prior period development,

Because the pooling agreement does not relieve Harleysville Group of primary liability as the originating
insurer, there is a concentration of credit risk arising from business ceded to the Mutual Company. However, the
pooling agreement provides for the right of offset and the amount of credit risk with the Mutual Company was not
material at December 31, 2007 and 2006, and is not expected to be materially different after the pool change effective
Jamuary 1, 2008. The Mutual Company has an A. M. Best rating of “A-" {Excellent).

Harleysville Group has attempted to reduce the potential impact of future catastrophes by achieving greater
geographic distribution of risks, reducing exposure in catastrophe-prone areas and through reinsurance, including an
agreement with the Mutual Company. Effective January 1, 1997, Harleysville Group entered into a reinsurance
agreement with Mutual Company whereby the Mutual Company, in return for a reinsurance premium, reinsured
accurnulated catastrophe losses up to $14.4 million in a quarter for 2005. This reinsurance coverage was in excess of a
retention of $3.6 million in a quarter for 2005. The agreement excluded catastrophe losses resulting from earthquakes,
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terrorism or hurricanes, and supplemented the existing external catastrophe reinsurance program. The premiums for this
reinsurance were established in consultation with an independent actuarial firm. The agreement was terminated
December 31, 2005 and coverage was not placed as it is no longer deemed necessary based on the current catastrophe
risk profile. Under this agreement, Harleysville Group ceded premiums earned of $8.8 million and losses incurred of
$(0.2) million to the Mutual Company in 2005.

Harleysville Ltd. is a subsidiary of the Company and leases the home office to the Mutual Company, which
shares the facility with Harleysville Group. Rental income under the lease was $4.1 million, $4.1 million and
$4.0 million for 2007, 2006 and 2005, respectively, and is included in other income after elimination of intercompany
amounts of $2.5 million in 2007, $2.5 million in 2006 and $2.4 million in 2005. The lease has a five-year term expiring
December 31, 2009 and includes a formula for additional rent for any additions, improvements or renovations. The
Mutual Company is responsible for the building operating expenses including maintenance and repairs. The pricing of
the lease was based upon an appraisal obtained from an independent real estate appraiser.

Harleysville Group provides certain management services to the Mutual Company and other affiliates.
Harleysville Group received a fee of $6.3 million, $6.4 million and $6.7 million in 2007, 2006 and 2005, respectively,
for its services under these management agreements. Under related agreements, Harleysville Group serves as the
paymaster for Harleysville companies, with each company being charged for its proportionate share of salary and
employee benefits expense based upon time allocation. The level of fees has been approved by each state insurance
department having jurisdiction.

The Company’s insurance subsidiaries and the Mutual Company are party to an Equipment and Supplies
Allocation Agreement whereby equipment and supplies are shared between parties. Ultimate expense for such items is
allocated to Harleysville Group based on its pooling participation. The Mutual Company has purchased and developed
certain equipment and software which is expensed by Harleysville Group based on its pooling participation as the items
are depreciated or amortized.

Intercompany balances are created primarily from the pooling arrangement (settled quarterly), allocation of
common expenses, collection of premium balances and payment of claims (settled monthly). No interest is charged or
received on intercompany balances due to the timely settlement terms and nature of the items.

Harleysville Group borrowed $18.5 million from the Mutual Company in connection with the acquisition of
Mid-America and HIC New York in 1991, It was a demand loan with a stated maturity in March 1998 which had been
extended to March 2005, In February 2005, the maturity was extended again to March 2012 and the interest rate
became LIBOR plus 0.45%, which was a commercially reasonable market rate in 2005. Interest expense on this loan
was $1.1 million, $1.0 million and $0.7 miilion in 2007, 2006 and 20035, respectively.

Harteysville Group has no material relationships with current or former members of management other than
compensatory plans and arrangements disclosed or described in the Company’s public filings.

OAf Balance Sheet Arrangements

Harleysville Group has off-balance-sheet credit risk related to approximately $78.0 million and $77.0 million
of premium balances due to the Mutual Company from agents and insureds at December 31, 2007 and 2006,
respectively. The Mutual Company bills and collects such receivables on behalf of Harleysville Group for efficiency
reasons. Harleysville Group recognizes any associated bad debts, which have not been material.

2007 Compared to 2006

Premiums earned decreased $5.8 million for the year ended December 31, 2007. The decrease was primarily
composed of a decrease in premiums earned for commercial lines of $3.7 million and a decrease of $2.1 million in
personal lines premiums earned. The decrease in premiums eamed for commercial lines was primarily due to a
decrease in commercial auto premiums earned due to fewer policy counts and a decrease in earned premiums assumed
from involuntary pools. The decline in premiums earned for personal lines was primarily due to fewer policy counts.
The reduction in personal lines volume was driven primarily by a reduction of personal automobile business from the
continued implementation of more stringent underwriting processes, partially offset by an increase in homeowners
business due to higher average premiums.
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Investment income increased $8.2 million for the year ended December 31, 2007, resulting from an increase in
invested assets and a greater percentage of invested assets in fixed maturity securities.

Net realized investment gains decreased $39.7 million for the year ended December 31, 2007, primarily due to
gains on the sale of equity securities in the second quarter of 2006.

There were impairment charges of $1.4 million in 2007 and no impairment charges in 2006,

In April 2007, bonds with an amortized cost of $1,882,000 were transferred from the held to maturity category
to the available for sale category due to a significant deterioration in the credit worthiness of the issuer. An impairment
loss of $118,000 was recognized on this security. The security was sold in the third quarter of 2007 at a gain of
$76,000.

Harleysville Group holds securities with unrealized losses at December 31, 2007 as follows:

Length of Unrealized Loss

Unrealized Less Than Over 12

Fair Value Loss 12 Months Months
(in thousands)

Fixed maturities:
U.S. Treasury securities and
obligations of U.S. government

corporations and agencies $ 19,022 §% %9 3 24 8 55
Obligations of states and political
subdivisions 104,500 914 66 848
Corporate securities 278,961 4323 1,898 2,425
Mortgage-backed securities 123,788 1,674 570 1,104
Total fixed maturities $§ 526271 § 6990 $§ 2558 § 4,432
Equity securities $ 781 $ 241 § 241

Of the total fixed maturity securities with an unrealized loss at December 31, 2007, securities with a fair value
of $424.0 million and an unrealized loss of $5.9 million are classified as available for sale and are carried at fair value
on the balance sheet while securities with a fair value of $102.3 million and an unrealized loss of $1.1 million are
classified as held to maturity on the balance sheet and are carried at amortized cost.

The fixed maturity investments with continuous unrealized losses for less than twelve months were primarily
due to a widening of credit spreads rather than a decline in credit quality. There are $323.1 million in fixed maturity
securities, at fair value, that at December 31, 2007, had been below amortized cost for over twelve months. The
$4.4 million of unrealized losses on such securities primarily relates to securities which carry investment grade ratings
and have declined in fair value roughly in line with market interest rate changes. Harleysville Group currently has the
ability and intent to hold these securities at least until recovery.

There are four positions that comprise the unrealized loss in equity investments at December 31, 2007. They
have not been below cost for significant continuous amounts of time. Harleysville Group has been monitoring these
securities and it is possible that some may be written down in the income statement in the future.

Income before income taxes and cumulative effect of accounting change decreased $13.4 million for the year
ended December 31, 2007 compared to the prior year, The decrease was primarily due to a decrease in reatized
investtnent gains, partially offset by the increase in investment income and improved underwriting results.

The improved underwriting results in 2007 were primarily due to lower loss severity, lower catastrophe losses
and lower underwriting expenses.

An insurance company’s statutory combined ratio is a standard measure of underwriting profitability. This
ratio is the sum of (1) the ratio of incurred tosses and loss settlement expenses to net eamned premium, (2) the ratio of
expenses incurred for commissions, premium taxes, administrative and other underwriting expenses to net written
premium, and (3) the ratio of dividends to policyholders to net earned premium. The combined ratio does not reflect
investment income, federal income taxes or other non-operating income or expense. A ratio of less than 100 percent
generally indicates underwriting profitability. Harleysville Group's statutory combined ratio decreased to 96.7% for the
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year ended December 31, 2007 from 98.6% for the year ended December 31, 2006. Such decrease was due to improved
underwriting results in commercial lines, partially offset by a lower underwriting gain in personal lines.

The statutory combined ratios by line of business for the year ended December 31, 2007 as compared to the
year ended December 31, 2006 were as follows:

For the Year Ended

December 31,
2007 2006

Commercial:
Automobile 94, 7% 99.3%
Workers compensation 112.2% 117.2%
Commercial multi-peril 97.8% 98.9%
Other commercial 83.8% 86.6%
Total commercial 97.5% 100.3%

Personal:

Automobile 99.7% 99.3%
Homeowners 86.8% 82.6%
Other personal 79.8% 69.8%
Total personal 92.7% 90.6%
Total personal and commercial 96.7% 98.6%

The commercial lines statutory combined ratio decreased to 97.5% for the year ended December 31, 2007
from 100.3% for the year ended December 31, 2006. The decrease is primarily due to declines in the combined ratio for
all lines of business. Favorable prior accident year development as well as improved underwriting results in the current
accident year contributed to the decreases in the commercial auto and commercial multi-peril lines of business. The
decrease in the commercial auto combined ratio was primarily due to the recognition of favorable development of
$10.2 miltion in 2007, while favorable development of $5.1 million was recognized in 2006. The decrease in the
commercial multi-peril combined ratio was due to improved underwriting results in the current accident year. The
decrease in the workers compensation combined ratio was primarily due to improved underwriting results in the current
accident year.

The personal lines statutory combined ratio increased to 92.7% for the year ended December 31, 2007 from
90.6% for the year ended December 31, 2006 primarily due to less favorable underwriting results in the current
accident year.

Reserves for unpaid losses and loss settlement expenses are estimated for case reserves and losses incurred but
not reported (IBNR) separately. The sum of case reserves and IBNR represents the Company’s estimate of total unpaid
loss and loss settlement expense. Case reserves are determined for each reported claim by the Company’s claims
organization reflecting the known circumstances of the individual claim. The Company’s actuaries calculate IBNR by
reducing their estimate of ultimate loss and loss settlement expense by cumulative paid loss and loss settlement expense
and case reserves. Ultimate losses are re-estimated for each line of business on a quarterly basis using the most current
loss and claim data as of the quarter end.

In addition to analyzing reserves on a line of business basis, reserving categories are identified and reviewed.
For example, the following categories for the Commercial Auto Liability line of business are analyzed quarterly:
Commercial Auto Liability Bodily Injury; Commercial Auto Liability Property Damage; and Commercial Auto
Liability Excess. In the discussion that follows, these categories are referred to by the label “line of business.”

In the course of our quarterly reserve estimation process, several standard loss reserving methods and
procedures are utilized to derive estimates of ultimate loss for each line of business, including:

¢ Paid Loss Development Method
¢ Incurred Loss Development Method
» Incurred Counts and Averages Method (Based on Exponential Fit of Severity)

¢ Bornhuetter-Ferguson Method
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Any individual method used to estimate loss reserves has its advantages and disadvantages based on trends,
changes within the external business environment, changes in internal company processes and procedures and any bias
that may be inherent in the methodology. The actuaries give consideration to the relative strengths and weaknesses of
each of the methods to derive a selected point estimate within the range. Following is a general description of each of
the metheds used:

e  Paid Loss Development Method: The Paid Loss Development Method uses historical payment patterns to
project future payments as of a given evaluation date to ultimate loss. Estimates using this method are not
affected by changes in case reserving practices that might have occurred during the review period, but
may be understated as this method does not take into account large unpaid claims. This method is also
susceptible to any changes in the rate of claim settlements or shifts in the size of claims setiled.

A number of indications of ultimate loss may be produced from the Paid Loss Development Method since
a number of loss development factors (LDFs) may be selected. The actuaries produce and review several
indications of ultimate loss using this method based on various LDF selections as judged appropriate,
such as

s 3-Year Average (straight average and loss-weighted average)
e  5-Year Average (straight average and loss-weighted average)
s  5-Year Excluding Highest and Lowest LDFs

o  All-Year loss-weighted average

e  Selected LDF Pattern (LDFs are selected for each evaluation based on the actuaries’ review of the
historical development)

o Incurred Loss Development Method: The Incurred Loss Development Method is similar to the paid
method, but instead uses historical incutred (case reserves plus payments) patterns to project future
incurred losses as of a given evaluation date to ultimate loss. In many cases, the incurred development
method is preferred over the paid method as it includes the additional information provided by the
aggregation of individual case reserves. The resulting LDFs tend to be lower and more stable than those
of the paid development method. However, the incurred development method may be affected by changes
in case reserving practices and any unusually large individual claims.

As with the Paid Loss Development Method, various indications of ultimate loss may be produced from
the Incurred Loss Development Method. The actuaries produce and review several indications of ultimate
loss using this method based on various LDF selections.

e Incurred Counts and Averages Method: This method is used to estimate ultimate loss by separately
estimating ultimate counts and severity (average loss per claim) components of ultimate loss. Both the
ultimate claim counts and ultimate severity are estimated using a loss development factor approach
similar to the Incurred Loss Development Method. For this reason, the same considerations discussed in
the Incurred Loss Development Method apply to this method as well.

An ultimate severity is selected by fitting an exponential curve to the historical ultimate severities
indicated using the ratio of the ultimate loss and ultimate claim counts. This method yields ultimate
severities that are based on the underlying historical trends in the data. Ultimate claim counts and ultimate
severities are multiplied together to produce an estimate of ultimate losses.

This method is useful in more recent accident years where the data is not mature and is especially useful
when loss development patterns are volatile or not well established.

e Bornhuetter-Ferguson Method: The Bornhuetter-Ferguson Method is a blended method that explicitly
takes into account both actual loss development to date and expected future loss emergence. Two versions
of this method exist: one based on paid loss and one based on incurred loss. This method uses the selected
loss development patterns from the Development Methods to calculate the expected percentage of loss
unpaid (or unreported). The expected component of the method is calculated by multiplying earned
premium for the given exposure period by a selected a priori loss ratio. The resulting dollars are then
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multiplied by the expected percentage of unpaid (or unreported) loss described above. This provides an
estimate of future loss payments (or reporting) that is then added to actual paid (or incurred) loss data to
produce estimated ultimate loss.

Each of the methodologies described above (and their derivatives) are reviewed for each line of business. This
approach allows the actuaries to identify and respond to the unique characteristics of each line of business. Further,
since long-term historical data is reviewed, changes in development patterns within a line of business may likewise be
identified and considered in the actuaries’ process of selecting ultimate loss.

An actuarial best estimate of ultimate loss is selected for each line of business based on a review of the
indications produced by the above methodologies. More consideration is given to those methods that the actuaries
deem to be more appropriate in a particular situation. In addition, other metrics such as claim closing ratios, average
case reserve levels, paid loss to incurred loss ratios, individual large loss information, and recent insurance pricing
changes are reviewed to help the actuaries select the most appropriate estimates of ultimate loss.

The selection of the ultimate loss is based on information unique to each line of business and accident year and
the judgment and expertise of the actuaries.

e  Short-Tail versus Long-Tail Lines of Business: The reserving methods described above are generally
applied to each line of business, regardless of their classification as short-tail or long-tail. “Tail” refers to
the time period between the occurrence of a loss and the final settlement of the claim. The merits of an
individual reserving method relative to the line of business and age of accident period are considered in
the actuaries’ process of selecting ultimate loss.

Short-tail lines of business, by definition, develop to their ultimate value faster than long-tail lines of
business. Property coverages including inland marine along with automobile physical damage coverages
are considered short-tail lines of business. Automobile Liability, General Liability, Commercial Multi-
Peril Liability and Workers’ Compensation are considered long-tail lines of business. For many liability
claims, significant periods of time may elapse between the occurrence of the loss, the reporting of the
loss, and the final settlement of the claim. Workers’ Compensation claims can result in providing medical
benefits and wage replacement over the course of an injured worker’s lifetime.

In general, more consideration may be given to the results of the development methodologies for short-tail
lines than to long-tail lines for accident periods of the same maturity. For example, the indicated ultimate
loss using the Incurred Loss Development Method for the most recent accident year is generally
considered more reliable for a short-tail line, such as Homeowners Property than a long-tail line, such as
Workers” Compensation.

As mentioned previously, the selection of ultimate loss is based on information unique to each line of
business and accident year subject to exceptions, such as the emergence of one or more unusually large
claims in a particular accident period for a short-tail line. In this case, the indications produced by the
development methods may be overstated (due to development of ultimate losses in excess of policy
limits) and such information would be considered in the actuaries’ process of selecting ultimate loss.

o Immature Accident Periods: The Paid Loss Development Method is generally given less consideration
than the Incurred Loss Development Method for less mature accident periods since the relatively low
magnitude of losses paid at early evaluations tends to result in less reliable indications from the Paid Loss
Development Method. For long-tail lines of business, neither the Incurred nor the Paid Loss Development
methods may receive much consideration for the most recent accident period. This is due to the fact that
the relatively low magnitude of losses either incurred or paid at early evaluations tends to result in less
reliable indications from these methods.

In faster developing, short-tailed lines such as Auto Physical Damage, Special Property, Homeowners,
Commercial Multi-Peril Property and Property Damage, the Paid Loss Development Method, the Incurred Loss
Development Method and the Bornhuetter-Ferguson methods are primarily used as they typically produce tightly
clustered projections for all accident years.
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The estimation of loss reserves for long-tail lines such as Commercial Auto Liability, Commercial Multi-Peril
Liability, and Workers’ Compensation is more complex and is subject to a higher degree of variability than for short-
tail lines of business.

The following table presents the liability for unpaid losses and loss settlement expenses by major line of
business:

December 31, December 31,
2007 2006
(in thousands)

Commercial:
Automobile 3 308,564 § 308,961
Workers compensation 337,286 327,630
Commercial multi-peril 524,274 481,173
Other commercial 100,664 92,542
Total commercial 1,270,788 1,210,306

Personal:

Automobile 81,222 87,508
Homeowners 27,925 30,319
Other personal 1,877 1,716
Total personal 111,024 119,543
Total personal and commercial 1,381,812 1,329,849
Plus reinsurance recoverables 164,878 163,796
Total liability $ 1,546,690 $ 1,493,645

The following table presents the increase (decrease) in the liability for unpaid losses and loss settlement
expenses attributable to insured events of prior years for the year ended December 31, 2007 by line of business:

Increase (Decrease) in the Liability for Unpaid Losses and Loss Settlement Expenses
Attributable to Insured Events of Prior Years
For the Year Ended December 31, 2007

Accident Years

2004 and
Total 2006 2005 Prior Years
(in thousands)
Line of Business
Commercial:
Automobile $ (10,214 % (1,202 § (1,633 § (7,379
Workers compensation 74 (2.912) (2,396) 5,382
Commercial multi-peril (2,146) (12,775) (7,160) 17,789
Other commercial (276) (2,174} 495 1,403
Total commercial (12,562) (19,063) (10,694) 17,195
Personal:
Automobile (5,701) (1,210) (802) (3,689
Homeowners (4,139 (837) (1,103) (2,199
Other personal 355 242 (15) 128
Total personal (9,485) (1,805) (1,920) (5,760)
Total net development $  (22,047) $  (20,868) § (12614) § 11,435
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In 2007, Harleysville Group recognized net favorable development of $22.0 million in the provision for
insured events of prior years, primarily due to lower-than-expected claims severity broadly experienced across all
casualty lines in accident years 2003 through 2006, partially offset by adverse development in prior accident years.

A reduction in commercial automobile severity was broadly observed during 2007 and led to the recognition
of $10.2 million of favorable development in this line in 2007.

A teduction in workers compensation severity in the aggregate in accident years 2004 through 2006 was
observed during 2007 and led to the recognition of favorable development for those accident years in 2007, An increase
in workers compensation medical severity in accident years 2003 and prior was observed during 2007 and led to the
recognition of adverse development for those accident years in 2007. In total, $0.1 million in adverse development was
recognized in the workers compensation line during 2007.

A reduction in commercial multi-peril severity in accident years 2005 and 2006 was observed during 2007 and
contributed to the recognition of favorable development for those accident years in 2007. An increase in commercial
multi-peril severity in the liability portion of the line in accident years prior to 2005 was observed during 2007 and
contributed to the recognition of adverse development for those accident years in 2007. In total, $2.1 million in
favorable development was recognized in the commercial multi-peril line during 2007.

A reduction in personal automobile severity was broadly observed during 2007 and led to the recognition of
$5.7 million of favorable development in this line in 2007.

A reduction in homeowners severity was broadly observed during 2007 and led to the recognition of favorable
development of $4.1 million in this line in 2007.

The tables below break out the change in the estimate of ultimate losses between December 31, 2006 and
December 31, 2007 for the 2006, 2005, 2004 and 2003 accident years into severity and frequency components for the
major commercial and personal lines of business. Table | summarizes the Company’s percentage change in the
estimate of ultimate loss and loss settlement expense by line of business between December 31, 2006 and
December 31, 2007. Tables 2 and 3 summarize the Company’s percentage change in the estimate of ultimate severity
and ultimate claim counts, respectively. The relationship between the three tables is as follows: (1+ the % change in
estimated ultimate loss) = (1+ the % change in estimated ultimate severity) x (1+ the % change in estimated ultimate
claim counts). The estimated ultimate severity is calculated as the ratio of estimated ultimate loss to estimated ultimate
claim counts. The amounts underlying these tables are based on direct loss and claim experience minus ceded loss
experience and exclude a small portion of losses associated with business assumed from involuntary pools.

Table 1

Increase (Decrease) in Ultimate Loss and Loss Settlement Expense
Between the Years Ended December 31, 2006 and December 31, 2007

Accident Years

2006 2005 2004 2003
Line of Business

Commercial:
Automobile -0.7% -1L1% -0.7% -2.6%
Workers compensation -1.5% -1.2% -0.2% 1.7%
Commercial multi-perii -5.5% -3.9% 1.0% -0.1%
Other commercial -6.3% 1.8% -4,1% 5.3%
Total commercial -3.4% -2.1% -(1.2% -0.1%

Personal:

Automobile 0.7% -1.1% -1.6% -1.6%
Homeowners 1.7% -2.5% -1.6% -1.0%
Other personal 2.5% -1.2% 0.2% -0.1%
Total personal 1.1% -1.6% -1.6% -1.4%
Total All Lines -2.6% -2.0% -0.5% -0.4%
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Table 2

Increase (Decrease) in Ultimate Severity
Between the Years Ended December 31, 2006 and December 31, 2007

Accident Years

2006 2005 2004 2003
Line of Business

Commercial:
Automobile 0.8% -0.9% -0.8% -2.5%
Workers compensation -3.1% -0.4% 0.2% 2.0%
Commercial multi-peril -1.4% -1.2% 4.5% 1.4%
Other commercial -8.0% 5.1% -3.0% 6.3%
Total commercial -1.8% -1.0% 0.7% 0.4%

Personal:
Automobile 1.4% -0.9% -1.4% -1.6%
Homeowners 0.3% -2.7% -1.7% -1.0%
Other personal -1.5% -1.3% 0.1% -0.1%
Total personal 1.1% -1.5% -1.4% -1.3%
Total All Lines -1.6% -1.3% 0.1% 0.1%
Table 3

Increase (Decrease) in Ultimate Claim Counts
Between the Years Ended December 31, 2006 and December 31, 2007

Accident Years

2006 2005 2004 2003
Line of Business

Commercial:
Automobile -1.5% -0.3% 0.1% -0.1%
Workers compensation 1.7% -0.8% -0.4% -0.2%
Commercial multi-pertl -4.2% -2.7% -3.4% -1.5%
Other commercial 1.9% -3.1% -1.1% -1.0%
Total commercial -1.6% -1.0% -0.9% -0.5%

Personal:

Automobile -0.7% -0.2% -0.2% -0.1%
Homeowners 1.4% 0.2% 0.1% 0.0%
Other personal 4.0% 0.1% 0.1% 0.0%
Total personal 0.0% -0.1% -0.2% 0.0%
Total All Lines -1.0% 0.7% -0.6% -0.3%

These tables illustrate that the changes to the Company’s estimates of ultimate loss for prior accident years
between December 31, 2006 and December 31, 2007 are primarily driven by the severity component of loss. One
exception to this is accident years 2003 and 2004 for total commercial lines. In this year, favorable prior year
development was primarily due to favorable claim count development and partially offset by adverse development in
claim severity. In this context, the term “severity” does not refer to an actuarial assumption, rather, it refers to
“severity” as a descriptive statistic derived from the ratio of estimated ultimate loss to estimated ultimate claim counts.
Broadly speaking, as estimates of the ultimate number of claims were relatively stable for the prior accident periods,
the changes in estimates of ultimate loss are characterized as resulting from a reduction in severity.
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The following table presents workers compensation claim count information for the total pooled business in
which Harleysville Group participates and payment amounts which are Harleysville Group’s pooling share of the total
pooled amounts:

For the For the
year ended year ended
December 31, December 31,
2007 2006

(dollars in thousands)

Number of claims pending, beginning of period 5,481 6,020
Number of claims reported 8,531 8,601
Number of claims settled or dismissed (8.684) (9,140)
Number of claims pending, end of period 5,328 5,481
Losses paid $ 59,322 % 55,818
Loss settlement expenses paid $ 13,091 % 12,610

Workers compensation losses primarily consist of indemnity and medical costs for injured workers,

Harleysville Group records the actuarial best estimate of the ultimate unpaid losses and loss settlement
expenses incurred. The estimate represents the actuarially determined expected amount of future payments on ali loss
and loss settlement expenses incurred on or before December 31, 2007. Actuarial loss reserving techniques and
assumptions, which rely on historical information as adjusted to reflect current conditions, have been consistently
applied, after including consideration of recent case reserve activity, during the periods presented. Changes in the
estimate of the liability for unpaid losses and loss settlement expenses reflect actual payments and evaluations of new
information and data since the last reporting date. These changes correlate with actuarial trends.

The following table presents the liability for unpaid losses and loss settlement expenses by case and incurred
but not reported (IBNR) reserves by line of business and a statistically determined range of estimates of the ultimate
unpaid losses and loss settlement expenses incurred for each line of business as of December 31, 2007. The range of
estimates around the actuarial best estimates is statistically determined in order to provide information regarding the
variability of the actuarial best estimates. The statistical analysis is completed only on a basis that is net of reinsurance
recoverables, as this appropriately reflects Harleysville Group’s risk profile based on the type and quality of its
reinsurance. The range is determined using the Monte Carlo Simulation method. This method uses the Company’s
actual historical loss data to estimate the mean and standard deviation of a statistical distribution for future loss
development. There have been no adjustments made to the historical data. The Company’s application of the Monte
Carlo Simulation assumes that loss development factors are normally distributed with a mean and standard deviation
derived from the historical data.

Reserve ranges are determined using both paid and incurred loss development data with a 10,000 trial
simulation run against each set of data for each line of business presented in the table below. Each simulation generates
a unique set of loss development factors randomly generated from the normal distribution with mean and standard
deviation as defined above. Each unique set of loss development factors, when applied to the data, produces a unique
reserve estimate, At the completion of the simulation, there are 20,000 unique reserve estimates which can be ordered
from lowest to highest creating a range of reserve estimates. The resulting range produced by the simulation is used to
create a reasonable representation of a 90% confidence interval using the 5% point as the low end of the range and the
95% point as the high end of the range. The 90% confidence interval represents the range of reserve estimates for
which there is approximately a 90% probability that the actual reserve amount (which will not be known for many
years) is contained within the defined range. The total commercial lines range and total personal lines range were
developed as separate simulations using the means and standard deviations of the individual lines as inputs. Therefore,
the 90% confidence interval for all lines of business is smaller than the straight sum of the individual lines of business
90% intervals.
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The use of this technique to analyze reserve ranges assumes historical data has validity in predicting future
outcomes. This assumption is consistent with a key assumption underlying much of insurance pricing and reserving

theory.
Liability for Unpaid Losses and Laoss Settlement Expenses (LAE)
at December 31, 2007
Statistically Determined
LAE IBNR Total Range of Estimates
Case IBNR Liability (Inc. LAE) Liability High Low
(in thousands)
Line of Business
Commercial:
Automobile $ 1039500 3 152404 $ 52260 $ 204,664 $ 308564 § 331,428 § 220,846
Workers compensation 138,462 153,815 45,009 198,824 337,286 374,852 263,814
Commercial multi-peril 141,797 238,681 143,796 382,477 524,274 582,973 393,947
Other commercial 21,614 53,460 25,590 79,050 100,664 131,433 61,506
Total commercial 405,773 598,360 266,655 865,015 1,270,788 1,368,376 965,184
Personal:
Automobile 38,097 29,000 14,125 43,125 81,222 91,471 67,268
Homeowners 9,637 12,717 5,571 18,288 27,925 31,251 17,012
Other personal 649 978 250 1,228 1,877 2,495 1,673
Total personal 48,383 42,695 19,946 62,641 111,024 129,894 08,046

Total net liability 454,156 641,055 286,601 927,656 1,381,812

Reinsurance
recoverables 123,260 41,296 322 41,618 164,878

Gross liability $ 577416 § 682351 $§ 286923 § 969,274 $§ 1,546,690

Reinsurance receivables were $167.7 and $167.2 million at December 31, 2007 and 2006, respectively. Of
these amounts, $92.1 million and $93.9 million, respectively or 55% and 56%, respectively, of the receivables were due
from governmental bodies, regulatory agencies or quasi governmental pools and reinsurance facilities where,
Harleysville Group believes, there is virtually no credit risk. The remainder of the reinsurance recoverables are
principally due from reinsurers rated A- or higher by the A.M. Best Company.

Because of the nature of insurance claims, there are uncertainties inherent in the estimates of ultimate losses.
Harieysvilie Group’s reorganization of its claims operation in recent years has resulted in new pecple and processes
involved in settling claims. As a result, more recent statistical data reflects different patterns than in the past and gives
rise to uncertainty as to the pattern of future loss settlements. There are uncertainties regarding future loss cost trends
particularly related to medical treatments and automobile repair. Court decisions, regulatory changes and economic
conditions can affect the ultimate cost of claims that occurred in the past. Accordingly, the ultimate liability for unpaid
losses and loss settlement expenses will likely differ from the amount recorded at December 31, 2007.

The property and casualty industry has had substantial aggregate loss experience from claims related to
asbestos-related illnesses, environmental remediation, product liability, mold, and other uncertain exposures.
Harleysville Group has not experienced significant losses from such claims.

Net catastrophe losses decreased $4.7 million for the year ended December 31, 2007, primarily due to less
severe catastrophes impacting Harleysville Group in 2007.

Effective for one year from July 1, 2007, the Company’s subsidiaries and the Mutual Company and its wholly
owned subsidiaries renewed its catastrophe reinsurance which provides coverage ranging from 75% to 85% of up to
$250.0 million in excess of a retention of $50.0 million for any given catastrophe excluding terrerism for commercial
lines. Harleysville Group’s 2007 pooling share of this coverage would range from 75% to 85% of up to $180.0 million
in excess of a retention of $36.0 million for any given catastrophe. Pursuant to the terms of the treaty, the maximum
recovery would be $195.0 million for any catastrophe involving an insured loss equal to or greater than $300.0 million.
Harleysville Group’s 2007 pooling share of this maximum recovery would be $140.4 miilion for any catastrophe
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involving an insured loss of $216.0 million or greater. The treaty includes reinstatement provisions providing for
coverage for a second catastrophe and requiring payment of an additional premium in the event of a first catastrophe
occurring.

The income tax expense for the year ended December 31, 2007 includes the tax benefit of $7.2 million
associated with tax-exempt income compared to $8.6 million in the prior year.

Underwriting expenses, including amortization of deferred policy acquisition costs, decreased $7.2 miltion for
the year ended December 31, 2007 compared to the prior year. The decrease in underwriting expenses was primarily
due to a decrease in head count resulting from on-going expense reduction initiatives, and lower incentive
compensation, pension expense and severance charges.

Harlteysville Group froze its defined benefit pension plan at the then current benefit levels as of March 31,
2006. Harleysville Group’s portion of pension expense for the plan was $0.5 million and $1.9 million for 2007 and
2006, respectively. Harleysville Group enhanced its 401(k) retirement savings plan to provide for a company
contribution equal to 5% of salary for all eligible employees, effective April 1, 2006, and recognized expense of
$3.7 million and $2.9 million in 2007 and 2006, respectively due to this enhancement.

Other income increased $0.2 million for the year ended December 31, 2007 primarily due to a $2.7 million
gain realized on the sale of the Company’s office building in Traverse City, Michigan in the second quarter of 2007,
partially offset by a decrease of $2.2 million in claim handling fees received in connection with the National Flood
Insurance Program, related primarily to flood claims from Hurricane Katrina.

2006 Compared to 2005

Premiums earned decreased $2.7 million for the year ended December 31, 2006. The decrease was primarily
due to a decrease in premiums earned for personal lines of $8.8 million, partiatly offset by an increase of $6.1 million
in commercial lines premiums earned. The increase in premiums earned for commercial lines was primarily due to
higher average premiums, partially offset by fewer policy counts in the commercial automobile line of business. The
decline in premiums earned for personal lines was primarily due to fewer policy counts. The reduction in personal lines
volume was driven primarily by a reduction of personal automobile business from the continued implementation of
more stringent underwriting processes.

Investment income increased $12.1 million for the year ended December 31, 2006, resulting from an increase
in invested assets, a greater percentage of invested assets in fixed maturity securities and higher interest rates on short-
term investments.

Realized investment gains increased $40.4 million for the year ended December 31, 2006, primarily resulting
from gains on the sale of equity securities in the second quarter of 2006.

Income before income taxes and cumulative effect of accounting change increased $77.4 million for the year
ended December 31, 2006 compared to the prior year. The increase was primarily due to the increase in investment
income, increased realized investment gains and improved underwriting results.

The improved underwriting results were primarily due to improved underwriting results in both commercial
and personal lines.

Harleysville Group's statutory combined ratio decreased to 98.6% for the year ended December 31, 2006 from
102.2% for the year ended December 31, 2005. Such decrease was due to improved underwriting results in both
commercial lines and personal lines, primarily resulting from improved loss experience, partially offset by greater
catastrophe losses and higher underwriting expenses in 2006.
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The statutory combined ratios by line of business for the year ended December 31, 2006 as compared to the
year ended December 31, 2005 were as follows:

For the Year Ended
December 31,
2006 2005

Commercial:
Automobile 99.3% 101.1%
Workers compensation 117.2% 124.0%
Commercial multi-peril 98.9% 101.5%
Other commercial 86.6% 98.7%
Total commercial 100.3% 104.3%

Personal:

Automobile 99.3% 99.2%
Homeowners 32.6% 87.6%
Other personal 69.8% 72.3%
Total personal 90.6% 93.1%
Total personal and commercial 98.6% 102.2%

The commercial lines statutory combined ratio decreased to 100.3% for the year ended December 31, 2006
from 104.3% for the year ended December 31, 2005, The decrease is primarily due to declines in the combined ratio for
all lines of business due to improved loss severity. The personal lines statutory combined ratio decreased to 90.6% for
the year ended December 31, 2006 from 93.1% for the year ended December 31, 2005. The decrease is primarily due to
improved property results in the homeowners line, partially offset by higher catastrophe losses.

The following table presents the increase (decrease) in the liability for unpaid losses and loss settlement

expenses attributable to insured events of prior years for the year ended December 31, 2006 by line of business:

Increase (Decrease) in the Liability for Unpaid Losses and Loss Settlement Expenses
Attributable to Insured Events of Prior Years
For the Year Ended December 31, 2006

Accident Years

2003 and
Total 2005 2004 Prior Years
(in thousands)
Line of Business
Commercial:
Automobile b (5,136) % 1,134 § (5,71 % (559)
Workers compensation 341 (2,931) {3,705) 6,977
Commercial multi-peril (3,110) (12,328) {6,108) 15,326
Other commerctial (191) (1,131) (1,323) 2,263
Total commercial (8,096) (15,256) (16,847) 24,007
Personal:
Automobile (4,968) (2,402) (3,484) 218
Homeowners (5,505) (1,357) (1,968) (2,180)
Other personal 484 193 83 208
Total personal (9,989) (3,566) (5,369) (1,054)
Total net development $ (18085 $ (18,822) § (22,216) § 22,953

In 2006, Harleysville Group recognized net favorable development of $18.1 million in the provision for
insured events of prior years, primarily due to lower-than-expected claims severity in casualty lines in accident years
2002 through 2003, partially offset by adverse development in prior accident years.

A reduction in commercial automobile severity in accident years 2002 through 2004 was observed during
2006 and led to the recognition of favorable development for those accident years in 2006. An increase in commercial
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automobile severity in accident year 2005 and in accident years prior to 2002 was observed during 2006 and led to the
recognition of adverse development for those accident years in 2006. In total, $5.1 million in favorable development
was recognized in the commercial automobile line during 2006.

A reduction in workers compensation severity in accident years 2002 through 2005 was observed during 2006
and led to the recognition of favorable development for those accident years in 2006. An increase in workers
compensation medical severity in accident years 1997 through 2001 was observed during 2006 and led to the
recognition of adverse development for those accident years in 2006. In total, $0.3 million in adverse development was
recognized in the workers compensation line during 20{6.

A reduction in commercial multi-peril severity in accident years 2002 through 2005 was observed during 2006
and led to the recognition of favorable development for those accident years in 2006. An increase in commercial multi-
peril severity in the liability portion of the line in accident years prior to 2002 was observed during 2006 and led to the
recognition of adverse development for those accident years in 2006. In total, $3.1 million in favorable development
was recognized in the commercial multi-peril line during 2006.

A reduction in personal automobile severity for accident years 2002 through 2005 was observed during 2006
and led to the recognition of favorable development for those accident years in 2006. An increase in personal
automobile severity for 1997 and prior accident years was observed during 2006 and led to the recognition of adverse
development for those accident years in 2006. In total, $5.0 million of favorable development was recognized in the
personal automobile line during 2006,

A reduction in homeowners severity was broadly observed during 2006 and led to the recognition of favorable
development of $5.5 million in this line in 2006.

Net catastrophe losses increased $7.4 million for the year ended December 31, 2006, primarily due to more
severe catastrophes impacting Harleysville Group in 2006,

Underwriting expenses, including amortization of deferred policy acquisition costs, increased $1.0 million for
the year ended December 31, 2006 compared to the prior year, The increase in underwriting expenses was primarily
due to higher incentive costs for agents and employees, and higher compensation expenses recognized under SFAS
No. 123(R), which was adopted as of January 1, 2006, partially offset by lower pension costs and lower severance
charges. Severance charges of $1.2 million and $3.5 million were incurred in 2006 and 2005, respectively, related to
ongoing expense-reduction initiatives.

Harleysville Group froze its defined benefit pension plan at the then current benefit levels as of March 31,
2006. Harleysville Group’s portion of pension expense for the ptan was $1.9 million and $9.7 million for 2006 and
2005, respectively. Harleysville Group enhanced its 401(k) retirement savings plan to provide for a company
contribution equal to 5% of salary for all eligible employees, effective April 1, 2006, and recognized expense of
$2.9 million in 2006 due to this enhancement.

Other income increased $1.2 million for the year ended December 31, 2006 primarily due to an increase of
$1.7 million in claim handling fees received in connection with the National Flood Insurance Program, related
primarily to flood claims from Hurricane Katrina.

New Accounting Standards

In September 2006, the FASB issued SFAS No. 157, *Fair Value Measurements.” This statement defines fair
value, establishes a framework for measuring fair value in generally accepted accounting principles, and expands
disclosures about fair value measurements. This statement applies under other accounting pronouncements that require
ot permit fair value measurements. The statement is effective for financial statements issued for fiscal years beginning
after November 15, 2007. The impact of adopting this statement on Harleysville Group’s results of operations and
financial condition is not expected to be material.

In February 2007, the FASB issued SFAS No. 159, “The Fair Value Option for Financial Assets and Financial
Liabilities--Including an amendment of FASB Statement No. 115.” SFAS No. 159 permits companies to choose to
measure many financial instruments and certain other items at fair value at specified election dates. Upon adoption, an
entity shall report unrealized gains and losses on items for which the fair value option has been elected in earnings at
each subsequent reporting date. Most of the provisions apply only to entities that elect the fair value option. However,
the amendment to SFAS No. 115, “Accounting for Certain Investments in Debt and Equity Securities,” applies to all
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entities with available for sale and trading securities. SFAS No. 159 is effective as of the beginning of an entity’s first
fiscal year that begins after November 15, 2007. The impact of adopting this statement on Harleysville Group's results
of operations and financial condition is not expected to be material.

Liquidity and Capital Resources

Liquidity is a measure of the ability to generate sufficient cash to meet cash obligations as they come due.
Harleysville Group’s primary sources of cash are premium income, investment income and maturing investments. Cash
outflows can be variable because of uncertainties regarding settlement dates for liabilities for unpaid losses and because
of the potential for large losses, either individually or in the aggregate. Accordingly, Harleysville Group maintains
investment and reinsurance programs generally intended to provide adequate funds to pay claims without forced sales
of investments. Harleysville Group models its exposure to catastrophes and has the ability to pay claims without selling
held to maturity securities even for events having a low (less than 1%) probability. Even in years of greater catastrophe
frequency, Harleysville Group has been able to pay claims without liguidating any investments. Harleysville Group has
also considered scenarios of declines in revenue and increases in loss payments, and has the ability to meet cash
requirements under such scenarios without selling held to maturity securities. Harleysville Group’s policy with respect
to fixed maturity investments is to purchase only those that are of investment grade quality.

Net cash provided by operating activities was $17]1.5 million and $166.1 million for 2007 and 2006,
respectively. The increase in net cash provided by operating activities during 2007 is primarily from greater investment
income and tower federal income tax payments, partially offset by a decrease in net cash provided by underwriting
activities,

Net cash used by investing activities was $92.7 million and $168.8 million for 2007 and 2006, respectively.
The change is primarily due to lower net purchases of investments due to the increase in cash used by financing
activities.

Financing activities used net cash of $78.7 million and provided net cash of $2.5 millien for 2007 and 2006,
respectively. The change is primarily due to the purchase of treasury stock in 2007, a decrease in the issuance of
common stock and an increase in dividends paid.

Harleysville Group’s investment strategy is designed to complement and support the insurance operations,
Harleysville Group considers projected cash flow (premiums, investment income, reinsurance programs, liability
payout patterns, general expenses, large seasonal obligations, intercompany transfers, etc.) to assure that sufficient
liquidity exists within Harleysville Group and the Mutual Company. Maintaining a regular maturity schedule in readily
marketable securities is an essential part of addressing liquidity. This regular maturity schedule is maintained in all
interest rate environments. After-tax yield will be maximized consistent with safety and liquidity considerations by
investment in taxable or tax-exempt securities, depending on Harleysville Group’s tax position.

Harleysville Group participates in a securities lending program whereby certain fixed maturity securities from
the investment portfolio are loaned to other institutions for a short period of time in return for a fee. At December 31,
2007, Harleysville Group had received, and had the obligation to return, cash collateral of $123.5 million. The cash
collateral received was invested, as described below, in investments with a fair value at December 31, 2007 of
$122.1 million, related to securities on loan with a fair value of $120.6 million. Harleysville Group’s policy is to
require initial collateral of 102% of the fair value of loaned securities plus accrued interest, which is required to be
maintained daily by the borrower at no less than 100% of such fair value plus accrued interest over the life of the loan,
Cash collateral received can be further invested in money market instruments, government securities, “A” rated
corporate obligations, “AAA” rated asset-backed securities or GICs and Funding Agreements from issuers rated “A” or
better. The cash collateral Harleysville Group received was invested as follows at December 31, 2007: 52% of the
collateral was held in cash and cash equivalents (maturities of three months or less) and 48% of the collateral was held
in securities which may fluctuate in value and have variable interest rates and maturities of up to three years. These
securities are classified as available for sale. The securities on loan to others have been segregated from the other
invested assets on the balance sheet. In addition, the assets and liabilities have been grossed up to reflect the investment
of the collateral received under the securities lending program and the obligation to return this cellateral upon the return
of the loaned securities.
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At December 31, 2007, Harteysville Group held the following fixed maturity investments in its securities
lending collateral portfolio:

Stated
Maturity Fair Unrealized
Date Cost Value Gain(Loss)
{in thousands)

Structured Investment Vehicles (SIVs)
Cheyne Finance LLC, Medium Term Note SER 144A 02/10/2009 § 6,898 § 6,898 —
Stanfield Victoria LLC, Medium Term Note SER 144A 08/25/2008 2,673 2,604 § (69)
Stanfield Victoria LLC, Medium Term Note SER 144A 08/05/2008 2,673 2,604 (69)
Liberty Lighthouse, Medium Term Note SER 144A 03/16/2010 2,577 2,527 (50)
Sigma Finance Inc, Medium Term Note 01/16/2009 7,731 7.570 (161)
Liquid Funding LTD, Medium Term Note SER 144A 11/04/2008 5,151 5,162 11
Liquid Funding LTD, Medium Term Note SER 144A (9/29/2008 2,674 2,662 (12)
Atlas Capital Fund. Corp, Medium Term Note SER 144A 07/11/2008 2,674 2,669 (5)

Total SIVs § 33051 § 32,696 § (353)

Other Investments
CIT Group Inc., Medium Term Note SER A 05/14/2009 § 2,577 § 2,568 % 9
CIT Group Inc., Medium Term Note 11/04/2008 2,578 2,560 (18)
Hertz Vehicle Financing LLC ABS 12/09/2008 2,578 2,567 (an
Monumental Global Funding II1, Medium Term Note 05/24/2010 2,578 2,571 (7
Meonumental Global Funding II, Medium Term Note 09/22/2009 2,577 2,559 (18)
Pacific Life Global Funding Note SER 144A 08/10/2009 2,578 2,574 C))
SLM Corp. Medium Term Note SER 144A 03/16/2009 8,248 8,012 (236)
General Electric Cap Corp Medium Term Note SER A 05/19/2008 2,674 2,672 (2)
Barclays Bank PLC Corp. CD 02/21/2008 2,674 2,674 —
Citibank NA Corp. CD 02/21/2008 2,674 2,674 —
Wachovia Corp. CD 02/21/2008 2,674 2,674 -—
Open End Repo Agreements 55,252 55,252 —

Total Other Investments i 89,662 $ 89357 § (305)

Total Securities Lending Portfolio §122,713 $122,053 § (660)

The fixed maturity investments in the SIVs consist predominantly of asset-backed and mortgaged-backed
securities. Each of the SIVs listed above represents a senior claim on the assets of the issuer. The Cheyne and Stanfield
Victoria holdings are in technical default and are currently under the supervision of receivers appointed to protect the
interests of senior creditors. In the fourth quarter of 2007, an impairment loss of 30.8 million was recognized on the
Cheyne holding due 1o a significant deterioration in the credit worthiness of the issuer.

Due to illiquid market conditions and deteriorating fundamentals in the housing industry, the value of some of
the underlying assets that secure our position as a senior creditor in the SIVs is uncertain at this time. Depending upon
developments involving the performance of the assets held by the SIVs, it is possible that the SIV holdings listed above
may be written down in the income statement in the future.

Subsequent to December 31, 2007, the Atlas Capital Funding Corp. Medium Term Note was converted into a
Wachovia Bank Certificate of Deposit with the same maturity date. In February 2008, we divested both of our Liquid
Funding LTD Medium Term Notes maturing on November 4, 2008 and September 29, 2008 for losses of $15,000 and
$10,000, respectively.

One of the holdings within the security lending portfolio, with an unrealized loss of $18,000 at December 31,
2007, has had an unrealized loss for over twelve months.
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The Company had $4.0 million of cash and marketable securities at December 31, 2007, which are available
for general corporate purposes including dividends, debt service, capital contributions to subsidiaries, acquisitions and
the repurchase of stock. In June 2007, the Company’s Board of Directors authorized a stock repurchase plan under
which up to 1.6 million shares of its outstanding common stock could be repurchased through an open market purchase
program. The Company was authorized to repurchase shares from the Mutual Company, which owns 53% of the
Company’s stock, at fair market value terms on the date of purchase and from the public float to amounts that are
proportional to the respective ownership percentages of the Mutual Company and the public float as of the
authorization date. This program was completed on July 18, 2007. On August 1, 2007, the Board of Directors
authorized the Company to repurchase an additional 1.6 million shares of its outstanding common stock for a two year
period under terms similar to the first repurchase authorization. As of December 31, 2007, the Company had
repurchased 335,439 shares under the second authorization, leaving 1,264,561 shares authorized to be repurchased. An
additional 346,807 shares were repurchased through March S, 2008. Harleysville Group has no other material
commitments for capital expenditures as of December 31, 2007.

As a holding company, the Company’s principal source of cash for the payment of dividends is dividends
from its insurance subsidiaries. The Company’s insurance subsidiaries are subject to state laws that restrict their ability
to pay dividends, The Company’s insurance subsidiaries declared dividends payable to the Company of $117.6 million
in June 2007. As of December 31, 2007 dividends of $63.0 million had been paid to the Company.

Applying the current regulatory restrictions as of December 31, 2007, $112.2 million would be available for
distribution to the Company by its subsidiaries after June 5, 2008 without prior regulatory approval. See the Business-
Regulation section of this Form 10-K, which includes a reconciliation of net income and shareholders’ equity as
determined under statutory accounting practices to net income and shareholders’ equity as determined in accordance
with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America. Also, see Note 8 of the Notes to
Consolidated Financial Statements.

On August 18, 2006, Harleysville Group Inc. entered into a credit agreement with HSBC Bank USA, National
Association, as Administrative Agent, and participating lenders relating to a five year $100 million revolving credit
facility. At Harleysville Group Inc.’s election, interest will be calculated at the LIBOR Rate plus a Margin
(currently 0.750% based on the credit rating of the Company’s debt) or the Alternate Base Rate (the greater of the
Prime Rate or the Federal Funds Effective Rate plus 1/2 of 1%). In addition, there is a fee of 0.150% per annum on the
loan commitment amount, regardless of usage. The agreement requires compliance with certain covenants, which
include minimum net worth and leverage and fixed charge coverage ratios. The credit facility was available for general
corporate purposes. There have been no borrowings under the credit facility. The Company was in compliance with all
applicable covenants. Effective January 8, 2008, the Company terminated this credit agreement because the Company
felt it was no longer needed.

The National Association of Insurance Commissioners (NAIC) adopted risk-based capital (RBC) standards
that require insurance companies to calculate and report statutory capital and surplus needs based on a formula
measuring underwriting, investment and other business risks inherent in an individual company’s operations. These
RBC standards have not affected the operations of Harleysville Group since each of the Company’s insurance
subsidiaries has statutory capital and surplus in excess of RBC requirements.

These RBC standards require the calculation of a ratio of total adjusted capital to Authorized Control Level.
Insurers with a ratio below 200% are subject to different levels of regulatory intervention and action. Based upon their
2007 statutory financial statements, the ratio of total adjusted capital to the Authorized Control Level for the
Company’s eight insurance subsidiaries at December 31, 2007 ranged from 543% to 677%.
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The following summarizes Harleysville Group’s contractual obligations at December 31, 2007.

Less Than After
Total 1 Year 1-3 Years 4-5 Years 5 Years
(in thousands)

Contractual obligations:

Debt $ 118,500 $§ 18500 $ 100,000

Interest on debt $ 36,763 $ 6,800 § 13600 $ 12769 § 3,594

Gross liability for unpaid losses and

loss settlement expenses $ 1,546,690 $ 371,300 § 433,043 § 201,052 § 541,295
Total $ 1,701,953 $§ 378,100 $ 446,643 § 232321 § 644,889

The table above does not include capital lease obligations, operating lease obligations or purchase obligations
as they are either not applicable or not material. The timing of the amounts for the gross liability for unpaid losses and
loss settlement expenses is an estimate based on historical experience and expectations of future payment patterns.
However, the timing of these payments may vary significantly from the amounts stated above.

Property and casualty insurance premiums are established before the amount of losses and loss settlement
expenses, or the extent to which inflation may affect such expenses, are known. Consequently, Harleysville Group
attempts, in establishing rates, to anticipate the potential impact of inflation. In the past, inflation has contributed to
increased losses and loss settlement expenses.

Risk Factors

You should consider carefully the following risks, as well as the other information contained in this 2007
Report on Form 10-K. If any of the following events described in the risk factors below actually occur, our business,
financial condition and results of operations could be adversely affected. You should refer to the other information set
forth in this 2007 Report on Form 10-K including our consolidated financial statements and the related notes.

Risks Related to the Property and Casualty Insurance Industry Generally

If our estimated liability for losses and loss settlement expenses is incorrect, our reserves may not be adequate to
cover our ultimate liability for losses and loss settlement expenses and may have to be increased.

We are required to maintain loss reserves for our estimated liability for losses and loss settlement expenses
associated with reported and unreported claims for each accounting period. We regularly review our reserving
techniques and our overall amount of reserves and, based on our estimated liability, raise or lower the levels of our
reserves accordingly. If our estimates are incorrect and our reserves are inadequate, we are obligated to increase our
reserves. An increase in reserves results in an increase in losses and a reduction in our net income for the period in
which the deficiency in reserves is identified. Accordingly, an increase in reserves could have a material adverse effect
on our results of operations, liquidity and financial condition. OQur reserve amounts are estimated based on what we
expect our ultimate liability for losses and loss settlement expenses to be. These estimates are based on facts and
circumstances of which we are aware, predictions of future events, trends in claims severity and frequency and other
subjective factors. Although we use a number of actuarial methods to project our ultimate liability, there is no method
that can always exactly predict our ultimate liability for losses and loss settlement expenses.

In addition to reviewing our reserving techniques, as part of our reserving process we also consider:
» information regarding each claim for losses;
*  our loss history and the industry’s loss history;
o legislative enactments, judicial decisions and legat developments regarding damages;
* changes in political attitudes; and

e trends in general economic conditions, including inflation.
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If certain catastrophic events occur, they could have a significant impact on our operational results and financial
condition.

Results of property insurers are subject to weather and other events prevailing in any given year. While one
year may be relatively free of major weather or other disasters, another year may have numerous such events causing
results for that year to be materially worse than for other years.

Our insurance subsidiaries have experienced, and are expected in the future to experience, catastrophe losses.
It is possible that a catastrophic event or a series of multiple catastrophic events could have a material adverse effect on
the operating results and financial condition of our insurance subsidiaries, thereby limiting the ability of our insurance
subsidiaries to pay dividends to us. In the last 9 years, the largest non-flood catastrophe to affect our results of
operations was Hurricane Floyd in the third quarter of 1999, which resulted in $15.1 million of losses.

Various events can cause catastrophes, including severe winter weather, hurricanes, windstorms, earthquakes,
hail, war, terrorism, explosions and fires. The frequency and severity of these catastrophes are inherently unpredictable.
The extent of losses from a catastrophe is a function of both the total amount of insured exposures in the area affected
by the event and the severity of the event.

Our insurance subsidiaries seek to reduce the impact on our business of a catastrophe through geographic
diversification and through the purchase of reinsurance covering various categories of catastrophes, which generally
excludes terrorism. Nevertheless, reinsurance may prove inadequate if

s  amajor catastrophic loss exceeds the reinsurance limit or

¢  an insurance subsidiary pays a number of smaller catastrophic loss claims that, individually, fall
below the subsidiary’s retention level.

We are heavily regulated in the states in which we operate and if we violate those regulations or if the
regulations unreasonably restrict our ability to do business, or if they change significantly, it could have an
adverse effect on our business,

We are subject to extensive supervision and regulation in the states in which we transact business. The
purpose of supervision and regulation is to protect individual policyholders and not shareholders or other investors. Qur
business can be adversely affected by private passenger automobile insurance regulations and any other regulations
affecting property and casualty insurance companies. For example, laws and regulations can reduce or set rates at levels
that we do not believe are adequate for the risks we insure. Other laws and regulations can limit our ability to cancel or
refuse to renew policies and require us to offer coverage to all consumers. Changes in laws and regulations, or their
interpretations, pertaining to insurance, including workers compensation, may also have an adverse effect on our
business. Although the federal government does not directly regulate the insurance industry, federal initiatives, such as
federal terrorism backstop legislation, from time to time, also can impact the insurance industry.

In addition, proposals intended to control the cost and availability of health care services have been debated in
the U.S. Congress and state legislatures. Although we do not write health insurance, rules affecting health care services
can affect other insurance that we write, including workers compensation and commercial and personal automobile and
liability insurance. We cannot determine whether or in what form health care reform legislation may be adopted by the
U.S. Congress or any state legislature. We also cannot determine the nature and effect, if any, that the adoption of
health care legislation or regulations, or changing interpretations, at the federal or state level would have on us.

If demand for property and casualty insurance decreases, it could have an adverse impact on our business.

Historically, the results of the property and casualty insurance industry have been subject to significant
fluctuations over time due to competition and due to unpredictable developments, including:

s natural and man-made disasters;

o fluctuations in interest rates and other changes in the investment environment that affect returns
on our investments;

s inflationary pressures that affect the size of losses; and

o legislative and regulatory changes and judicial decisions that affect insurers’ liabilities.
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The demand for property and casualty insurance, particularly commercial lines, also can vary with the overall
level of economic activity.

If we are unable to reduce our exposure to risks through reliable reinsurance or if the cost of reinsurance
increases, our risk of loss, or the cost of controlling our risk of loss, will increase.

We transfer a portion of our exposure to selected risks to other insurance and reinsurance companies through
reinsurance arrangements. Under our reinsurance arrangements, another insurer assumes a specified portion of our
losses and loss adjustment expenses in exchange for a specified portion of policy premiums. The availability, amount
and cost of reinsurance depend on market conditions and may vary significantly. Any decrease in the amount of our
reinsurance will increase our risk of loss. Furthermore, we face a credit risk when we obtain reinsurance because we are
still liable for the transferred risks if the reinsurer cannot meet the transferred obligations. Therefore, the inability of
any of our reinsurers to meet its financial obligations could materially and adversely affect our operations.

The threat of terrorism and military and other actions may result in decreases in our net income, revenue and
assets under management and may adversely affect our investment portfolio.

The threat of terrorism, both within the United States and abroad, and military and other actions and
heightened security measures in response to these types of threats, may cause significant volatility and declines in the
equity markets in the United States, Europe and elsewhere, as well as loss of life, property damage, additional
disruptions to commerce and reduced economic activity. Actual terrorist attacks could cause losses from insurance
claims related to the property and casualty insurance operations of Harleysville Group, as well as a decrease in our
stockhoiders’ equity, net income and/or revenue. The effects of changes related to Harleysville Group may result in a
decrease in our stock price. The Terrorism Risk Insurance Act of 2002, which was originally extended in 2005 and
extended again in 2007, requires that some coverage for terrorist loss be offered by primary property insurers and
provides Federal assistance for recovery of claims through 2014. In addition, some of the assets in our investment
portfolio may be adversely affected by declines in the equity markets and economic activity caused by the continued
threat of terrorism, ongoing military and other actions and heightened security measures.

We cannot predict at this time whether and the extent to which industry sectors in which we maintain
investments may suffer losses as a result of potential decreased commercial and economic activity, or how any such
decrease might impact the ability of companies within the affected industry sectors to pay interest or principal on their
securities, or how the value of any underlying collateral might be affected.

We can offer no assurances that the threats of future terrorist-like events in the United States and abroad or
military actions by the United States will not have a material adverse effect on our business, financial condition or
results of operations.

Certain changes in the accounting standards issued by the Financial Accounting Standards Board or other
standard-setting bodies could have a material adverse impact on our reported net income.

We are subject to the application of U.S. GAAP and other accounting standards, which are periodically
revised and/or expanded. As such, we are required to adopt new or revised accounting standards issued by recognized
authoritative bodies, including the Financial Accounting Standards Board. It is possible that future changes required to
be adopted could change the current accounting treatment that we apply and such changes could result in material
adverse impacts on our results of operations and financial condition.

If our investments, including our securities lending collateral, lose value, our revenues, earnings and financial
position will be adversely affected.

Like many other property and casualty insurance companies, we depend on income from our investment
portfolio for a significant portion of our revenues and earnings. Any significant decline in our investment income as a
result of falling interest rates, decreased dividend payment rates or general market conditions would have an adverse
effect on our results. Any significant decline in the market value of our investments, including the investments in our
securities lending collateral portfolio, would reduce our shareholders’ equity and our policyholders’ surplus, which
could impact our ability to write additional business.
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If our financial strength ratings are reduced, we may be adversely impacted.

Insurance companies are subject to financial strength ratings produced by external rating agencies. Higher
ratings generally indicate greater financial stability and a stronger ability to pay claims. Ratings are assigned by rating
agencies to insurers based upon factors that they believe are relevant to policyholders. Ratings are not
recommendations to buy, hold or sell our securities.

Although other agencies cover the property and casualty industry, we believe our ability to write business is
most influenced by our rating from A. M. Best. According to A. M. Best, its ratings are designed to assess an insurer’s
financial strength and ability to meet ongoing policyholder obligations. Currently, our rating from A. M. Best is “A-",
the 4th of A. M. Best’s 16 ratings. A rating below “A-" from A. M. Best could materially adversely affect the business
we write. We believe that our financial strength rating from Moody’s (which is A3, the 7th of Moody’s 21 ratings),
although important, has less of an impact on our business. An unfavorable change in our Moody’s financial strength
rating, however, could make it more expensive for us to access capital markets. We cannot be sure that we will
maintain our current A. M. Best or Moody’s ratings. Although Standard & Poor’s rates our debt securities at BBB-
/Stable (the 10th of Standard & Poor’s 23 ratings), Standard & Poor’s does not currently rate our financial strength and
ability to meet ongoing obligations.

Risks Related to Our Company in Particular

We face significant competition from other regional and national insurance companies, agents and from self-
insurance, which may result in lower revenues.

We compete with local, regional and national insurance companies, including direct writers of insurance
coverage. Many of these competitors are larger than we are and many have greater financial, technical and operating
resources. In addition, we face competition within each insurance agency that sells our insurance because we sell
through independent agencies that represent more than one insurance company.

The property and casualty insurance industry is highly competitive on the basis of product, price and service.
If our competitors offer products with more coverage, or price their products more aggressively, our ability to grow or
renew our business may be adversely impacted. There are more than 250 groups writing property and casualty
insurance in the United States, and we are approximately 60th in size. Our most significant competitors vary
significantly in our different lines of business and in the geographic markets in which we compete. The internet also
could emerge as a significant source of new competition, both from existing competitors using their brand name and
resources to write business through this distribution channel and from new competitors.

We also face competition because of entities that self-insure, primarily in the commercial insurance market.
From time to time, certain of our customers and potential customers may examine the benefits and risks of self-
insurance and other alternatives to traditional insurance.

A number of new, proposed or potential legislative or industry developments could further increase
competition in the property and casualty insurance industry. These developments include:

e the epactment of the Gramm-Leach-Bliley Act of 1999, which could resuit in increased
competition from new entrants to the insurance market, including banks and other financial
service companies;

s programs in which state-sponsored entities provide property insurance in catastrophe-prone areas
or other alternative market types of coverage; and

e changing practices caused by the internet, which have led to greater competition in the insurance
business and, in some cases, greater expectations for customer service.

New competition from these developments could cause the supply or demand for insurance to change, which
could adversely affect our results of operations and financial condition.
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If adverse conditions in the easterm and midwestern United States exist, our business would be
disproportionately impacted.

We write property and casualty insurance business in the eastern and midwestern United States. Consequently,
unusually severe storms or other natural or man-made disasters that destroy property in these states could adversely
affect our operations. Our revenues and profitability also are subject to prevailing economic and regulatory conditions
in the states in which we write insurance. We may be exposed to risks of adverse developments that are greater than if
we conducted business nationwide.

We depend on independent insurance agents, which exposes us to risks not applicable to companies with
dedicated agents.

We market and sell our insurance products through independent, non-exclusive insurance agencies. These
agencies are not obligated to sell our insurance products, and generally they also sell our competitors’ insurance
products. As a result, our business depends in part on the marketing and sales efforts of these agencies. If we diversify
and expand our business geographically, then we may need to expand our network of agencies to successfully market
our products. If these agencies fail to market our products successfully, our business may be adversely impacted. Also,
independent agents may decide to sell their businesses to banks, other insurance agencies or other businesses. Changes
in ownership of agencies, or expansion of agencies through acquisition, could adversely affect an agency’s ability to
control growth and profitability, thereby adversely affecting our business.

If our insurance subsidiaries are not able to pay adequate dividends to us, our ability to meet our obligations
and pay dividends would be affected.

Qur principal assets are the shares of capital stock of our insurance company subsidiaries. We principally rely
on dividends from our insurance company subsidiaries to meet our obligations for paying principal and interest on
outstanding debt obligations and for paying corporate expenses and dividends to shareholders. As described below, the
payment of dividends by our insurance company subsidiaries is subject to regulatory restrictions and will depend on the
surplus and future earnings of these subsidiaries, as well as other regulatory restrictions. As a result, we may not be
able to receive dividends from these subsidiaries at times and in amounts necessary to meet our obligations or to allow
us to pay dividends.

Generally, the maximum dividend that may be paid by an insurance subsidiary during any year without prior
regulatory approval is limited to a stated percentage of that subsidiary’s statutory surplus as of a certain date, or
adjusted net income of the subsidiary for the preceding year. Our insurance subsidiaries paid dividends to us of
$63.0 million in 2007 and $15.0 million in 2005. No dividends were paid in 2006. Applying the current regulatory
restrictions as of December 31, 2007, $112.2 million would be available for distribution to us without prior approval
after June 5, 2008. We anticipate no objections to the payment of the dividends described in the preceding sentence.

Notwithstanding the foregoing, if insurance regulators otherwise determine that payment of a dividend to an
affiliate would be detrimental to an insurance subsidiary’s policyholdets or creditors, because of the financial condition
of the insurance subsidiary or otherwise, the regulators may block dividends to affiliates that would otherwise be
permitted without prior approval.

Qur subsidiaries are permitted under the terms of our indebtedness to incur additional indebtedness that may
restrict or prohibit the making of distributions, the payment of dividends or the making of loans by our subsidiaries to
us. We cannot assure you that the agreements governing the current and future indebtedness of our subsidiaries will
permit our subsidiaries to provide us with sufficient dividends, distributions or loans to fund payments on these notes
when due.

Although we have paid cash dividends in the past, we may not be able to pay cash dividends in the future.

We have a history of paying dividends to our shareholders when sufficient cash is available. However, future
cash dividends will depend upon our results of operations, financial condition, cash requirements and other factors,
including the ability of our subsidiaries to make distributions to us, which ability is restricted in the manner previously
discussed in this section. Also, there can be ng assurance that we will continue to pay dividends even if the necessary
financial conditions are met and if sufficient cash is available for distribution.
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If our technology initiatives are not successful, or the benefits are not realized, our business could be adversely
affected.

Our businesses are increasingly dependent on technology. Our inability to anticipate or manage problems with
technology, or fully realize the expected benefits from investments in technology, could adversely affect our ability to
write business, and could adversely impact our financial results.

If we lose our key personnel ¢ur business could be adversely affected.

The success of our business is dependent, to a large extent, on our ability to attract and retain key employees,
in particular our senior officers, and key management, sales, information systems, underwriting, claims and corporate
personnel. Competition to attract and retain key personnel is intense. Although we have change of control agreements
with a number of key managers, in general, we do not have employment contracts or non-compete arrangements with,
or key person insurance covering, our employees, including our key employees.

Applicable insurance laws and certain provisions in our certificate of incorporation make it difficult to effect a
change of control of our Company, and the Mutual Company has significant influence over potential change of
control transactions, which could affect our share value.

Under applicable insurance laws and regulations of the states in which our subsidiaries are domiciled, no
person may acquire control of us unless that person has filed a statement containing specified information with the
insurance commissioner of each state and obtains advance approval for such acquisition. Under applicable laws and
regulations, any person acquiring, directly or indirectly {by revocable proxy or otherwise), 10% or more of the voting
stock of any other person is presumed to have acquired control of such person, and a person who beneficially acquires
10% or more of our common stock without obtaining advance approval of the insurance commissioner of each state
would be in violation of applicable insurance laws and would be subject to injunctive action requiring disposition or
seizure of the shares and prohibiting the voting of such shares, as well as other action determined by the insurance
commissioner of each such state.

In addition, many state insurance laws require prior notification to the state insurance department of a change
of control of a non-domiciliary insurance company licensed to transact an insurance business in that state. Although
these pre-notification statutes do not authorize the state insurance departments to disapprove the change of control, they
authorize regulatory action — including a possible revocation of our authority to do business — in the affected state if
particular conditions exist such as undue market concentration. Any future transactions that would constitute a change
of control of us may require prior notification in the states that have pre-acquisition notification laws,

As of December 31, 2007, the Mutual Company owned approximately 53% of our outstanding common stock.
The Mutual Company’s stock ownership and ability, by reason of such ownership, to elect our board of directors,
provides it with significant influence over potential change of control transactions. Section 203 of the Delaware
General Corporation Law provides, however, that if a person acquires 15% or more of our voting stock, the person is
an “interested stockholder” and may not engage in “business combinations” with us for a period of three years from the
time the person acquired 15% or more of our voting stock, subject to certain exceptions.

Finally, our certificate of incorporation permits our board of directors to issue up to one million shares of
preferred stock having such terms, including voting rights, as the board of directors shall fix and determine.
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Item 7A. Quantitative and Qualitative Disclosures about Market Risk.
Interest Rate Risk

Harleysville Group’s exposure to market risk for changes in interest rates is concentrated in its investment
portfolio and, to a lesser extent, its debt obligations. Harleysville Group monitors this exposure through periodic
reviews of asset and liability positions. Estimates of cash flows and the impact of interest rate fluctuations relating to
the investment portfolio are modeled regularly.

Principal cash flows and related weighted-average interest rates by expected maturity dates for financial
instruments sensitive to interest rates are as follows:

December 31, 2007
Principal Weighted-Average
Cash Flows Interest Rate
(dollars in thousands)

Fixed maturities and short-term investments:

2008 $ 375,479 5.03%
2009 210,938 4.67%
2010 214,825 4.79%
2011 240,104 5.47%
2012 268,659 5.27%
Thereafier 930,496 5.20%
Total 3 2,240,501
Fair value 3 2,285,643
Securities lending collateral:
2008 3 86,956 4.64%
2009 31,447 3.48%
2010 5,155 4.62%
Total 3 123,558
Fair value $ 122,053
Debt:
2012 $ 18,500 5.68%
2013 100,000 5.75%
Total 3 118,500
Fair value $ 116,382
Securities lending obligation:
2008 $ 123,542 4.23%
Fair value $ 123,542

Actual cash fiows may differ from those stated as a result of calls and prepayments.
Equity Price Risk

Harleysville Group’s portfolio of equity securities, which is carried on the balance sheet at fair value, has
exposure to price risk. Price risk is defined as the potential loss in fair value resulting from an adverse change in prices.
Portfolio characteristics are analyzed regularly and price risk is actively managed through a variety of techniques.

The combined total of realized and unrealized equity investment gains was $3.5 million, $8.6 million and
$1.2 million in 2007, 2006 and 2005, respectively. During these three years, the largest total equity investment gain and
(loss) in a quarter was $7.0 million (1st quarter 2006) and $(5.8) million (2nd quarter 2006}, respectively.
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HARLEYSVILLE GROUP
CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEETS
(in thousands, except share data)

Assets
Investments:
Fixed maturities:
Held to maturity, at amortized cost (fair value $317,091 and $377,348)
Auvailable for sale, at fair value (amortized cost $1,715,219 and $1,600,940)
Equity securities, at fair value (cost $66,433 and $62,932)
Short-term investments, at cost, which approximates fair value
Fixed maturity securities on loan:
Held to maturity, at amortized cost {fair value $2,419 and $4,487)
Available for sale, at fair value (amortized cost $116,047 and $116,711)
Total investments
Cash
Receivables:
Premiums
Reinsurance
Accrued investment income
Total receivables

Deferred policy acquisition costs
Prepaid reinsurance premiums
Property and equipment, net
Deferred income taxes
Securities lending collateral
Due from affiliate
Other assets

Total assets

Liabilities and Shareholders’ Equity
Liabilities:
Unpatd losses and loss settlement expenses (affiliate $149,826 and $178,327)
Unearned premiums (affiliate $28,555 and $33,850)
Accounts payable and accrued expenses
Securities lending obligation
Debt (affiliate $18,500 and $18,500)
Total liabilities

Shareholders’ equity:

Preferred stock, $1 par value, authorized 1,000,000 shares; none issued

Common stock, $1 par value, authorized 80,000,000 shares; issued 2007,
33,656,253 and 2006, 33,060,600 shares; outstanding 2007, 30,322,905 and
2006, 31,662,691 shares

Additional paid-in capital

Accumulated other comprehensive income

Retained earnings

Treasury stock, at cost, 3,333,348 and 1,397,909 shares

Total shareholders’ equity

Total liabitities and shareholders’ equity

See accompanying notes to consolidated financial statements.
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December 31,

2007 2006
$ 313,629 $ 378,049
1,740,045 1,606,333
76,297 71,446
107,941 72,237
2,414 4,408
118,147 116,541
2,358,473 2,245,014
412 227
146,238 147,445
167,671 167,199
26,220 25,823
340,129 340,467
101,954 102,317
38,721 37,242
13,475 16,690
38,544 60,643
122,053 124,755
7,197 5,716
51,487 53,913
$ 3,072,445 § 2,990,584
$ 1,546,690 $ 1,493,645
450,186 443738
74,686 98,184
123,542 124,755
118,500 118,500
2,313,604 2,278,822
33,656 33,061
213,654 197,607
20,599 14
578,705 505,967
(87.773) (24,487)
758,841 712,162
$ 3,072,445 $ 2,990,984




HARLEYSVILLE GROUP
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF INCOME
(in thousands, except per share data)

Year Ended December 31,
2007 2006 2005
Revenues:
Premiums earned from affiliate {ceded to affiliate, $753,806, $742,752
and $749,085) $ 833,024 % 838,821 §$ 841,567
Investment income, net of investment expense 110,827 102,609 90,572
Realized investment gains, net 875 40,605 233
Other income (affiliate $6,303, $6,420 and $6,697) 17,286 17,136 15,968
Total revenues 962,012 099,171 948,340
Expenses:
Losses and loss settlement expenses (ceded to affiliate, $490,058,
$482,783 and $490,339) 523,030 539,823 567,396
Amortization of deferred policy acquisition costs 207,684 212,872 210,665
Other underwriting expenses 76,223 78,208 79,367
Interest expense (affiliate $1,057, $1,016 and $699) 7,085 6,943 6,648
Other expenses 4,995 4,957 5,343
Total expenses 819,017 842,803 869,419
Income before income taxes and cumulative effect of accounting
change 142,995 156,368 78,921
Income taxes 42941 46,241 17,490
Income before cumulative effect of accounting change 100,054 110,127 61,431
Cumulative effect of accounting change, net of income taxes 542
Net income $ 100,054 § 111,069 § 61,431
Per common share:
Basic income before cumulative effect of accounting change 3 324 % 355 8 2.02
Basic cumulative effect of accounting change 03
Basic net income 3 324 § 358 § 2.02
Diluted income before cumulative effect of accounting change $ 319 § 349 § 2.01
Diluted cumulative effect of accounting change .03
Diluted net income $ 319 § 352 § 2.0!
Cash dividend 3 3% 8 33 3 69

See accompanying notes to consolidated financia)l statements.
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Balance at December 31, 2004

Net income

Other comprehensive loss, net
of tax:

Unrealized investment
losses, net of reclassifi-
cation adjustment

Minimum pension liability
adjustment

Other comprehensive loss

Comprehensive income

Issuance of commeon stock:

Incentive plans

Dividend Reinvestment
Plan

Tax benefit from stock options
exercised

Cash dividends paid

Deferred compensation

Balance at December 31, 2005

Net income

Other comprehensive loss, net
of tax:

Unrealized investment
losses, net of reclassifi-
cation adjustment

Minimum pension liability
adjustment

Other comprehensive loss

Comprehensive income

Issuance of common stock:

Incentive plans

Dividend Reinvestment
Plan

Tax benefit from stock
compensation

Stock compensation

Reclassification of deferred
compensation

Cash dividends paid

Balance at December 31, 2006

HARLEYSVILLE GROUP
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF SHAREHOLDERS' EQUITY
For the years ended December 31, 2007, 2006 and 2005
(dollars in thousands)

Accumulated
Common Stock Additional Other
Paid-in Comprehensive Retained Deferred Treasury
Shares Amount Capital Inceme Earpings Compensation Stock Total

31,589,474 § 31,589 § 161,689 § 42,051 § 377282 8%

61,431

{20,896)

(867)

392,417 393 7,067

26,251 26 561

564
(21,008)
(812)

(200} $ (24,487) § 587,924

61,431

(20,896)
(867)
(21,763)

__ 39.668
7,460

587

564
(21,008)

@®12)

32,008,142 32,008 169,881 20,288 417,705

111,069

(1,012)

(25,189)

4,915

1,033,472 1,034 20,359

18,986 19 592

3,258
4,529

(1,012) 1,012
(22,807)

(24,487)

614,383
111,069

(25,189)

4915

(20,274)
90,795

21,393
611
3,258

4,529

(22,807)

33,060,600 § 33,061 § 197,607 § 14 § 505967 3
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HARLEYSVILLE GROUP
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF SHAREHOLDERS’ EQUITY
For the years ended December 31, 2007, 2006 and 2005
(dollars in thousands)

(Continued)
Accumulated
Common Stock Additional Other .
Paid-in Comprehensive Retained Treasury
Shares Amount Capital Income Earnings Stock Total
Net income 3 3 b} k) 100,054 § $ 100,054
Other comprehensive income, net
of tax:
Unrealized investment gains,
net of reclassification
adjustment 14,556 14,556
Defined benefit pension plans:
Net actuarial loss
adjustment 6,029 6,029
Other comprehensive income 20,585
Comprehensive income 120,639
Issuance of common stock:
Incentive plans 576,571 576 8,214 8,790
Dividend Reinvestment Plan 19,082 19 613 632
Tax benefit from stock
compensation 2,497 2,497
Stock compensation 4,723 4,723
Purchase of treasury stock,
1,935,439 shares (63,286) (63,286)
Cash dividends paid (27,316) {27,316)
Balance at December 31, 2007 33,656,253 $ 33656 § 213,654 § 20,599 $ 578,705 §  (87,773)8 758,841

See accompanying notes to consolidated financial statements.
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HARLEYSVILLE GROUP
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS
(in thousands)

Year Ended December 31,
2007 2006 2005

Cash flows from operating activities:
Net income $ 100,054 § 111,069 $ 61431
Adjustments to reconcile net income
to net cash provided by operating activities:

Cumulative effect of accounting change, net of tax (942)
Change in receivables, unearned premiums and

prepaid reinsurance 5,307 74,448 (59,395)
Change in affiliate balance (1,481) (4,694) (13,520)
Increase in unpaid losses and loss settlement expenses 53,045 12,843 163,067
Deferred income taxes 11,013 13,123 1,499
Decrease (increase) in deferred policy acquisition costs 363 1,856 (3,418)
Amortization and depreciation 4,192 4,291 5,097
Realized investment gains, net (875) (40,603) (233)
Change in other assets and other liabilities (2,135) (11,289) 9,706
Other, net 2,043 5,965 859

Net cash provided by operating activities 171,526 166,065 165,093

Cash flows from investing activities:
Held to maturity investments:

Maturities 63,284 58,219 58,638
Available for sale investments:
Purchases (309,760) (575,900) (416,763)
Maturities 164,258 170,954 122,097
Sales 20,600 186,254 35,990
Net (purchases) sales or maturities of short-term investments (35,704) (7,918) 49,503
Sale (purchase) of property and equipment, net 4,659 (375) 743
Net cash used by investing activities (92,663) (168,766) (149,792)
Cash flows from financing activities:
Issuance of common stock 9,427 22,011 6,970
Purchase of treasury stock (63,286)
Repayment of debt (1,125)
Dividends paid (to affiliate, $14,449, $12,412 and $11,732) (27,316) (22,807) (21,008)
Excess tax benefits from share-based payment arrangements 2,497 3,258
Net cash (used) provided by financing activities (78,678) 2462 (15,163)
Increase {decrease) in cash 185 (239) 138
Cash at beginning of year 227 466 328
Cash at end of year $ 412 227 % 466

See accompanying notes to consolidated financial statements.
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NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
1 - Description of Business and Summary of Significant Accounting Policies
Description of Business

Harleysville Group consists of Harleysville Group Inc. and its subsidiaries (all wholly owned). Those
subsidiaries are:

- Harleysville-Atlantic Insurance Company (Atlantic)
- Harleysville Insurance Company (HIC)
- Harleysville Insurance Company of New Jersey (HNJ)
- Harleysville Insurance Company of New York (HIC New York)
- Harleysville Insurance Company of Chio (HIC Ohio)
- Harleysville Lake States Insurance Company (Lake States)
- Harleysville Preferred Insurance Company (Preferred)
- Harleysville Worcester Insurance Company (Worcester)
- Mid-America Insurance Company (Mid-America) - merged into Worcester in 2007
- Harleysville Ltd., a real estate partnership that owns the home office
Harleysville Group is approximately 53% owned by Harleysville Mutual Insurance Company (Mutual).

Harleysville Group underwrites property and casualty insurance in both the personal and commercial lines of
insurance. The personal lines of insurance include both auto and homeowners, and the commercial lines include auto,
commercial multi-peril and workers compensation. The business is marketed primarily in the eastern and midwestern
United States through independent agents.

Principles of Consolidation and Basis of Presentation

The accompanying financial statements include the accounts of Harleysville Group prepared in conformity
with U.S. generally accepted accounting principles, which differ in some respects from those followed in reports to
insurance regulatory authorities. All significant intercompany balances and transactions have been eliminated in
consolidation.

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with U.S. generally accepted accounting principles
requires management to make estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of assets and liabilities,
including loss and loss settlement expenses, the disclosure of contingent assets and liabilities at the date of the financial
statements, and the reported amounts of revenues and expenses, including the determination of other-than-temporary
declines in investments, during the reporting period. Actual results could differ from these estimates.

Investments

Accounting for fixed maturities depends on their classification as held to maturity, available for sale or
trading. Fixed maturities classified as held to maturity are carried at amortized cost. Fixed maturities classified as
available for sale are carried at fair value. There were no investments classified as trading. Equity securities are carried
at fair value. Short-term investments are recorded at cost, which approximates fair value, The fair value of fixed
maturities is based upon data supplied by an independent pricing service. The fair value of equity securities is based on
the closing market value. The fair value of mutual fund holdings is based on the closing net asset value reported by the
fund.

Premiums and discounts on fixed income securities are amortized or accreted using the interest method.
Mortgage-backed securities are amortized over a period based on estimated future principal payments, including
prepayments. Prepayment assumptions are reviewed periodically and adjusted as necessary to reflect actual
prepayments and changes in expectations. Adjustments related to changes in prepayment assumptions are recognized
on a retrospective basis.
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Realized gains and losses on sales of investments are recognized in net income on the specific identification
basis. A decline in the fair value of an investment below its cost that is deemed other than temporary is charged to
earnings. Unrealized investment gains or losses on investments carried at fair value, net of applicable income taxes, are
reflected directly in shareholders’ equity as a component of comprehensive income and, accordingly, have no effect on
net income. However, if the fair value of an investment declines below its cost and that decline is deemed other than
temporary, the amount of the decline below cost is charged to earnings. Harleysville Group monitors its investment
portfolio and at least quarterly reviews investments that have experienced a decline in fair value below cost to evaluate
whether the decline is other than temporary. Such evaluations consider, among other things, the magnitude and reasons
for a decline, the prospects for the fair value to recover in the near term and Harleysville Group’s ability and intent to
retain the investment for a period of time sufficient to allow for a recovery in value.

Premiums

Premiums are recognized as revenue ratably over the terms of the respective policies. Unearned premiums are
calculated on a pro rata basis.

Policy Acquisition Costs

Policy acquisition costs, such as commissions, premium taxes and certain other underwriting and agency
expenses that vary with, and are primarily related to, the production of business, are deferred and amortized over the
effective period of the related insurance policies in proportion to the premiums eamed. The method followed in
computing deferred policy acquisition costs limits the amount of such deferred costs to their estimated realizable value.
The estimation of net realizable value takes into account the premium to be earned, related investment income over the
claims paying period, expected losses and loss settlement expenses, and certain other costs expected to be incurred as
the premium is earned. Future changes in estimates, the most significant of which is expected losses and loss settlement
expenses, may require adjustments to deferred policy acquisition costs. If the estimation of net realizable value
indicates that the acquisition costs are unrecoverable, further analyses are completed to determine if a reserve is
required to provide for losses that may exceed the related unearned premiums.

Losses and Loss Settlement Expenses

The liability for losses and loss settlement expenses represents estimates of the ultimate unpaid cost of all
losses incurred, which includes the gross liabilities to Harleysville Group’s policyholders plus the net liability to
Mutual under the pooling agreement. See Note 2(a). Such estimates may be more or less than the amounts ultimately
paid when the claims are settled. These estimates are periodically reviewed and adjusted as necessary; such adjustments
are reflected in current operations.

Share-Based Payments

Harleysville Group has several share-based compensation plans. Harleysville Group had accounted for the
plans under the provisions of Accounting Principles Board (APB) Opinion No. 25, “Accounting for Stock Issued to
Empioyees,” and related interpretations. Accordingly, no compensation expense was recognized prior to 2006 for fixed
stock option grants and an employee stock purchase plan. Effective January 1, 2006, Harleysville Group adopted
Statement of Financial Accounting Standards (SFAS) No. 123 (revised 2004), “Share-Based Payment” (SFAS
No. 123(R)), which replaced SFAS No. 123 and supercedes APB Opinion No. 25, using the modified prospective
application provisions. SFAS No. 123(R) requires that the cost resulting from all share-based payment transactions be
recognized in the financial statements.

Implementing SFAS No. 123(R) did not have a material effect on income before cumulative effect of
accounting change and basic or diluted earnings per share before cumulative effect of accounting change in the year
ended December 31, 2006. A cumulative effect of change in accounting benefit of $942,000, net of tax of $507,000,
was recorded in the first quarter of 2006 related to the accounting for the Long Term Incentive Plan (LTIP). The LTIP
has a cash component and a stock component which awards shares based on the total shareholder return of the
Company’s stock relative to the total shareholder return of a group of insurance company stocks. Under APB Opinion
No. 25, this plan had been accounted for using the intrinsic method. Under SFAS No. 123(R), the cash component is
accounted for under the liability method and the stock component is accounted for as an equity instrument.
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The following table illustrates the effect on net income and earnings per share as if the provisions of SFAS
No. 123 (as amended by SFAS No. 148), “Accounting for Stock-Based Compensation,” had been applied to in 2005.

2005
(in thousands,
except per share data)
Net income, as reported $ 61,431
Plus: Stock-based employee compensation expense included in reported
net income, net of related tax effects 799

Less: Total stock-based employee compensation expense determined
under fair value based method for all awards, net of related tax effects (2,934

Pro forma net income $ 59,296
Basic earnings per share:
As reported b 2.02
Pro forma $ 1.95
Diluted earnings per share:
As reported 3 2.01
Pro forma 3 1.94
Property and Equipment

Property and equipment are carried at cost less accumulated depreciation. Depreciation is calculated primarily
on the straight-line basis over the estimated useful lives of the assets (up to 40 years for buildings and three to 15 years
for equipment}).

Income Taxes

Deferred income tax assets and liabilities are recognized for the expected future tax consequences attributable
to differences between the financial statement carrying amounts of existing assets and liabilities and their respective tax
bases.

Earnings Per Share

Basic earnings per share is computed by dividing earnings by the weighted-average number of common shares
outstanding during the year. Diluted earnings per share includes the dilutive effect of the stock incentive plans
described in Note 10,

New Accounting Standards

In September 2006, the FASB issued SFAS No. 157, “Fair Value Measurements.” This statement defines fair
value, establishes a framework for measuring fair value in generally accepted accounting principles, and expands
disclosures about fair value measurements. This statement applies under other accounting pronouncements that require
or permit fair value measurements. The statement is effective for financial statements issued for fiscal years beginning
after November 15, 2007. The impact of adopting this statement on Harleysville Group’s results of operations and
financial condition is not expected to be material.

In February 2007, the FASB issued SFAS No. 159, “The Fair Value Option for Financial Assets and Financial
Liabilities—-Including an amendment of FASB Statement No. 115.” SFAS No. 159 permits companies to choose to
measure many financial instruments and certain other items at fair value at specified election dates. Upon adoption, an
entity shall report unrealized gains and losses on items for which the fair value option has been elected in earnings at
each subsequent reporting date. Most of the provisions apply only to entities that elect the fair value option. However,
the amendment to SFAS No. 115, “Accounting for Certain Investments in Debt and Equity Securities,” applies to all
entities with available for sale and trading securities. SFAS No. 159 is effective as of the beginning of an entity’s first
fiscal year that begins after November 15, 2007. The impact of adopting this statement on Harleysville Group’s results
of operations and financial condition is not expected to be material.
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2 - Transactions with Affiliates
(a) Underwriting

The insurance subsidiaries participate in a reinsurance pooling agreement with Mutual whereby such
subsidiaries cede to Mutual all of their insurance business and assume from Mutval an amount equal to their
participation in the pooling agreement. All losses and loss settlement expenses and other underwriting expenses are
prorated among the parties on the basis of participation in the pooling agreement. The agreement pertains to all
insurance business written or eamed on or after January 1, 1986. Harleysville Group’s participation was 72% for 2007,
2006, and 2005.

Effective January |, 2008, the Company’s property and casualty subsidiaries and Mutual and its property and
casualty subsidiary, Harleysville Pennland Insurance Company (Pennland) amended their intercompany pooling
agreement to increase Harleysville Group’s share of the pool from 72% to 80%. Harleysville Group received cash and
investments of $192.1 million on January 3, 2008 associated with the transfer of assets and liabilities from the Mutual
Company and Pennland to Harleysville Group in connection with the pool change.

Because this pooling agreement does not relieve Harleysville Group of primary liability as the originating
insurer, there is a concentration of credit risk arising from business ceded to Mutual. However, the reinsurance pooling
agreement provides for the right of offset, and the amount of credit risk with Mutual was not material at December 31,
2007 and 2006. Mutual has an A. M. Best rating of “A-" (Excellent).

The following amounts represent reinsurance transactions between Harleysville Group and Mutual under the
pooling arrangement:

2007 2006 2005
(in thousands)
Ceded:
Premiums written $ 764,070 $ 750,516 § 743,170
Premiums earned $ 753,806 $ 742,752 § 740,273
Losses incurred $ 490,058 § 482,599 § 490,517
Assumed;
Premiums written $ 837993 $ 838817 § 847,856
Premiums earned $ 833024 S 838821 § 850,379
Losses incurred $ 522,735 % 539213 § 566,770
Net assumed from Mutual:
Unearned premiums $ 28,555 $ 33850 $ 41,618
Unpaid losses and loss
settlement expenses $ 149826 §$ 178,327 § 187,293

Harleysville Group had a reinsurance agreement with Mutual whereby Mutual reinsured accumulated
catastrophe losses in a quarter up to $14,400,000 in excess of $3,600,000 in return for a reinsurance premium. The
agreement was terminated on December 31, 2005. The agreement excluded catastrophe losses resulting from
earthquakes, terrorism or hurricanes, and supplemented the existing external catastrophe reinsurance program. Under
this agreement, Harleysville Group ceded to Mutual no premiums earned for 2007 and 2006, and premiums earned of
$8,812,000 for 2005. Losses incurred ceded to Mutual under the agreement were not material for any of the periods
presented.

(b) Property

Harleysville Ltd. leases the home office to Mutual, which shares the facility with Harleysville Group. Rental
income under the lease was $4,086,000, $4,051,000 and $3,961,000 for 2007, 2006, and 2003, respectively, and is
included in other income after elimination of intercompany amounts of $2,501,000, $2,479,000 and $2,424,000 in
2007, 2006 and 2005, respectively.
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{c) Management Agreements

Harteysville Group Inc. received $6,303,000, $6,420,000 and 36,697,000 of management fee income in 2007,
2006 and 2005, respectively, under agreements whereby Harleysville Group Inc. provides management services to
Mutual and other affiliates. Such amounts are included in other income.

(d) Intercompany Balances

Intercompany balances are created primarily from the pooling arrangement (settled quarterly), allocation of
common expenses, collection of premium balances and payment of claims (settled meonthly). No interest is charged or
received on intercompany balances due to the timely settlement terms and nature of the items. Interest expense on the
loan from Mutual described in Note 7 was $1,057,000, $1,016,000 and $699,000 in 2007, 2006 and 2005, respectively.

Harleysville Group has off-balance-sheet credit risk related to approximately $78,000,000 and $77,000,000 of
premium balances due to Mutual from agents and insureds at December 31, 2007 and 2006, respectively.

3 - Investments

The amortized cost and estimated fair value of investments, including amounts on loan under the securities
lending agreement, in fixed maturity and equity securities are as follows:

December 31, 2007
Gross Gross Estimated
Amortized Unrealized Unrealized Fair
Cost Gains Losses Value
(in thousands)

Held to maturity:

U.S. Treasury securities and obligations of U.S.

government corporations and agencies $ 2,708 § 10 $ 2,718

Obligations of states and political subdivisions 173,027 2426 § (291) 175,162

Corporate securities 140,308 2,158 (836) 141,630
Total held to maturity 316,043 4,594 {(L127) 319,510
Available for sale:

U.S. Treasury securities and obligations of U.8.

government corporations and agencies 251,672 7,155 9 258,748

Obligations of states and political subdivisions 587,054 9,837 (623) 596,268

Corporate securities 623,397 9,787 (3,487) 629,697

Mortgage-backed securities 369,143 6,010 {1,674) 373,479
Total available for sale 1,831,266 32,789 (5,863) 1,858,192
Total fixed maturities $ 2147309 § 37383 § (6990) $§ 2,177,702
Total equity securities b 66433 3% 10,105 § (241) § 76,297
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December 31, 2006

Gross Gross Estimated
Amortized Unrealized Unrealized Fair
Cost Gains Losses VYalue

(in thousands)
Held to maturity:
U.S. Treasury securities and obligations of U.S.

government corporations and agencies $ 3,881 3 (45) % 3,836
Obligations of states and political subdivisions 218,188 § 2,090 (1,449) 218,829
Corporate securities 160,388 1,696 (2,914) 159,170

Total held to maturity 382,457 3,786 (4,408) 381,835

Available for sale:
U.S. Treasury securities and obligations of U.S.

government corporations and agencies 268,424 1,846 (2,713) 267,557
Obligations of states and political subdivisions 496,484 6,400 (2,785) 500,099
Corporate securities 578,276 7,122 (4,687) 580,711
Mortgage-backed securities 374,467 2,892 (2,852) 374,507

Total available for sale 1,717,651 18,260 (13,037) 1,722,874
Total fixed maturities $ 2,100,108 $ 22046 $ (17.445) § 2,104,709
Total equity securities $ 62932 § 8550 3 (36) 3% 71,446

The amortized cost and estimated fair value of fixed maturity securities at December 31, 2007 by contractual
maturity are shown below. Expected maturities may differ from contractual maturities because borrowers may have the
right to call or prepay obligations with or without call or prepayment penalties.

Estimated
Amortized Fair
Cost Value
(in thousands}
Held to maturity:
Due in one year or less by 76428 § 76,911
Due after one year through five years 148,976 150,834
Due after five years through ten years 87,305 88,269
Due afier ten years 3,334 3,496
316,043 319,510
Available for sale:
Due in one year or less 188,492 189,724
Due after one year through five years 624,079 635,342
Due after five years through ten years 596,173 604,325
Due after ten years 53,379 55,322
1,462,123 1,484,713
Mortgage-backed securities 369,143 373479
1,831,266 1,858,192
Total fixed maturities $ 2,147309 § 2,177,702

The amortized cost of fixed maturities on deposit with various regulatory authorities at December 31, 2007
and 2006 amounted to $32,097,000 and $36,942,000, respectively.
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The estimated fair value and unrealized loss for temporarily impaired securities is as follows:

December 31, 2007

Less than 12 Menths 12 Months or Longer Total
Estimated Unrealized Estimated Unrealized Estimated Unrealized
Fair Value Losses Fair Value Losses Fair Value Losses

(in thousands)
U.S. Treasury securities and
obligations of U.S. government

corporations and agencies $ 4557 $ 24§ 14465 % 55 % 19022 % 79
Obligations of states and
political subdivisions 10,535 66 93,965 848 104,500 914
Corporate securities 113,545 1,898 165,416 2,425 278,961 4,323
Mortgage-backed securities 74,488 570 49,300 1,104 123,788 1,674
Total fixed maturities 203,125 2,558 323,146 4,432 526,271 6,990
Total equity securities 7,861 24] 7,861 241
Total temporarily
impaired securities $ 210986 § 2,799 § 323,146 3% 4,432 § 534,132 § 7,231
December 31, 2006 .
Less than 12 Months 12 Months or Longer Total
Estimated Unrealized Estimated Unrealized Estimated Unrealized
Fair Value Losses Fair Value Losses Fair Value Losses

{in thousands)
U.S. Treasury securities and
obligations of U.S. government

corporations and agencies § 37270 § 74 § 144974 § 2683 § 182,244 § 2,757
Obligations of states and

political subdivisions $3,962 380 143,437 3,855 197,399 4,235
Corporate securities 133,135 1,608 209,562 5,993 342,697 7,601
Mortgage-backed securities 71,476 426 105,413 2426 176,389 2,852
Total fixed maturities 295,843 2,488 603,386 14,957 899,229 17,445
Total equity securities 1,564 18 22 18 1,586 36
Total temporarily

impaired securities $ 297407 $§ 2506 $ 603408 $ 14975 § 900,815 § 17481

Of the total fixed maturity securities with an unrealized loss at December 31, 2007, securities with a fair value
of $424.0 million and an unrealized loss of $5.% million are classified as available for sale and are carried at fair value
on the balance sheet while securities with a fair value of $102.3 million and an unrealized loss of $1.1 million are
classified as held to maturity on the balance sheet and are carried at amortized cost.

The fixed maturity investments with continuous unrealized losses for less than twelve months were primarily
due to a widening of credit spreads rather than a decline in credit quality. There are $323.1 million in fixed maturity
securities, at fair value, that at December 31, 2007, had been below amortized cost for over 12 months. The
$4.4 million of unrealized losses on such securities primarily relates to securities which carry an investment grade debt
rating and have declined in fair value roughly in line with market interest rate changes. Harleysville Group currently
has the ability and intent to hold these securities until recovery.

There are four positions that comprise the unrealized loss in equity investments at December 31, 2007. They
have not been below cost for significant continuous amounts of time. Harleysville Group has been monitoring these
securities and it is possible that some may be written down in the income statement in the future.
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A summary of net investment income is as follows;

2007 2006 2005
(in thousands)
Interest on fixed maturities $ 105861 % 95,101 § 86,463
Dividends on equity securities 1,340 2,585 3,018
Interest on short-term investments 5,978 6,110 2,780
Total investment income 113,179 103,796 92,261
Investment expense 2,352 1,187 1,689
Net investment income $ 110,827 § 102609 3 90,572

Realized gross gains (losses) from investments and the change in difference between fair value and cost of
investments, before applicable income taxes, are as follows:

2007 2006 2005
(in thousands)
Fixed maturity securities:
Held to maturity:
Gross gains b 24 3% 28
Gross losses {(159)
Available for sale:
Gross gains 84 $ 123
Gross losses (406) (128) (247)
Equity securities:
Gross gains 2,183 43,058 4,558
Gross losses (22) (2,353) (4,201)
Securities lending collateral:
Available for sale:
Gross losses (829)
Net realized investment gains b 875 § 40605 § 233
Change in difference between fair value and cost of investments'":
Fixed maturity securities b 25,792 §  (11,518) § (46,843)
Equity securities 1,350 (32,095) 855
Securities lending collateral (660)
Total $ 26482 § (43,613) §  (45,988)

(1) Parentheses indicate a net unrealized decline in fair value.

Income taxes on realized investment gains were $306,000, $14,212,000 and $81,000 for 2007, 2006 and 2005,
respectively.

Deferred income tax liabilities applicable to net unrealized investment gains included in shareholders’ equity
were $12,646,000 and $4,808,000 at December 31, 2007 and 2006, respectively.

There were impairment charges of $1,400,000 in 2007 and no impairment charges in 2006.

In April 2007, bonds with an amortized cost of $1,882,000 were transferred from the held to maturity category
to the available for sale category due to a significant deterioration in the credit worthiness of the issuer. An impairment
loss of $118,000 was recognized on this security. The security was sold in the third quarter of 2007 at a gain of
$76,000.

Harleysville Group participates in a securities lending program whereby certain fixed maturity securities from
the investment portfolio are loaned to other institutions for a short period of time in return for a fee. At December 31,
2007, Harleysville Group had received, and had the obligation to return, cash collateral of $123,500,000. The cash
collateral received was invested, as described below, in investments with a fair value at December 31, 2007 of
$122,100,000 related io securities on loan with a fair value of $120,600,000. Harleysville Group’s policy is to require
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initial collateral of 102% of the fair value of loaned securities plus accrued interest, which is required to be maintained
daily by the borrower at no less than 100% of such fair value plus accrued interest over the life of the loan. Cash
collateral received can be further invested in money market instruments, government securities, “A” rated corporate
obligations, “AAA” rated asset-backed securities or GICs and Funding Agreements from issuers rated “A” or better.
The cash collateral Harleysville Group received was invested as follows at December 31, 2007: 52% of the collateral
was held in cash and cash equivalents (maturities of three months or less) and 48% of the collateral was held in
securities which may fluctuate in value and have variable interest rates and maturities of up to three years. These
securities are classified as available for sale. The securities on loan to others have been segregated from the other
invested assets on the balance sheet. In addition, the assets and liabilities have been grossed up to reflect the investment
of the collateral received under the securities lending program and the obligation to return this collateral upon the return
of the loaned securities.

At December 31, 2007, Harleysville Group held the following fixed maturity investments in its securities
lending collateral portfolio:

Stated
Maturity Fair Unrealized
Date Cost Value Gain{Loss)
{(in thousands)

Structured Investment Vehicles (SIVs)
Cheyne Finance LLC, Medium Term Note SER 144A 02/10/2009 § 6,898 § 6,898 —_
Stanfield Victoria LLC, Medium Term Note SER 144A 08/25/2008 2,673 2,604 % (69)
Stanfield Victoria LLC, Medium Term Note SER 144A 08/05/2008 2,673 2,604 (69)
Liberty Lighthouse, Medium Term Note SER 144A 03/16/2010 2,577 2,527 (50)
Sigma Finance Inc, Medium Term Note 01/16/2009 7,731 7,570 (161)
Liquid Funding LTD, Medium Term Note SER 144A 11/04/2008 5,151 5,162 11
Liquid Funding LTD, Medium Term Note SER 144A 09/29/2008 2,674 2,662 (12)
Atlas Capital Fund. Corp, Medium Term Note SER 144A 07/11/2008 2,674 2,669 (3)

Total SIVs $ 33,051 § 32,69 $ (355)

Other Investments
CIT Group Inc., Medium Term Note SER A 05/14/2009 § 2,577 § 2,568 § {9
CIT Group Inc., Medium Term Note 11/04/2008 2,578 2,560 (18)
Hertz Vehicle Financing LLC ABS 12/09/2008 2,578 2,567 iy
Monumentat Global Funding I1I, Medium Term Note 05/24/2010 2,578 2,571 (7
Monumental Global Funding 11, Medium Term Note 09/22/2009 2,577 2,559 (18)
Pacific Life Global Funding Note SER 144A 08/10/2009 2,578 2,574 4
SLM Corp. Medium Term Note SER 144A 03/16/2009 8,248 8,012 (236)
General Electric Cap Corp Medium Term Note SER A 05/19/2008 2,674 2,672 2)
Barclays Bank PLC Corp. CD 02/21/2008 2,674 2,674 —
Citibank NA Corp. CD 02/21/2008 2,674 2,674 —
Wachovia Corp. CD 02/21/2008 2,674 2,674 —
Open End Repo Agreements 55,252 55,252 —

Total Other Investments § 89662 § 89357 % (305)

Total Securities Lending Portfolio $122,713 $122,053 § (660)

The fixed maturity investments in the SIVs consist predominantly of asset-backed and mortgage-backed
securities. Each of the SIVs listed above represents a senior claim on the assets of the issuer. The Cheyne and Stanfield
Victoria heldings are in technical default and are currently under the supervision of receivers appointed to protect the
interests of senior creditors. In the fourth quarter of 2007, an impairment loss of $829,000 was recognized on the
Cheyne holding due to a significant deterioration in the credit worthiness of the issuer.
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Due to illiquid market conditions and deteriorating fundamentals in the housing industry, the value of some of
the underlying assets that secure our position as a senior creditor in the SIVs is uncertain at this time. Depending upon
developments involving the performance of the assets held by the SIVs, it is possible that the 81V holdings listed above
may be written down in the income statement in the future.

Subsequent to December 31, 2007, the Atlas Capital Funding Corp. Medium Term Note was converted into a
Wachovia Bank Certificate of Deposit with the same maturity date. In February 2008, we divested both of our Liquid
Funding LTD Medium Term Notes maturing on November 4, 2008 and September 29, 2008 for losses of $15,000 and
$10,000, respectively.

One of the holdings within the security lending portfolio, with an unrealized loss of $18,000 at December 31,
2007, has had an unrealized loss for over twelve months.

Harleysville Group has not directty held or issued derivative financial instruments during the periods
presented.

4 - Reinsurance

In the ordinary course of business, Harleysville Group cedes insurance to, and assumes insurance from,
insurers to limit its maximum loss exposure through diversification of its risks. See Note 2(a) for discussion of
reinsurance with Mutual. Reinsurance contracts do not relieve Harleysville Group of primary liability as the originating
insurer. After excluding reinsurance transactions with Mutual under the pooling arrangement in the assumed and ceded
amounts below, the effect of Harleysville Group’s share of other reinsurance on premiums written and eamed is as
follows:

2007 2006 2005
(in thousands)

Premiums written:

Direct $ 916,801 § 904970 § 907,880

Assumed 13,559 21,222 25,885

Ceded {92,367) {87.375) (94,721)
Net premiums written $ 837993 § 838817 $§ 839,044
Premiums earned:

Direct $ 907,660 $ 900,029 § 907,670

Assumed 16,252 23,181 27,036

Ceded {50,888) (84,189) (93,139)
Net premiums earmned $ 833024 $ 838821 § 841,567

Losses and loss seitlement expenses are net of reinsurance recoveries of $34,901,000, $40,633,000 and
$£141,449.000 for 2007, 2006 and 2005, respectively. Reinsurance recoveries for 2005 include approximately
$129,000,000 in recoveries from the National Flood Insurance Program, primarily relating to Hurricane Katrina.

5 - Property and Equipment

Property and equipment consisted of land and buildings with a cost of $26,270,000 and $29,679,000, and
equipment, including software, with a cost of $9,726,000 and $11,579,000 at December 31, 2007 and 2006,
respectively. Accumulated depreciation related to such assets was $22,521,000 and $24,568,000 at December 31, 2007
and 2006, respectively.

Rental expense under leases with non-affiliates amounted to $2,732,000, $3,033,000 and $2,753,000 for 2007,
2006 and 2005, respectively. Operating lease commitments were not material at December 31, 2007.

In the second quarter of 2007, the Company sold its office building in Traverse City, Michigan and recognized
a pre-tax gain of $2,700,000 which is included in other income.
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6 - Liability for Unpaid Losses and Loss Settlement Expenses

Activity in the liability for unpaid losses and loss settlement expenses is summarized as follows:

2007 2006 2005
(in thousands)
Liability at January 1 $ 1,493,645 § 1,480,802 § 1,317,735
Less reinsurance recoverables 163,796 243,712 186,126
Net liability at January 1 1,329,849 1,237,090 1,131,609
Incurred related to:
Current year 545,077 557,908 584,929
Prior years (22,047) (18,085) (17,533)
Total incurred 523,030 539,823 567,396
Paid related to:
Current year 181,406 165,409 183,645
Prior years 289,661 281,655 278,270
Total paid 471,067 447,064 461915
Net liability at December 31 1,381,812 1,329,849 1,237,090
Plus reinsurance recoverables 164,878 163,796 243,712
Liability at December 31 $ 1,546,690 $ 1,493,645 $ 1,480,802

Harleysville Group recognized net favorable development in the provision for insured events of prior years of
$22,000,000 in 2007, primarily due to lower-than-expected claims severity broadly experienced across all casualty
lines in accident years 2003 through 2006 partially offset by adverse development in the 2002 and prior accident years.
The favorable development consisted of $12,500,000 in commercial lines and $9,500,000 in personal lines.

A reduction in commercial automobile severity was broadly observed during 2007 and led to recognition of
$10,200,000 of favorable development in this line in 2007.

A reduction in commercial multi-peril severity in accident years 2005 and 2006 was observed during 2007 and
led to the recognition of favorable development for those accident years in 2007. An increase in commercial multi-peril
severity in the liability portion of the line in accident years prior to 2005 was observed during 2007 and led to the
recognition of adverse development for those accident years in 2007. In total, $2,100,000 in favorable development was
recognized in the commercial multi-peril line during 2007.

A reduction in personal automobile severity was broadly observed during 2007 and led to the recognition of
$5,700,000 of favorable development in this line in 2007,

A reduction in homeowners severity was broadly observed during 2007 and led to the recognition of favorable
development of $4,100,000 in this line in 2007.

In 2006, Harleysville Group recognized net favorable development of $18,085,000 in the provision for insured
events of prior years, primarily due to lower-than-expected claims severity in casualty lines in accident years 2002
through 2003, partially offset by adverse development in prior accident vears. The favorable development consisted of
$8,096,000 in commercial lines and $9,989,000 in personal lines.

A reduction in commercial automobile severity in accident years 2002 through 2004 was observed during
2006 and led to the recognition of favorable development for those accident years in 2006. An increase in commercial
automobile severity in accident year 2005 and in accident years prior to 2002 was observed during 2006 and led to the
recognition of adverse development for those accident years in 2006. In total, $5,136,000 in favorable development was
recognized in the commercial automobile line during 2006,
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A reduction in workers compensation severity in accident years 2002 through 2005 was observed during 2006
and led to the recognition of favorable development for those accident years in 2006. An increase in workers
compensation medical severity in accident years 1997 through 2001 was observed during 2006 and led to the
recognition of adverse development for those accident years in 2006. In total, $341,000 in adverse development was
recognized in the workers compensation line during 2006.

A reduction in commercial multi-peril severity in accident years 2002 through 2005 was observed during 2006
and led to the recognition of favorable development for those accident years in 2006. An increase in commercial multi-
peril severity in the liability portion of the line in accident years prior to 2002 was observed during 2006 and led to the
recognition of adverse development for those accident years in 2006. In total, $3,110,000 in favorable development was
recognized in the commercial multi-peril line during 2006.

A reduction in personal automobile severity for accident years 2002 through 2005 observed during 2006 and
ied to the recognition of favorable development for those accident years in 2006. An increase in personal automobile
severity for 1997 and prior accident years was observed during 2006 and led to the recognition of adverse development
for those accident years in 2006. In total, $4,968,000 of favorable development was recognized in the personal
automobile line during 2006.

A reduction in homeowners severity was broadly observed during 2006 and led to the recognition of favorable
development of $5,505,000 in this line in 2006.

Harleysville Group recognized favorable development in the provision for insured events of prior years of
$17,533,000 in 2005 primarily due to lower-than-expected claims severity in accident years 2004 and 2003, partially
offset by greater-than-expected claims severity in commercial lines in 2002 and prior accident years, The favorable
development consisted of $3,940,000 in commercial lines and $13,593,000 in personal lines.

A reduction in commercial automobile severity in accident years 2004 and 2003 was observed during 2005
and led to the recognition of favorable development for those accident years in 2005. An increase in commercial
automobile severity in accident years prior to 2003 was observed during 2005 and led to the recognition of adverse
development for those accident years in 2005. In total, $3,027,000 in favorable development was recognized in the
commercial automobile line during 2005,

A reduction in workers compensation severity in accident years 2004 and 2003 was observed during 2005 and
led to the recognition of favorable development for those accident years in 2005. An increase in workers compensation
severity in accident years prior to 2003 was observed during 2005 and led to the recognition of adverse development
for those accident years in 2005. In total, $573,000 in adverse development was recognized in the workers
compensation line during 2005.

A reduction in commercial multi-peril severity in accident years 2004 and 2003 was observed during 2005 and
led to the recognition of favorable development for those accident years in 2005. An increase in commercial multi-peril
severity in accident years prior to 2003 was observed during 2005 and led to the recognition of adverse development
for those accident years in 2005. In total, $3,717,000 in favorable development was recognized in the commercial
multi-peril line during 2005.

A reduction in both personal automobile and homeowners severity was broadly observed during 2005 and led
to the recognition of favorable development for those lines of business in 2005. In total, $9,595,000 in favorable
development was recognized in the personal automobile line and $4,782,000 in favorable development was recognized
in the homeowners line during 2005.

Harleysville Group records the actuarial best estimate of the ultimate unpaid losses and loss settlement
expenses incurred. Actuarial loss reserving techniques and assumptions, which rely on historical information as
adjusted to reflect current conditions, have been consistently applied during the periods presented. Changes in the
estimate of the liability for unpaid losses and loss settlement expenses reflect actual payments and evaluations of new
information and data since the last reporting date. These changes correlate with actuarial trends.
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Because of the nature of insurance claims, there are uncertainties inherent in the estimates of ultimate losses.
Harleysville Group’s reorganization of its claims operation in recent years has resulted in new people and processes
involved in settling claims. As a result, more recent statistical data reflects different patterns than in the past and gives
rise to uncertainty as to the pattern of future toss settlements, There are uncertainties regarding future loss cost trends
particularly related to medical treatments and automobile repair. Court decisions, regulatory changes and economic
conditions can affect the ultimate cost of claims that occurred in the past.

In establishing the liability for unpaid losses and loss settlement expenses, management considers facts
currently known and the current state of the law and coverage iitigation. Liabilities are recognized for known losses
(including the cost of related litigation) when sufficient information has been developed to indicate the involvement of
a specific insurance policy, and management can reasonably estimate its liability. In addition, liabilities have been
established to cover additional exposures on both known and unasserted losses. Estimates of the liabilities are reviewed
and updated on a regular basis,

The property and casualty insurance industry has received significant publicity about environmental-related
losses from exposures insured many years ago. Since the intercompany pooling agreement pertains to insurance
business written or earned on or after January 1, 1986, Harleysville Group has not incurred significant environmental-
related losses.

7 - Borrowings

Debt
Debt is as follows:
December 31,
2007 2006

(in thousands)
Notes, 5.75%, due 2013 $ 100,000 $ 100,000
Demand term-loan payable to Mutual, LIBOR plus 0.45%, due 2012 18,500 18,500
Total debt $ 118,500 $ 118,500

The fair value of the notes was $97,882,000 and $97,394,000 at December 31, 2007 and 2006, respectively,
based on quoted market prices for the same or similar debt. The carrying value of the remaining debt approximates fair
value.

Interest paid was $6,808,000, 36,760,000 and $6,462,000 in 2007, 2006 and 2005 respectively.
Credit Facility

On August 18, 2006, Harleysville Group Inc. entered into a credit agreement with HSBC Bank USA, National
Association, as Administrative Agent and participating lenders relating 1o a five year $100 million revolving credit
facility. At Harleysville Group Inc.’s election, interest will be calculated at the LIBOR Rate plus a Margin
(currently 0.750% based on the credit rating of the Company’s debt) or the Alternate Base Rate (the greater of the
Prime Rate or the Federal Funds Effective Rate plus 1/2 of 1%94). In addition, there is a fee of 0.150% per annum on the
loan commitment amount, regardless of usage. The agreement requires compliance with certain covenants, which
include minimum net worth and leverage and fixed charge coverage ratios. There have been no borrowings under the
credit facility. The Company is in compliance with all applicable covenants. Effective January 8, 2008, the Company
terminated the credit agreement because the Company felt it was no longer needed.
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8 - Shareholders’ Equity

Comprehensive income consisted of the following:

2007 2006 2005
(in thousands)
Net income $ 100,054 $ 111,069 §$ 61,431
Other comprehensive income (loss):
Unrealized investment gains (losses):
Unrealized investment holding gains (losses) arising during
period, net of taxes (benefits) of $8,191, $639 and $(11,170) 15,212 1,186 (20,744)
Less:
Reclassification adjustment for gains included in net income, net
of taxes of $(353), $(14,202) and $(81) (656) {26,375) (152)
Net unrealized investment gains (losses) 14,556 (25,189) (20,896)
Defined benefit pension plans:
Net actuarial gain arising during the period, net of taxes
of $2,862 5313
Recognition of net actuarial loss in net periodic pension cost,
net of taxes of $386 716
Minimum pension liability adjustment, net of taxes (benefits)
of $2,646 and $(467) 4,915 (867)
Defined benefit pension plan 6,029 4915 (867)
Other comprehensive income (loss) 20,585 {20,274) (21,763)
Comprehensive income $ 120639 §% 90,795 3§ 39,668

Accumulated other comprehensive income consisted of the following amounts (which are net of tax):

December 31,

2007 2006
(in thousands)
Unrealized investment gains 3 23485 §  B8)929
Defined benefit pension plan-net actuarial loss (2,886) (8,915)
Accumulated other comprehensive income 3 20,599 § 14

A source of cash for the payment of dividends is dividends from subsidiaries. Harleysville Group Inc.’s
insurance subsidiaries are required by law to maintain certain minimum surplus on a statutory basis, and are subject to
risk-based capital requirements and to regulations under which payment of a dividend from statutory surplus is
restricted and may require prior approval of regulatory authorities. Applying the current regulatory restrictions as of
December 31, 2007, $112,235,000 would be available for distribution to Harleysville Group Inc. after June 5, 2008
without prior approval.

Various states have adopted the National Association of Insurance Commissioners (NAIC) risk-based capital
(RBC) standards that require insurance companies to calculate and report statutory capital and surplus needs based on a
formula measuring underwriting, investment and other business risks inherent in an individual company’s operations.
These RBC standards have not affected the operations of Harleysville Group since each of the Company’s insurance
subsidiaries has statutory capital and surplus in excess of RBC requirements,

These RBC standards require the calculation of a ratio of total adjusted capital to Authorized Control Level.
Insurers with a ratio below 200% are subject to different levels of regulatory intervention and action. Based upon their
2007 statutory financial statements, the ratio of total adjusted capital to the Authorized Control Level for the
Company’s eight insurance subsidiaries at December 31, 2007 ranged from 543% to 677%.
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The following table contains selected information for Harleysville Group Inc.’s property and casualty
insurance subsidiaries, as determined in accordance with prescribed statutory accounting practices:

2007 2006 2005
(in thousands)
Statutory capital and surplus $671.895 $ 686,149 $ 566,802
Statutory unassigned surplus $ 541,626 $ 551,880 § 432533
Statutory net income $114,343 $1331,263 § 627330
9 - Income Taxes
The components of income tax expense {benefit) are as follows:
2007 2006 2005
(in thousands)
Current $ 31,928 § 33,118 § 15991
Deferred 11,013 13,123 1,499

$ 42941 § 46,241 § 17490

Cash paid for federal income taxes in 2007, 2006 and 2005 was $28,550,000, $32,750,000 and $14,100,000,
respectively.

The actual income tax rate differed from the statutory federal income tax rate applicable to income before
income taxes as follows:

2007 2006 2005
Statutory federal income tax rate 35.0% 35.0% 35.0%
Tax-exempt income (5.1) (5.5) (12.8)
Other, net 0.1 0.1
30.0% 29.6% 22.2%

The tax effects of the significant temporary differences that give rise to deferred tax liabilities and assets are as follows:

December 31,

2007 2006
(in thousands)
Deferred tax liabilities:
Deferred policy acquisition costs ¥ 350684 3§ 35811
Unrealized investment gains 12,646 4,808
Other 11,388 9,667
Total deferred tax liabilities 59,718 50,286
Deferred tax assets:
Unearned premiums 28,803 28,455
Losses incurred 55,101 55,873
Pension plan 1,664 5,477
AMT credit carryforward 10,103
Other 12,694 11,021
Total deferred tax assets 98,262 110,929
Net deferred tax asset $ 38544 § 60,643
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A valuation allowance is required to be established for any portion of the deferred tax asset that management
believes will not be realized. In the opinion of management, it is more likely than not that the benefit of the deferred tax
asset will be realized through the generation of future income. Therefore, no such valuation allowance has been
established.

Effective January 1, 2007, Harleysville Group adopted FASB Interpretation (FIN} No. 48, “Accounting for
Uncertainty in Income Taxes, an interpretation of FASB Statement No. 109.” As of January 1, 2007 and December 31,
2007, Harleysviile Group had no material unrecognized tax benefits or accrued interest and penalties. The Company’s
policy is to account for interest as a component of interest expense and penalties as a component of other expense.
Federal tax years 2004 through 2007 were open for examination as of December 31, 2007.

10 - Incentive Plans

Under SFAS No. 123(R), the compensation expense for the various share-based compensation plans that has
been charged against income before income taxes and cumulative effect of accounting change was $4,723,000 and
$4,529,000 for 2007 and 2006, respectively with a corresponding income tax benefit of $1,555,000 and $1,467,000 for
2007 and 2006, respectively. In accordance with APB Opinion No. 25, the compensation expense that was charged
against income before tax was $1,229,000 for 2005 with a corresponding income tax benefit of $430,000.

Fixed Stock Option Plans

Harleysville Group has an Equity Incentive Plan (EIP) for key employees. Awards may be made in the form
of stock options, stock appreciation rights (SARs), restricted stock, restricted stock units or any combination of the
above. The EIP was amended in 1997, 2006 and 2007 and limited future awards to an aggregate of 1,000,000 shares,
plus the remaining shares under the 1997 plan, of Harleysville Group Inc.’s common stock. Such shares may be
authorized and unissued shares or treasury shares. The plan provides that stock options may become exercisable from
six months to 10 years from the date of grant with an exercise price not less than fair market value on the date of grant.
Options granted prior to 2006 normally vest 50% at the end of one year and 50% at the end of two years from the date
of grant. Options granted in 2006 and 2007 normally vest 33 1/3% at the end of one year, 33 1/3% at the end of two
years and 33 1/3% at the end of three years from the date of grant. SARs have not been material. Restricted stock
awards have vesting periods of three to five years and vest 100% at the end of the period. Restricted stock units have a
vesting period of five years and vest 100% at the end of the period.

In determining the expense to be recorded for stock options, the fair value of each option award is estimated
on the date of grant using the Black-Scholes option pricing model. The significant assumptions utilized in applying the
Black-Scholes option pricing model are the risk-free interest rate, expected term, dividend yield, and expected
volatility. The risk-free interest rate is the implied yield currently available on U.S. Treasury zero-coupon issues with a
remaining term equal to the expected term used as the assumption in the model. The expected term of an option award
is based on historical experience of similar awards. The dividend yield is determined by dividing the per share-
dividend by the grant date stock price. The expected volatility is based on the volatility of the Company’s stock price
over a historical period comparable to the expected term. The weighted average assumptions used in applying the
Black-Scholes valuation model are shown below:

For the year ended
December 31,
2007 2006 2005
Risk-free interest rate 4.65% 4.96% 4.05%
Expected term 6 years 6 years 6 years
Dividend yield 2.1%% 238% 3.18%
Expected volatility 32.64% 34.67% 36.14%
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A summary of share option activity under the plan is as follows:

Weighted
Weighted Average Average
Number Exercise Price Remaining Aggregate
Of Shares Per Share Contractual Life Intrinsic Value
(in years) (in thousands})

Outstanding at December 31, 2004 2,535432 % 22.09

Granted—2005 545,638 21.45

Exercised—2005 (253,790) 17.05

Forfeited—2005 (358,783) 23.21

Outstanding at December 31, 2005 2,468,497 22,30

Granted—2006 311,840 29.38

Exercised—2006 (900,154) 21.92

Forfeited—2006 (49,529) 24.34

QOutstanding at December 31, 2006 1,830,654 23.65

Granted—2007 277,150 34.75

Exercised—2007 (399,122) 22.59

Forfeited—2007 (23,212) 31.31

Qutstanding at December 31, 2007 1,685,470 § 25.62 64 $ 16,451
Exercisable at:

December 31, 2007 1,235,224 § 23.09 4.0 § 15,179

The per share weighted-average fair value of options granted during 2007, 2006 and 2005 was $11.03, $9.70
and 36.36, respectively. The total intrinsic value of options exercised was $4,111,000, $§9,375,000, and $1,594,000 for
2007, 2006 and 2005, respectively.

The expense to be recorded over the vesting period for restricted stock and restricted stock unit awards is
determined utilizing the number of awards granted and the grant date fair market value.

A summary of restricted stock activity under the plan is as follows:

Weighted Average

Number of Grant Date

Shares Fair Value
Restricted stock awards at January 1, 2007 138,628 5 26.67
Granted 2007 103,266 34,53
Vested 2007 (11,139) 24.17
Forfeited 2007 (10,783) 30.60
Restricted stock awards at December 31, 2007 219,972 $ 30.30

The total fair market value of restricted shares which vested during 2007 and 2006 was $363,000 and $92,000,
respectively.

During 2007, a total of 17,440 restricted stock units were granted at a weighted average grant date fair value of
$34.76 per unit. There were no grants of restricted stock units in 2006 or 2005.

For share options and restricted stock and restricted stock unit awards granted under the plan, the Company
recognized compensation expense of $3,550,000 and $3,109,000 in 2007 and 2006, respectively. The Company
recognized compensation expense for restricted stock of $61,600 in 2005. As of December 31, 2007 the Company’s
total unrecognized compensation cost related to nonvested share-based compensation arrangements (including share
options, restricted stock and restricted stock unit awards) granted under the plan was $6,018,000. The cost is expected
to be recognized over a weighted average period of 2.6 years.
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Other Stock Purchase and Incentive Plans

Harleysville Group Inc. is authorized to issue up to 1,650,000 shares of common stock under the terms of the
1995 Employee Stock Purchase Plan as amended in 2003. Such shares may be authorized and unissued shares or
treasury shares. Virtually all employees are eligible to participate in the plan, under which a participant may elect to
have up to 15% of base pay withheld to purchase shares. The purchase price of the stock is 85% of the lower of the
beginning-of-the-subscription-period or end-of-the-subscription-period fair market value. Subscription periods run
from January 15 through July 14, or July 15 through January 14 in each year.

In determining the expense to be recorded for the employee stock purchase plan, the fair value of each option
award is estimated on the date of grant using the Black-Scholes option pricing model with the following weighted
average assumptions;

Employee Stock Purchase Plan

For the year ended
December 31,
2007 2006 2005
Risk-free interest rate 5.06% 4.84% 3.03%
Expected term 6 months 6 months 6 months
Dividend yield 2.23% 2.39% 3.05%
Expected volatility 18.34% 23.33% 30.59%

The weighted-average fair value of options granted under the employee stock purchase plan was $6.74, $6.11 and
$4.90 for 2007, 2006 and 2005, respectively. The total intrinsic value of options exercised under the plan was $297,000,
$581,000 and $471,000 for 2007, 2006 and 2005, respectively. Compensation expense of $281,000 and $336,000 related to
grants under the plan was recognized in 2007 and 2006 respectively. As of December 31, 2007, there was $12,000 of total
unrecognized compensation cost related to nonvested share-based compensation arrangements granted under the plan, The
cost is expected to be recognized over a period of one month,

The 1996 Directors” Stock Purchase Plan provided for the issuance of up to 200,000 shares of Harleysviile
Group Inc. common stock to outside directors of Harleysville Group Inc. and Mutual. The purchase price of the stock
was 85% of the lower of the beginning-of-the-subscription-period or end-of-the-subscription-period fair market value.
In 2005, there were 3,887 shares issued under the plan for which $23,000 of expense was recognized. This plan was
discontinued and the last subscription period ended January 14, 2005.

The 2005 Non-Employee Directors” Deferred Stock Unit Plan provided for the grant of up to 110,000 fully
vested deferred stock units to outside directors of Harleysville Group Inc. and Mutual. Each stock unit represents the
right to receive, without payment to the Company, one share of common stock of Harleysville Group Inc. The plan was
amended and restated in 2007 to provide for the grant of awards in the form of stock options, deferred stock units and
restricted stock and was renamed the Amended and Restated Directors’ Equity Compensation Plan. The aggregate
number of shares which may be issued under the plan is 500,000, which may be either authorized and unissued shares
or treasury shares. At each April Board of Directors meeting, each non-employee director shall receive a number of
deferred stock units equal to the result of dividing $50,000 by the fair market value of a share of HGI common stock.

The expense to be recorded for the deferred stock units is determined utilizing the number of awards granted and
the grant date fair market value. The expense is recognized at the date of grant as the awards are fully vested. In 2007, 2006
and 2003, respectively, there were 16,574, 10,050 and 13,500 units issued under the plan for which $454,000, $254,000 and
$232,000 of expense was recognized. The weighted average grant date fair value of units granted during 2007, 2006 and
2005 was $32.08, $29.85 and $20.00 per unit, respectively.

The Long Term Incentive Plan (LTIP) provides for the issuance of up to 600,000 shares of Hatleysville Group Inc.
common stock, which may be authorized and unissued shares or treasury shares. Shares are awarded to key employees
based on the total shareholder return of the Company’s stock relative to the total shareholder return of a group of insurance
company stocks for a three year period. Current plans are in effect for the three year period January 1, 2005 through
December 31, 2007. The fair value of the stock component of the plan was estimated on the date of grant using a 10,000
trial simulation with the following assumptions:

Plan Years

2005-2007
Risk-free interest rate 3.63%
Expected volatility 37.2%
Target number of shares to be issued 68,592
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The weighted-average grant date fair value of the 2005-2007 plan stock award was $19.64 per share.
Compensation expense of $434,000, $823,000, and $832,000 was recognized related to the stock component of the LTIP
for 2007, 2006 and 2005, respectively. As of December 31, 2007, there was no unrecognized compensation cost related to
nonvested share-based compensation arrangements granted under the LTIP. No shares were issued under the plan in 2006
and 2005. During 2007, 95,704 shares were issued in connection with plan years 2004-2006.

The LTIP also has a cash component. This component had been accounted for under the intrinsic method of APB
Opinion No. 25 prior to January I, 2006. It is now being accounted for under the liability method of SFAS No. 123(R).
Compensation expense of $407.000, $616,000 and $250,000 was recognized related to the cash component of the LTIP for
2007, 2006 and 2005, respectively. As of December 31, 2007, there was no unrecognized compensation cost related to the
cash component.

Cash received from option exercises under all share-based payment arrangements for 2007, 2006 and 2005 was
$9,034,000, $20,050,000 and $5,101,000, respectively. The actual tax benefit realized for the tax deductions from option
exercises of the share-based payment arrangements was $1,439,000, $3,281,000 and $557,828, respectively, for 2007, 2006
and 2005.

Harleysville Group has incentive bonus plans. The plans were amended in 2006 to include virtually all
employees. Cash bonuses are earned on a formula basis depending upon the performance of Harleysville Group and
Mutual in relation to certain targets. Harleysville Group’s expense for such plans was $5,920,000, $6,901,000 and
$3,836,000 for 2007, 2006 and 2005, respectively.

11 - Pension and Other Benefit Plans

Harleysville Group Inc. has a frozen pension plan that covers employees hired before January 1, 2006.
Retirement benefits are a function of both the years of service and level of compensation. Harleysville Group Inc.’s
funding policy is to contribute annually an amount equal to at least the minimum required contribution in accordance
with minimum funding standards established by ERISA. Contributions are intended to provide for benefits attributed to
service through March 31, 2006. Harleysville Group Inc. uses a December 31, measurement date for the pension plan.
The plan was frozen at the then current benefit levels as of March 31, 2006, at which time the accrual of future benefits
for eligible employees ceased. The curtailment loss for the qualified plan has been reflected in the net periodic pension
cost for 2005. The curtailment benefit for the supplemental executive retirement plan of $146,000 was recognized in
the first quarter of 2006.

The following table sets forth the year-end status of the plan including Mutual:

2007 2006
(in thousands)

Change in benefit obligation

Benefit obligation at January 1 $ 188403 § 185,553
Service cost 2,365
Interest cost 10,934 . 10,565
Amendments 58
Net actuarial gain (16,760) (3,238)
Benefits paid (7,029) (6,463)
Curtailment 437)
Benefit obligation at December 31 $ 175,548 § 188403
Accumulated benefit obligation at December 31 $ 175,548 § 188,403
Change in plan assets
Fair value of plan assets at January 1 $ 161,774 § 146,951
Actual return on plan assets 7,358 18,156
Contributions 3,000 3,000
Benefits paid (6,877 (6,333)
Fair value of plan assets at December 31 $ 165255 § 161,774
Funded status at December 31 $§ (10,293) § (26,629)
Harleysville Group portion:
Amount recognized in the statement of financial position $ 7,525 § 18,381
Amount recognized in accumulated other comprehensive income:
Net actuarial loss $ 4439 § 13,716
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The net periodic pension cost for the plan including Mutual consists of the following components:

Components of net periodic pension cost:
Service cost
Interest cost
Expected return on plan assets
Recognized net actuarial loss
Amortization of prior service cost
Net transition amortization
Curtailment (gain) loss

Net periodic pension cost:
Entire plan

Harleysville Group portion

Other changes recognized in other comprehensive income -
Harleysville Group portion
Net actuarial (gain) loss arising during the period
Recognition of actuarial loss in net periodic benefit cost

Total recognized in other comprehensive income -
Harleysville Group portion

Total recognized in net periodic benefit cost and other
comprehensive income

Additional information:
Change in minimum liability included in other
comprehensive income—Harleysville Group portion
Weighted-average assumptions used to determine benefit
obligations at December 31:
Discount rate
Rate of compensation increase - supplemental executive
retirement plan

Weighted-average assumptions used to determine net cost
for years ended December 31:
Discount rate
Expected return on plan assets

Rate of compensation increase - supplemental executive retirement plan

through March 31, 2006

2007 2006 2005
(dollars in thousands)
$ 2365 § 8910
$ 10,934 10,565 11,897
(11,880)  (11,698) (11,617
1,682 1,927 4459
5 207
13 53
(222) 802
$ 736 § 2955 § 14,711
3 480 % 1945 § 95,735
$ (8,175)
(1,102)
3 (9.277)
$ !8,797)
$ (7.561) § 1,344
6.55% 5.95% 5.70%
N/A N/A 4.50%
5.95% 5.70% 5.75%
8.25% 8.25% 8.25%
N/A 4.50% 4.50%

Amounts in accurnulated other comprehensive income expected to be recognized as components of net

periodic pension cost in 2008 are as follows: net actuarial loss $177,000.

The discount rate assumption used to determine the benefit obligation was based on high quality bond yields

that relate to the estimated timing of benefit payouts of the plan.

Harleysville Group’s pension plan asset allocations at December 31, 2007 and 2006 are as follows:

Asset Category:
Cash and cash equivalents
Equity securities
Debt securities
Total
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8% 4%
3% 74%
19% 22%
100% 100%




The pension plan assets are managed to maximize total retumm over the long-term while providing sufficient
liquidity and current return in order to satisfy the cash flow requirements of the plan. In order to meet these objectives,
the target allocation for equity securities is a range of 65% to 75% of the market value of the fund’s portfolio and the
target allocation for debt securities is a range of 25% to 35% of the market value of the fund’s portfolic.

To develop the expected long-term rate of return on assets assumption, the company considered the historical
returns and the future expectations for returns for each asset class, as well as the target asset allocation of the pension
plan portfolic. This resulted in the selection of the 8.25% long-term rate of return on assets assumption.

Cash Flows

The expected 2008 contribution to the pension plan is $3,409,000 of which $2,222,000 is Harleysville Group’s
expected portion.

The foliowing benefit payments, which reflect service through March 31, 2006, are expected to be paid:

December 31,
Harleysville

Group’s

Total Plan Portion
2008 $ 7,520,000 % 4,902,000
2009 7,839,000 5,110,000
2010 8,066,000 5,258,000
2011 8,434,000 5,498,000
2012 8,888,000 5,754,000
2013-2017 53,223,000 . 34,696,000

Harleysvilte Group has profit-sharing plans covering qualified employees. Harleysville Group’s expense under
the plans was $4,264,000, $3,956,000 and $2,565,000 for 2007, 2006 and 2005, respectively. The plan was amended,
effective April 1, 2006, to require a Company core contribution, equal to 5% of salary, to be automatically contributed
to all eligible employees’ accounts on a biweekly basis regardless of the employees’ salary deferral amounts into the

plan. Harleysville Group’s expense for the Company core contribution was $3,738,000 and $2,866,000 in 2007 and
2006, respectively.

12 - Segment Information

As an underwriter of property and casualty insurance, Harleysville Group has three reportable segments,
which consist of the investment function, the personal lines of insurance and the commercial lines of insurance. Using
independent agents, Harleysville Group markets personal lines of insurance to individuals, and commercial lines of
insurance to small and medium-sized businesses.

Harleysville Group evaluates the performance of the personal lines and commercial lines primarily based upon
underwriting results as determined under statutory accounting practices (SAP). Assets are not allocated to the personal
and commercial lines, and are reviewed in total by management for purposes of decision making. Harleysville Group
operates only in the United States, and no single customer or agent provides 10 percent or more of revenues.
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Financial data by segment is as follows:

2007 2006 2005
(in thousands)
Revenues:
Premiums earned:
Commercial lines $ 689,518 $ 693,229 § 687,135
Personal lines 143,506 145,592 154,432
Total premiums earned 833,024 838,821 841,567
Net investment income 110,827 102,609 90,572
Realized investment gains, net 875 40,605 233
Other 17,286 17,136 15,968
Total revenues $ 962012 § 999,171 § 948340
Income before income taxes and cumulative effect of accounting change:
Underwriting gain (loss):
Commercial lines $ 16,126 $ (2972) § (31,066)
Personal lines 9,978 14,611 13,196
SAP underwriting gain (loss) 26,104 11,639 (17,870)
GAAP adjustments (17) (3,721) 2,009
GAAP underwriting gain (loss) 26,087 7918 (15,861)
Net investment income 110,827 102,609 90,572
Realized investment gains, net 875 40,605 233
Other 5,206 5,236 3,977

Income before income taxes and cumulative effect of accounting change

o

142995 $ 156,368 § 78,921

13 - Earnings Per Share

The computation of basic and diluted earnings per share is as follows:

2007 2006 2005
(dollars in thousands, except per share data)

Numerator for basic and diluted earnings per share:

Income before cumulative effect of accounting change $ 100,054 § 110,127  § 61,431
Denominator for basic earnings per share —

weighted-average shares outstanding 30,902,593 31,011,310 30,375,109
Effect of stock incentive plans 452,048 514,344 210,804
Denominator for diluted earnings per share 31,354,641 31,525,654 30,585,913
Basic earnings per share

Income before cumulative effect of accounting change 3 324 3% 355 % 2.02
Diluted earnings per share

Income before cumulative effect of accounting change $ 3.19 § 349 § 2.01

The following options to purchase shares of common stock were not included in the computation of diluted
earnings per share because the exercise price of the options was greater than the average market price:

2007 2006 2005
(in thousands)

Number of options 228 — 1,179
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14 - Quarterly Results of Operations (Unaudited)

2007
(in thousands, except per share data)
First Second Third Fourth Total
Revenues $ 236,897 § 242341 § 242069 § 240,705 § 962,012
Losses and expenses 204,366 204,792 205,029 204,830 819,017
Net income 22,902 26,435 25,582 25,135 100,054
Earnings per common share;
Basic net income $ 72 % 84 £ 8 8 84 8 324
Diluted net income $ a1 08 82 3 83 8 82 5 3.19
2006
(in thousands, except per share data)
First Second Third Fourth Total
Revenues $ 239537 § 276,538 § 241,123 0§ 241973 $§ 999,171
Losses and expenses 211,309 211,151 210,646 209,697 842,803
Income before cumulative effect of
accounting change 20,708 44,730 21,792 22,897 110,127
Net income 21,650 44,730 21,792 22,897 111,069
Earnings per common share:
Basic
Income before cumulative
effect of accounting change § 68 5 145 % J0 8 WETI. 355
Net income $ gl 3 145 § 0§ 73§ 3.58
Diluted
Income before cumulative
effect of accounting change $ 67 8§ 143 § 69 8 WA 349
Net income $ Jo§ 143 § 6% 8 T8 3.52
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Report of Independent Registered Public Accounting Firm

The Board of Directors and Shareholders
Harleysville Group Inc.:

We have audited the accompanying consolidated balance sheets of Harleysville Group Inc. and Subsidiaries as of
December 31, 2007 and 2006, and the related consolidated statements of income, shareholders’ equity, and cash flows
for each of the years in the three-year period ended December 31, 2007. These consolidated financial statements are the
responsibility of the Company’s management. Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these consolidated
financial statements based on our audits.

We conducted our audits in accordance with the standards of the Public Company Accounting Oversight Board (United
States). Those standards require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the
financial statements are free of material misstatement. An audit includes examining, on a test basis, evidence
supporting the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements. An audit also includes assessing the accounting
principles used and significant estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the overall financial statement
presentation. We believe that our audits provide a reasonable basis for our opinion.

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects, the
financial position of Harleysville Group Inc. and Subsidiaries as of December 31, 2007 and 2006, and the results of
their operations and their cash flows for each of the years in the three-year period ended December 31, 2007, in
conformity with U.S. generally accepted accounting principles.

As discussed in Note 1 to the consolidated financial statements, Harleysville Group Inc. and Subsidiaries adopted the
provisions of Statement of Financial Accounting Standards No. 123(R), “Share-Based Payment,” on January 1, 2006.

We also have audited, in accordance with the standards of the Public Company Accounting Oversight Board (United
States), Harleysville Group Inc.'s internal control over financial reporting as of December 31, 2007, based on criteria
established in Internal Control-Integrated Framework issued by the Committee of Sponsoring Organizations of the
Treadway Commission, and our report dated March 7, 2008 expressed an unqualified opinion on the effectiveness of
the Company’s internal control over financial reporting.

/s KPMG LLP

March 7, 2008
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Item 9. Changes in and Disagreements with Accountants on Accounting and Financial Disclosure.

None.

Item 9A. Controls and Procedures,
(a) Evaluation of Disclosure Controls and Procedures

Harleysville Group Inc.’s Chief Executive Officer and Chief Financial Officer have evaluated the Company’s
disclosure controls and procedures as of the end of the period covered by this report and they have concluded that these
controls and procedures are effective.

(b) Management’s Annual Report on Internal Control over Financial Reporting

The management of Harleysville Group Inc. and its Subsidiaries, is responsible for establishing and
maintaining adequate internal contro! over financial reporting. With the participation of the Chief Executive Officer
and the Chief Financial Officer, management has evaluated the effectiveness of its internal control over financial
reporting as of December 31, 2007 based on the control criteria established in Internal Control-Integrated Framework,
issued by the Committee of Sponsoring Organizations of the Treadway Commission. Based on such evaluation,
management has concluded that Harleysville Group’s internal control over financial reporting is effective as of
December 31, 2007.

The registered independent public accounting firm of KPMG LLP, as auditors of Harleysville Group's
consolidated financial statements, has issued an audit report on the effectiveness of Harleysville Group’s internal
control over financial reporting.

/sf MICHAEL L. BROWNE /s/ ARTHUR E. CHANDLER
Michael L. Browne Arthur E. Chandler
President and Senior Vice President and
Chief Executive Officer Chief Financial Officer
March 7, 2008

{c) Attestation Report of the Registered Public Accounting Firm

Item 9B. Other Information.

Nene.
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Report of Independent Registered Public Accounting Firm

The Board of Directors and Shareholders
Harleysville Group Inc.:

We have audited Harleysville Group Inc.’s internal control over financial reporting as of December 31, 2007, based on
criteria established in /nternal Control - Integrated Framework issued by the Committee of Sponsoring Organizations
of the Treadway Commission (COSO). Harleysville Group Inc.'s management is responsible for maintaining effective
internal control over financial reporting and for its assessment of the effectiveness of internal control over financial
reporting, included in the accompanying Management’s Annual Report on Internal Control over Financial Reporting.
Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the Company’s internal control over financial reporting based on our
audit.

We conducted our audit in accordance with the standards of the Public Company Accounting Oversight Board {United
States). Those standards require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether
effective internal control over financial reporting was maintained in all material respects. Our audit included obtaining
an understanding of internal contro} over financial reporting, assessing the risk that a material weakness exists, and
testing and evaluating the design and operating effectiveness of internal control based on the assessed risk. Our audit
also included performing such other procedures as we considered necessary in the circumstances. We believe that our
audit provides a reasonable basis for our opinion.

A company's internal control over financial reporting is a process designed to provide reasonable assurance regarding
the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of financial statements for external purposes in accordance with
generally accepted accounting principles. A company's internal control over financial reporting includes those policies
and procedures that (1) pertain to the maintenance of records that, in reasonable detail, accurately and fairly reflect the
transactions and dispositions of the assets of the company; (2) provide reasonable assurance that transactions are
recorded as necessary to permit preparation of financial statements in accordance with generally accepted accounting
principles, and that receipts and expenditures of the company are being made only in accordance with authorizations of
management and directors of the company; and (3) provide reasonable assurance regarding prevention or timely
detection of unauthorized acquisition, use, or disposition of the company’s assets that could have a material effect on
the financial statements.

Because of its inherent limitations, intermal control over financial reporting may not prevent or detect misstatements.
Also, projections of any evaluation of effectiveness to future periods are subject to the risk that controls may become
inadequate because of changes in conditions, or that the degree of compliance with the policies or procedures may
deteriorate.

In our opinion, Harleysville Group Inc. maintained, in all material respects, effective internal control over financial
reporting as of December 31, 2007, based on criteria established in Internal Control - Integrated Framework issued by the
Committee of Sponsoring Organizations of the Treadway Commission.

We also have audited, in accordance with the standards of the Public Company Accounting Oversight Board (United
States), the consolidated balance sheets of Harleysville Group Inc. and Subsidiaries as of December 31, 2007 and 2006,
and the related consolidated statements of income, shareholders’ equity, and cash flows for each of the years in the
three-year period ended December 31, 2007, and our report dated March 7, 2008 expressed an unqualified opinion on
those consolidated financial statements.

fs/ KPMGLLP
March 7, 2008
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PART 111

Item 10. Directors, Executive Officers and Corporate Governance.

The information required under this Item is incorporated herein by reference to our definitive Proxy Statement
for our annual meeting of stockholders to be held on April 23, 2008, which shall be filed with the SEC within 120 days
after the end of our fiscal year.

Item 11. Executive Compensation.

The information required under this Item is incorporated herein by reference to our definitive Proxy Statement
for our annual meeting of stockholders to be held on April 23, 2008, which shall be filed with the SEC within 120 days
after the end of our fiscal year.

Item 12. Security Ownership of Certain Beneficial Owners and Management and Related Stockholders
Matters,

The information required under this Item is incorporated herein by reference to our definitive Proxy Statement
for our annual meeting of stockholders to be held on April 23, 2008, which shall be filed with the SEC within 120 days
after the end of our fiscal year.

Item 13. Certain Relationships and Related Transactions, and Director Independence.

The information required under this Item is incorporated herein by reference to our definitive Proxy Statement
for our annual meeting of stockholders to be held on April 23, 2008, which shall be filed with the SEC within 120 days
after the end of our fiscal year.

Item 14. Principal Accounting Fees and Services.

The information required under this Item is incorporated herein by reference to our definitive Proxy Statement
for our annual meeting of stockholders to be held on April 23, 2008, which shall be filed with the SEC within 120 days
after the end of our fiscal year.
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PART IV

Item 15. Exhibits, Financial Statement Schedules.

(a) n The following consolidated financial statements are filed as a part of this report:
Consolidated Financial Statements Page

Consolidated Balance Sheets as of
December 31, 2007 and 2006 47

Consolidated Statements of Income for
Each of the Years in the Three-year
Period Ended December 31, 2007 48

Consolidated Statements of Shareholders’
Equity for Each of the Years in the Three-
year Period Ended December 31, 2007 49

Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows
for Each of the Years in the Three-year

Period Ended December 31, 2007 51
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements 52
Report of Independent Registered Public Accounting Firm 75

(2) The following consolidated financial statement schedules for the years 2007, 2006 and 2005
are submitted herewith:

Financial Statement Schedules

Schedule 1. Summary of Investments - Other

Than Investments in Related

Parties 84
Schedule 11. Condensed Financial Information

of Parent Company 85
Schedule IH. Supplementary Insurance

Information 88
Schedule IV. Reinsurance 89
Schedule VI. Supplemental Insurance Information

Concerning Property and Casualty

Subsidiaries 90

Report and Consent of Independent Registered Pubtic Accounting Firm
(filed as Exhibit 23)

All other schedules are omitted because they are not applicable or the required information is included in the
financial statements or notes thereto.
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(b)

Exhibit
No.

G)XA)

(3)B)

4

(10}A)+*

(10)(B)+

(10)(C)+*

(10)(D)+*

(10E)+*

(I0)E)(1)+*

(10)F)+

(10)(F)(1)+*

(10)(G)

(10)(H)

Exhibits

Description of Exhibits

Amended and Restated Certificate of Incorporation of Registrant - incorporated herein by reference to
Exhibit (4)(A) to the Registrant’s Form 5-8 Registration Statement No. 333-03127 filed May 3, 1996.

Amended and Restated By-laws of Registrant - incorporated herein by reference te Exhibit 3,1 to the
Registrant’s Current Report on Form §-K filed May 3, 2005.

Indenture between the Registrant and J. P. Morgan Trust Company, N.A., dated as of July 7, 2003 -
incorporated herein by reference to Exhibit 4.1 to the Registrant’s Form 8-K Report dated July 7, 2003.

Standard Deferred Compensation Plan for Directors of Harleysville Mutual Insurance Company and
Harleysville Group Inc. Amended and Restated effective January 1, 2008.

Harleysville Insurance Companies Director Deferred Compensation Plan Approved by the Board of
Directors November 25, 1987 - incorporated herein by reference to Exhibit 10(B) to the Registrant’s
Form $-3 Registration Statement No. 33-28948 filed May 25, 1989.

Harleysville Group Inc. Non-Qualified Deferred Compensation Plan Amended and Restated as of
January 1, 2008.

Pension Plan of Harleysville Group Inc. and Associated Employers Amended and Restated as of
January 1, 2008.

Harleysville Mutual Insurance Company/ Harleysville Group Inc. Senior Management Incentive
Compensation Plan As Amended and Restated as of November 14, 2000.

Amendment 2007-1, effective January 1, 2008, to the Harleysville Mutua! Insurance Company/
Harleysville Group Inc. Senior Management Incentive Compensation Plan as Amended and Restated as
of November 14, 2000.

Amended and Restated Equity Incentive Plan of Registrant as of April 25, 2007 - incorporated herein by
reference to Exhibit 10.1 to the Registrant’s Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q filed May 4, 2007.

Amendment 2007-1, effective December 20, 2007, to the Amended and Restated Equity Incentive Plan
of Registrant, dated April 25, 2007.

Tax Allocation Agreement dated December 24, 1986 among Harleysville Insurance Company of New
Jersey, Huron Insurance Company, Worcester Insurance Company, McAlear Associates, Inc. and the
Registrant - incorporated herein by reference to Exhibit 10(Q) to the Registrant’s Annual Report on
Form 10-K for the year ended December 31, 1986.

Amended and Restated Financial Tax Sharing Agreement dated March 20, 1995 among Huron
Insurance Company, Harleysville Insurance Company of New Jersey, Worcester Insurance Company,
Harleysville-Atlantic Insurance Company, New York Casualty Insurance Company, Connecticut Union
Insurance Company, Great Oaks Insurance Company, Lakes States Insurance Company and the
Registrant - incorporated herein by reference to Exhibit (10)}(L) to the Registrant’s Annual Report on
Form 10-K for the year ended December 31, 1994,
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Exhibit
No.

(10D

(1o)DH)

(10)(D(2)

(10)(3)

(10)(D)(4)

(10)I)(3)

(10X1)(6)

(107

Description of Exhibits

Proportional Reinsurance Agreement effective as of January 1, 1986 among Harleysville Mutual
Insurance Company, Huron Insurance Company and Harleysville Insurance Company of New Jersey -
incorporated herein by reference to Exhibit 10(N) to the Registrant’s Form S--1 Registration Statement
No. 33-4885 declared effective May 23, 1986.

Amendment, effective July 1, 1987, to the Proportional Reinsurance Agreement effective January 1,
1986 among Harleysville Mutual Insurance Company, Huron Insurance Company, Harleysville
Insurance Company of New Jersey and Atlantic Insurance Company of Savannah - incorporated herein
by reference to the Registrant’s Form 8-K Report dated July 1, 1987.

Amendment, effective January 1, 1989, to the Proportional Reinsurance Agreement effective January 1,
1986 among Harleysville Mutual Insurance Company, Huron Insurance Company, Harleysville
Insurance Company of New Jersey, Atlantic Insurance Company of Savannah and Worcester Insurance
Company - incorporated herein by reference to Exhibit 10(U) to the Registrant’s Annual Report on
Form 10-K for the year ended December 31, 1988.

Amendment, effective January 1, 1991, to the Proportional Reinsurance Agreement effective January 1,
1986 among Harleysville Mutual Insurance Company, Huron Insurance Company, Harleysville
Insurance Company of New Jersey, Atlantic Insurance Company of Savannah, Worcester Insurance
Company, Phoenix General Insurance Company and New York Casualty Insurance Company -
incorporated herein by reference to Exhibit (10}(O) to the Registrant’s Annual Report on Form 10-K for
the year ended December 31, 1990.

Amendments, effective January 1, 1995 and 1993, respectively, to the Proportional Reinsurance
Agreement effective January 1, 1986 among Harleysville Mutual Insurance Company, Huron Insurance
Company, Harleysville Insurance Company of New Jersey, Harleysville-Atlantic Insurance Company,
Worcester Insurance Company, Connecticut Union Insurance Company, New York Casualty Insurance
Company and Great Oaks Insurance Company - incorporated herein by reference to Exhibit (10)(P) to
the Registrant’s Annual Report on Form 10-K for the year ended December 31, 1994.

Amendment, effective January 1, 1996 to the Proportional Reinsurance Agreement effective January 1,
1986 among Harleysville Mutual Insurance Company, Huron Insurance Company, Harleysville
Insurance Company of New Jersey, Harleysville-Atlantic Insurance Company, Worcester Insurance
Company, Connecticut Union Insurance Company, New York Casualty Insurance Company, Great Oaks
Insurance Company and Pennland Insurance Company - incorporated herein by reference to
Exhibit (10)(0) to the Registrant’s Annual Report on Form 10-K for the year ended December 31, 1995.

Amendment, effective January 1, 1997 to the Proportional Reinsurance Agreement effective January 1,
1986 among Harleysville Mutual Insurance Company, Huron Insurance Company, Harleysville
Insurance Company of New Jersey, Harleysville-Atlantic Insurance Company, Worcester Insurance
Company, Mid-America Insurance Company, New York Casualty Insurance Company, Great Oaks
Insurance Company, Pennland Insurance Company and Lake States Insurance Company - incorporated
herein by reference to Exhibit (10)(P) to the Registrant’s Annual Report on Form 10-K for the year
ended December 31, 1996.

Amendment, effective January 1, 1998 to the Proportional Reinsurance Agreement effective January 1,
1986 among Harleysville Mutual Insurance Company, Huron Insurance Company, Harleysville
Insurance Company of New Jersey, Harleysville-Atlantic Insurance Company, Worcester Insurance
Company, Mid-America Insurance Company, New York Casualty Insurance Company, Great Oaks
Insurance Company, Pennland Insurance Company, Lake States [nsurance Company and Minnesota Fire
and Casualty Company - incorporated herein by reference to Exhibit (10)(Q) to the Registrant’s Annual
Report on Form 10-K for the year ended December 31, 1997.
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Exhibit
No.

(10)D(8)*

(109

(1001}

(10(K)+

(10)(L)

(10}L)M)

(10)M)

(10)(N)

(10)(0)

(10)(P)+*
(10)(P)(1)+*

(10}Q)+*

Description of Exhibits

Amendment, effective January 1, 2008, to the Proportional Reinsurance Agreement effective January 1,
1986 among Harleysville Mutual Insurance Company, Harleysville Preferred Insurance Company,
Harleysville Insurance Company of New Jersey, Harleysville-Atlantic Insurance Company, Harleysville
Worcester Insurance Company, Harleysville Insurance Company of New York, Harleysville Insurance
Company of Ohio, Harleysville Pennland Insurance Company, Harleysville Lake States Insurance
Company and Harleysville Insurance Company.

Lease and Amendment effective January I, 2000 between Harleysville, Ltd. and Harleysvilie Mutual
Insurance Company - incorporated herein by reference to Exhibit 10(R) to the Registrant’s Annual
Report on Form 10-K for the year ended December 31, 1999.

Second Amendment to Lease Agreement, effective January 1, 2005 between Harleysville Ltd. and
Harleysville Mutual Insurance Company - incorporated herein by reference to Exhibit (10)(R) 1o the
Registrant’s Annual Report on Form 10-K for the year ended December 31, 2004,

Harleysville Group Inc. Year 2000 Directors’ Stock Option Program of Registrant — incorporated herein
by reference to Exhibit (4)(C) to the Registrant’s Form S-8 Registration Statement No. 333-85941, filed
August 26, 1999,

Loan Agreement dated as of March 19, 1998 by and between Harleysville Group Inc. and Hatleysville
Mutual Insurance Company - incorporated herein by reference to Exhibit (10)(V) to the Registrant’s
Annual Report on Form 10-K for the year ended December 31, 1997.

Amendment to Loan Agreement, effective March 1, 2005 by and between Harleysvilie Group Inc. and
Harleysville Mutual Insurance Company - incorporated herein by reference to Exhibit (10)(V) to the
Registrant’s Annual Report on Form 10-K for the year ended December 31, 2004,

Form of Management Agreements dated fanuary 1, 1994 between Harleysvilte Group Inc. and
Harleysville Mutual Insurance Company, Harleysville-Garden State Insurance Company, Mainland
Insurance Company, Pennland Insurance Company, Berkshire Mutual Insurance Company and
Harleysville Life Insurance Company - incorporated herein by reference to Exhibit (10}U) to the
Registrant’s Annual Statement on Form 10-K for the year ended December 31, 1993.

Form of Salary Allocation Agreements dated January 1, 1993 between Harleysville Group Inc. and
Harleysville Mutual Insurance Company, Harleysville-Garden State Insurance Company, Mainland
Insurance Company, Pennland Insurance Company, Berkshire Mutual Insurance Company and
Harleysville Life Insurance Company - incorporated herein by reference to Exhibit (10}(U) to the
Registrant’s Annual Report on Form 10-K for the year ended December 31, 1992,

Equipment and Supplies Allocation Agreement dated January 1, 1993 between Harleysville Mutual
Insurance Company and Harleysville Group Inc. - incorporated herein by reference to Exhibit (10)(V) to
the Registrant’s Annual Report on Form 10-K for the year ended December 31, 1992.

Form of Change of Control Employment Agreements effective January 1, 2008.

List of Executive Officers who have executed a Change of Control Agreement with the Company
substantially similar to the form described in Exhibit {1 0)(P).

Harleysville Group Inc. Supplemental Retirement Plan Amended and Restated as of January 1, 2008.
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Exhibit
No.

(10}R)+

(10)(S)+

(10)(T)+*
(10)V)

(1O0)(V)+

Q0XV)(1)+*

(L)(W)+

(10)(X)+*
(10)(Y )+

(10X Z)+

(10)(AA)+

(10)(AB)+*
(I0)AC)+

(21)*
(23)*
G1.1)*
(31.2)*
(32.1)*
(32.2)*

Description of Exhibits

Directors Equity Award Program of Registrant - incorporated herein by reference to Exhibit (4)(C) to
the Registrant’s Form S-8 Registration Statement No. 333-09701 filed August 7, 1996.

Long Term Incentive Plan of Registrant - Amended and Restated - incorporated herein by reference to
Appendix “B” to the Registrant’s Definitive Proxy Statement on Form 14-A filed March 30, 2005.

Non-Qualified Excess Contribution and Match Program - Amended and Restated as of January 1, 2008.

Agency Stock Purchase Plan - incorporated herein by reference to Exhibit 4(A) to the Registrant’s
Form S-3 Registration Statement No. 33-90810 filed December 6, 2005.

Harleysville Group Inc. Amended and Restated Directors’ Equity Compensation Plan - incorporated
herein by reference to Exhibit 10.2 to the Registrant’s Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q filed May 4,
2007.

Amendment 2007-1, effective December 20, 2007, to the Harleysville Group Inc. Amended and
Restated Directors’ Equity Compensation Plan.

Agreement and Release, dated October 24, 2006, between the Registrant and Catherine B. Strauss -
incorporated by reference to Exhibit (10)(Al) to the Registrant’s Annual Report on Form 10-K for the
year ended December 31, 2006.

Non-Employee Director Compensation.

Form of Non-Qualified Stock Option Award Agreement - incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.2 to
the Registrant’s Current Report on Form 8-K filed January 5, 2006.

Form of Restricted Stock Award Agreement - incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.3 to the
Registrant’s Current Report on Form 8-K filed January 5, 2006.

Form of Restricted Stock Award Agreement for Reporting Persons - incorporated by reference to
Exhibit 10.4 to the Registrant’s Current Report on Form 8-K filed January 5, 2006.

Form of Restricted Stock Units Award Agreement.

Amended and Restated Employee Stock Purchase Plan - incorporated by reference to Exhibit 4 to the
Registrant’s Registration Statement on Form S-8 filed May 9, 2003.

Subsidiaries of Registrant.

Report and Consent of Independent Registered Public Accounting Firm

Certification of Chief Executive Officer Pursuant to Section 302 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002.
Certification of Chief Financial Officer Pursuant to Section 302 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002.
Certification of Chief Executive Officer Pursuant to $Section 906 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002.

Certification of Chief Financial Officer Pursuant to Section 306 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002.

+ A management contract, compensatory plan or arrangement required to be separately identified by reason of the
provision of Item 14(a)(3).

* Filed herewith.
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HARLEYSVILLE GROUP

SCHEDULE I - SUMMARY OF INVESTMENTS -
OTHER THAN INVESTMENTS IN RELATED PARTIES

December 31, 2007
(in thousands)

Amount at Which

Shown in the
Type of Investment Cost Value Balance Sheet
Fixed maturities:
United States government and
government agencies and authorities $ 254380 3§ 261,466 % 261,456
States, municipalities and political subdivisions 760,081 771,430 769,295
Mortgage-backed securities 369,143 373,479 373,479
All other corporate bonds 763,705 771,327 770,005
Total fixed maturities 2,147,309 2,177,702 2,174,235
Equity securities:
Common stocks:
Banks, trust and insurance companies 18 18 18
Industrial, miscellaneous and all other 66,4135 76,279 76,279
Total equities 66,433 76,297 76,297
Short-term investments 107,941 107,941
Total investments $ 2,321,683 3 2,358,473

See accompanying report of independent registered public accounting firm.
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HARLEYSVILLE GROUP INC.
SCHEDULE II - CONDENSED FINANCIAL INFORMATION OF PARENT COMPANY

CONDENSED BALANCE SHEETS
(in thousands, except share data)

December 31,
2007 2006
ASSETS
Short-term investments $ 3981 §% 21,964
Fixed maturities:

Available for sale, at fair value (cost $15 and $15) 15 I5
Investments in common stock of subsidiaries (equity method) 807,485 800,311
Accrued investment income 27 99
Dividends receivable from subsidiaries 54,565
Due from affiliate 9,630 5,879
Other assets 13,997 13,712

Total assets $ 889,700 § 841,980
LIABILITIES AND SHAREHOLDERS’ EQUITY
Debt $ 118500 $ 118,500
Accounts payable and accrued expenses 10,786 10,926
Federal income tax payable 1,573 392
Total liabilities 130,859 129,818
Shareholders’ equity:
Preferred stock, $1 par value; authorized
1,000,000 shares, none issued
Common stock, $1 par value;
authorized 80,000,000 shares; issued 2007, 33,656,253 and 2006, 33,060,600
shares; outstanding 2007, 30,322,905 and 2006, 31,662,691 shares 33,656 33,061

Additional paid-in capital 213,654 197,607

Accumulated other comprehensive income 20,599 14

Retained earnings 578,705 505,967

Treasury stock, at cost, 3,333,348 and 1,397,909 shares (87,773) (24,487)

Total shareholders’ equity 758,841 712,162

Total liabilities and shareholders’ equity $ 889,700 §$ 841,980

See accompanying notes to consolidated financial statements and report of independent registered public accounting
firm.
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HARLEYSVILLE GROUP INC.
SCHEDULE I1 - CONDENSED FINANCIAL INFORMATION OF PARENT COMPANY

CONDENSED STATEMENTS OF INCOME
(in thousands)

Year Ended December 31,

2007 2006 2005

Revenues $ 7,268 % 7,579 §$ 7,289
Expenses:

Interest 7,085 6,943 6,626

Expenses other than interest 3,138 3,206 2,252

(2,953) (2,570) {(1,589)

Income tax benefit (1,037} (1,375) (762)
Loss before equity in income of subsidiaries and cumulative effect of

accounting change (1,918) (1,195) (827
Equity in income of subsidiaries 101,972 111,399 62,258
Cumulative effect of accounting change, net of income taxes 865
Net income $ 100,054 $ 11,069 § 61,431

See accompanying notes to consolidated financial statements and report of independent registered public accounting
firm.
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HARLEYSVILLE GROUP INC,

SCHEDULE 11 - CONDENSED FINANCIAL INFORMATION OF PARENT COMPANY

CONDENSED STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS

(in thousands)

Cash flows from operating activities:
Net income
Adjustments to reconcile net income to net cash used
by operating activities:
Cumulative effect of accounting change, net of tax
Equity in income of subsidiaries
Decrease (increase) in accrued investment income
Increase (decrease) in accrued income taxes
Other, net
Net cash used by operating activities

Cash flows from investing activities:
Purchases of fixed maturity investments
Maturities of fixed maturity investments
Net sales (purchases) of short-term investments
Net cash provided (used) by investing activities

Cash flows from financing activities:
Issuance of common stock
Purchase of treasury stock
Dividends from subsidiaries
Dividends paid

Excess tax benefits from share-based payment arrangements

Net cash (used) provided by financing activities

Change in cash
Cash at beginning of year
Cash at end of year

Year Ended December 31,

2007 1006 2005
$ 100,054 $ 111,069 § 61,431
(865)
(101,972)  (111,399) (62,258)
72 (36) (44)
1,167 (2,887) 3,000
(1,662) 3,427 (6,218)
(2,341) (691) (4,089)
(15)
50
17,983 (1.875) 3,062
17,983 (1,875) 3,097
9,427 22,011 6,970
(63,286)
63,036 36 15,030
(27,316) (22,807) (21,008)
2,497 3,326
(15,642) 2,566 992
$ — 5§ — $  —

See accompanying notes to consolidated financial statements and report of independent registered public accounting

firm.

87



HARLEYSVILLE GROUP

SCHEDULE III - SUPPLEMENTARY INSURANCE INFORMATION

Years Ended December 31, 2007, 2006 and 2005
(in thousands)

Liability
For
Unpald
Losses Amortization
Deferred and Losses Of Deferred
Policy Loss Net And Loss Policy Other
Acquisition Settlement Unearned Earned Investment  Settlement Acquisition Underwriting  Premiums
Costs Expenses Premi Premi Income Exp Costs Expense Written
Year ended
December 31, 2007
Commercial lines $ 1,270,788 § 335,041 $ 689,518 § 436,633 % 693,168
Personal lines 111,024 76,424 143,506 86,102 144,825
GAAP adjustments(1) 164,878 38,721 295
Total $ 101,954 § 1,546,690 § 450,i86 § 833,024 $ 523030 8 207684 § 76,223 § 837,993
Net investment income $ 110,827
Year ended
December 31, 2006
Commercial lines $ 1,210,307 $ 331,391 § 693,229 § 453941 $ 695,888
Personal lines 119,542 75,105 145,592 85,088 142,929
GAAP adjustments(1) 163,796 37,242 794
Total $ 102,317 § 1,493,645 § 443738 § 838,321 $ 539823 § 212872 § 78,208 § 838817
Net investment income $ 102,605
Year ended
December 31, 2005
Commercial lines $ 1,105,647 § 328,731 § 687,135 $ 474,625 $ 692,356
Personal tines 131,443 77,768 154,432 92,323 146,688
GAAP adjustments(1) 243,712 34,256 448
Total $ 104,173 § 1,480,802 $ 440,755 § 841,567 5 567,396 § 210,665 § 79,367 § 839,044

Net investment income $ 90,572

(1) GAAP adjustments are not determined separately for commercial and personal lines.

See Note 12 of the Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements.

See accompanying report of independent registered public accounting firm,
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HARLEYSVILLE GROUP
SCHEDULE IV - REINSURANCE

Years Ended December 31, 2007, 2006 and 2005
(in thousands)

Percentage
Ceded to Assumed From Am(:)runt
Gross Outside Affiliated Outside Affiliated Net Assumed
Amount Companies  Companies(1) Companies Companies(l) Amount to Net
Property and casualty
premiums for year
ended December 31,
2007 $828,442  $90,838 $753,806 $16,252 $833,024 $833,024 102.0%
2006 £803,960  $84,389 $742,752 $23,181 $838,821 $838,821 102.8%
2005 $797,564  $93,139 $740,273 $27,036 $850,379 $841,567 104.3%

(1) These columns include the effect of the intercompany pooling.

See accompanying report of independent registered public accounting firm.
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HARLEYSVILLE GROUP

SCHEDULE VI - SUPPLEMENTAL INSURANCE INFORMATION CONCERNING
PROPERTY AND CASUALTY SUBSIDIARIES

Years Ended December 31, 2007, 2006 and 2005
{(in thousands)

Liability Discount, Losses and Loss
For Unpaid If Any, Settlement Expenses Paid Losses
Losses and Deducted (Benefits) Incurred And Loss
Loss Settlement From Related To Settlement
Expenses Reserves(1) Current Year Prior Years Expenses
Year ended:
December 31, 2007 $ 1,546,690 § 7,173 0§ 545077 8§ (22,047) § 471,067
December 31, 2006 § 1493645 § 7423 § 557908 § (i8,085) § 447064
December 31, 2005 ¥ 1480802 $ 9,563 § 584929 § {17,533y § 461915

Notes: (1} The amount of discount relates to certain long-term disability workers’ compensation cases. A discount
rate of 3.5% (5% on New Jersey cases) was used.

(2) Information required by remaining columns is contained in Schedule III.

See accompanying report of independent registered public accounting firm.
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SIGNATURES

Pursuant to the requirements of Section 13 or 15(d) of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, the Registrant has
duly caused this report to be signed on its behalf by the undersigned thereunto duly autherized.

Harleysville Group Inc.

Date: March 7, 2008 By: /s/ MICHAEL L. BROWNE
Michael L. Browne
President, Chief Executive Officer
and a Director
(principal executive officer)

Pursuant to the requirements of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, this report has been signed by the
following persons on behalf of the Registrant in the capacities and on the dates indicated.

Signature Title Date
s/ MICHAEL L. BROWNE President, Chief Executive Officer March 7, 2008
Michael L. Browne and a Director (principal executive
officer)
s/ ARTHUR E. CHANDLER Senior Vice President and Chief March 7, 2008
Arthur E. Chandler Financial Officer (principal

financial officer and principal
accounting officer)

/s/ WiLLIAM W. SCRANTON Chairman of the Board and March 7, 2008
William W. Scranton a Director
/s/ BARBARA A. AUSTELL Director March 7, 2008

Barbara A. Austell

/s/ W. THACHER BROWN Director March 7, 2008
W. Thacher Brown

/s/ G. LAWRENCE BUHL Director March 7, 2008
G. Lawrence Buhl

/s/ MIRIAN M. GRADDICK-WEIR Director March 7, 2008
Mirian M. Graddick-Weir

/s/ WILLIAM GRAY Director March 7, 2008
William Gray

/s/ JERRY S. ROSENBLOOM Director March 7, 2008

Jerry S. Rosenbloom

/s/ WILLIAM E. STORTS Director March 7, 2008
William E. Storts
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Annual shareholders’ meeting

Date:  Wednesday, April 23, 2008
Time:  10:30 a.m.
Place:  Corporate headquarrers

Corporate headquarters
355 Maple Avenue
Harleysville, PA 19438-2297
215.256.5000

internet address
www.harleysvillegroup.com

Common stock information
Traded on the NASDAQ
National Market System
Symbol: HGIC

Dividend payment schedule

Historically, dividends on Harleysville Group
common $tock have been paid quarterly in
March, June, September and December.

Financial information

In addition to this report and the accompanying

proxy statement, sharcholders may obtain the

following information at no charge from the

investor relations department:

+ Forms 10-Q} and 8-K (if any) as filed with
the Securities and Exchange Commission

* Prospectus with information abourt the
company's dividend reinvestment and stock
purchase plan

Requests should be submitred to investor

relations using the contact information below.

Investor relations contact
Mark R. Cummins
Executive Vice President,
Chief [nvestment Officer and Treasurer
Mail:  Harleysville Group Inc.
355 Maple Avenue
Harleysville, PA 19438-2297
Phone: 215.256.5151
Fax: 215.256.5601
E-mail:  investorrelaticns@hatleysvillegroup.com
Registrar and transfer agent
Wells Fargo Shareowner Services
PO. Box 64874
St. Paul, MN 55164-0874

Shareholder inquiries: 800.468.9716

www.shareowneronline.com
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Good people to know’

Harleysville Group Inc.
355 Maple Avenue
Harleysville, PA 19438-2297

www.harleysvillegroup.com




